STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
7/3/2018 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the Agenda for July 3, 2018.

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




Approval of the Minutes for June 5, 2018.
5. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of adoption of Storey County Administrative Policy 018
Surveillance in the Workplace.

II For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
Tax Roll for Overassessment.

Il For possible action, approval of Assessor's Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
Tax Roll for Clerical Error.

IV For possible action, approval of the Treasurer Report for May 2018.

V  For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $412,214.63 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $1,700,467.44.

VI For possible action, approval of Business License First Readings:
A. ECOCLEAN, INC - General / 26801 Northwestern Hwy ~ Southfield, MI
B. 4 CONCRETE LLC - Contractor / 2735 Azuza Lane ~ Reno, NV
C. IGNACIO MADRIGAL-GONZALES, DBA:EL CARRETON - General/8716 Deer
Cr ~ Stockton, CA
D. URETEK USA, INC - Contractor / 13900 Humble Rd ~ Tomball, TX
E. C.G. AUTOMATION & FIXTURE, INC - General / 5352 Rusche Dr ~ Comstock
Pk, MI
F. ECARGO LLC - General / 545 Valle Verde Dr ~ Sparks, NV
G. RON COLCORD CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 280 Vermillion ~ Reno, NV
H. ADVANTAGE TECHNICAL RESOUCING - General / 201 E. 4th St ~
Cincinnati, OH
I. AMERICAN SCALE CO, INC - General / 21326 E. Arrow Hwy ~ Covina, CA
J. LYRA CLINICAL ASSOCIATES, P.C. - General / 205 Park Rd ~ Burlingame, CA
K. ACE INSULATION NV INC - Contractor / 1306 Dynamic St ~ Petaluma, CA
L. WADE METAL WORKS LLC - General / 3025 Mill St ~ Reno, NV
M. MEE2, INC - General / 171 Coney Island ~ Sparks, NV
N. FCC COMMUNICATION, INC - General / 1360 Greg St ~ Sparks, NV
O. SAIKAI ELECTIC CO, LTD - General / 34-19 Suehiro-cho ~ Osaka, JP
P. AEM CONSULTING GROUP, INC - General / 1125 Ivy Lane ~ Ashland, OR

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

8. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




Consideration and possible approval of interlocal agreement with State Fire Marshal
delegating duties relating to the administration and enforcement of the 2012
International Fire Code to County.

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Recommendation to award contract to the successful bidder for the construction of
the Five Mile Water Line Replacement Project, acceptance is condition upon bid
approval by the USDA Rural Development.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Special Use Permit Application 18-020: The applicant requests a special use permit for
the purpose of construction or placement of uses allowable in the F Forestry zone
including a site-built or manufactured single-family residence, agriculture and
horticulture uses incidental to the principal domestic use, general agricultural uses
and structures, continued use and maintenance of an existing solar energy generating
facility, and other accessory improvements related thereto on property locates at 700
and 800 Menezes Way (APN 004-131-13), Lockwood, Storey County Nevada.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with Robert G. Loveberg up to
$12,000 to review, update, and amend Storey County's floodplain ordinance to
improve standards to meet or exceed FEMA minimum requirements, accommodate
the regional floodplain mapping and flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs), implement
Carson River Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures, and consider revisions
necessitated by the 2017 flood event, as set forth in the attached scope of work and
schedule.

12.  DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of Resolution 18-498, Tax Rate Levy for 2018-2019, total tax rate 3.4607.
13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution 18-488, a resolution setting grade and salary range of
employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey
County officials.

14. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE DISTRICT BOARD
15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Resolution 18-489, a resolution setting grade and salary range of
employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 474.470 for appointed Storey
County Fire District officials.




16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Continue to August 7, 2018 board meeting. Consideration of letters of interest and
appointment of a planning commissioner to fill the vacancy and serve the remainder
of the term representing Precinct 1 Virginia City on the Storey County Planning
Commission.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Modification to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC-Storey County Development
Agreement, in accordance with Section 5.2, by accepting and approving amendments
to Chapter 8, Storey County Code 17.28 C Commercial Zone modifying building
height limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, adding to Section
17.28.020 Permitted Uses urgent-care, truck sales, heavy equipment sales,
microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject to
Permit buildings exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals, convalescent homes,
and sanitariums; and amending SCC 17.36 11 Light Industrial Zone modifying
building height limitation from 4 stories of 50 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, and other
properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of Business License Second Readings:

A. ADVANCED SYSTEMS LCL - General / 1020 W. 14 Mile Rd ~ Clawson, MI
B. AMERICAN POWER SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 2995 Mill St ~ Reno, NV
C. KEN MORGAN - Contractor / 325 Neilson Rd ~ Reno, NV

D. MARIO LEPROVOST -~ Contractor / 1946 Wilder St ~ Reno, NV

E. PARLEVEL SYSTEMS INC - General / 114 E. Cevallos St ~ San Antonio, TX
F. VINEBURG MACHINING - General / 26 Stokes Dr ~ Carson City, NV

G. BENCH TEK SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 525 Aldo Ave ~ Santa Clara, CA

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

[tems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon




which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

e Inaccordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners” Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 6/26/2018; Virginia City Post




Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.

\ .
By (0LNGd8G \Brp o rdh




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meetin;gkdé‘te: July 3,2018 Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Regular Agenda

1. Title: Approval of the Minutes for June 5, 2018.

2. Recommended motion: Approve the minutes for June 5, 2018 as presented.

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Clerk Contact Number: 775.847.0969

4. Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by;
_@ Department Head Department Name: Clerk

@?_/C'ounty Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved ] Approved with Modification

[
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
TUESDAY, JUNE 5, 2018 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Clerk &
Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, District Attorney Anne Langer, Sheriff
Gerald Antinoro, Management Analyst Jennifer McCain, Planning Director/ Administrative
Officer Austin Osborne, Public Works Director Jason Weizrbicki, Justice of the Peace Eileen
Herrington, Communications Director Dave Ballard, Project Coordinator Mike Northan

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 5, 2018.
Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Agenda for June 5, 2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. CONSENT AGENDA:
I For possible action, cancellation of the July 17, 2018 Board of County Commissioners
meeting due to a NACO Conference.

Il For possible action, approval of payroll claims in the amount of $821,376.82 and accounts
payable claims in the amount of $1,883,124.73.

Il For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
1




A. JACKSON QUALITY DRYWALL ~ Contractor / 1560 Willow Cr Ln ~ Gardnerville,
NV

B. APOLLO CONSTRUCTION, INC - Contractor / 1133 W. Columbia Dr ~ Kennewick,
WA

C. EDGE COMMUNICATION INC - Contractor / 2955 Hwy 40 W. ~ Verdi, NV

D. HENKEL - General / 32100 Stephenson Hwy ~ Madison Heights, MI

E. CLIMATE PROS OF NORTHERN NV - Contractor / 10090 Orchard Hill De ~ Reno,
NV

F. RELEVATE, LLC - General / 2161 W. Enfield Way ~ Chandler, AZ

G. TIM BLAKELY IMAGING SOLUTIONS - Home Business / 2090 Lousetown Rd ~
VCH, NV

H. AIR TREATMENT CORP - General / 640 N. Puente St ~ Brea, CA

I. PRECISION MANHOLES, INC - Contractor / 770 E. Main St #321 ~ Lehi, UT

J. PACIFIC CONSOLIDATED OF NV INC - General / 2615 Branson Ave ~ Plano, TX
K. GQS - GLOBAL QUALITY SUPPLY LLC - General / 333 H. St Ste. 5024 ~ Chula
Vista, CA

L. RICKS AEC REPROGRAPHICS - General / 488 Kietzke Ln ~ Reno, NV

M. CRYSATL BARHAM - Handyman / 234 Prospector Rd ~ Dayton, NV

N. A & A TOWING, INC - General / 1395 E. 4th St ~ Reno, NV

O. ALL ICE LLC - Home Business / 240 Vermillion Rd ~ Reno, NV

P. L.P.R. CONSTRUCTION CO - Contractor / 1171 Des Moines Ave ~ Loveland, CO
Q. ARC HEALTH & WELLNESS CNT - General / 82 E. Glendale ~ Reno, NV

R. ARC WORK PLACE SVC, LLC- General / 82 E. Glendale ~ Reno, NV

S. ALFA LAVAL INC - General / 5400 International Trade Dr ~ Richmond, VA

T. APPLIED ENGINEERING INC - General / 3300 Fiechtner Dr ~ Fargo, ND

U. CENTURY PLASTICS LLC - General / 15030 23 Mi Rd ~ Shelby Twp, MI

V. CYBERTROL ENGINEERING LLC - General /2950 Xenium Ln ~ Mpls, MN

W. ELECTRICAL SOLUTIONS - Contractor / 2710 Valley View Dr ~ Reno, NV

X. MK NORTH AMERICA, INC - General / 105-125 Highland PK Dr ~ Bloomfield, CT
Y. PFM INTEGRATORS INC- General / 2726 Autumn Woods Dr ~ Chaska, MN

Z. AMUNDSON ROOFING INC- Contractor / 8995 Terabyte Dr ~ Reno, NV

AA. SAFETY ON SITE - General / 316 California Ave ~ Reno, Nv

BB. NAISBITT CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 4 Hardy Dr ~ Sparks, NV

Public Comment:

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for June 5,2018, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3) ‘

7. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action-No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Chief Deputy Sheriff Tony Dosen:
e Yesterday Sheriff Antinoro had a “ride along”with State Senator Don Gustafson, touring TRI
and Tesla. The Senator was very impressed with all that is going on in TRIL.




IT Director James Deane:

The cutting over of the active directory domain for the entire county is half-way complete.
The Recorder’s office is now “live” on the Tyler recorder project.

There have been no technical hardware or software issues.

Fire and Sheriff are the last and largest projects to be cut over.

Project Coordinator Mike Northan:

Lockwood Senior Center renovations are complete and they are back in business.

Work continues in the Judge’s chambers with crown molding, paint, and wallpaper being
completed.

Painting is finished in the District Attorney’s office - carpets need to be cleaned and stretched.
NDOT has ordered materials for the TRI tower project. The road has to be cut to the site.
Working with the architect on plans for the Justice Center.

Station 71 roof is complete.

Bids are being solicited for the north side of the Courthouse roof.

Vice Chair McGuffey asked about status of the Highlands mailbox construction:

Requirements are making it difficult to find a contractor for the project. Follow up will be
made with contractor Mark Zulim.

Community Chest Director Erik Schoen:

Expressed gratitude, thanks, and support to all who attended the grand opening Friday night
of the new Community Center/ Library. 100 to 150 people attended.

Fire Chief Jeff Nevin:

Thank you to Mike (Northan) for all the hard work at the fire department facilities.

The fuel reduction project is wrapping up as we transition to fire season. 3,000 acres burned
quickly overnight in the recent fire in Lyon County. Initial cause is thought to be target
shooting.

Fuels and grasses are very dry - everyone is cautioned to be extra vigilant.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

Today the Commission will be asked to approve the budget.

Augmentations will be presented at the next meeting. Mr. Gallagher described what
augmentations are and reviewed areas that may need to be augmented.

This Sunday at Fourth Ward School a program will be presented by author, researcher Ingrid
Barnett.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

The July 17t Commission meeting will be cancelled due to the annual NACO meeting.
Meetings will be held June 19, July 3, and August 7.

Met with Tesla’s director regarding finalization of negotiations and agreed this will be done as
expeditiously as possible. Any action will have to go through legal counsel and, ultimately,
this Board of Commissioners.

Community Development reports significant changes with nuisance and zoning issues.
Several issues have been abated.




Chairman McBride asked Mr. Whitten about an item brought to the Chair’s attention following the
May 15t meeting, where a blogger implied in a post the County may have awarded a no-bid contract
to a local contractor to build the new Justice Center. Immediately following the post, the County
received a request for copies of that no-bid contract. Chair McBride does not recall a no-bid contract.

Mr. Whitten: The Justice Court complex will run approximately $1 million or a little more. For the
record and to be clear, there is no “no-bid contract”. There is an estimate of $122 per square foot for
the shell from Shaheen Beauchamp. This may or may not have been construed as something more
than just a statement. The project has not gone out to bid. The goal is to have exterior design, plot
maps, layout, etc., at a level for Historical Commission approval. Once there is conceptual approval,
the project will go out to bid.

County Assessor Jana Seddon:

o The design phase Assessor’s System new software for the 14 Nevada counties has been
completed. In July, committee members will “hands on” be working through the program to
make sure there are no bugs.

¢ Being on the design committee, Storey County will be one of the first counties for
implementation, which will be delivered in phases.

e “Go-Live” date for Storey County will be June/July 2019.

¢ New construction this year is phenomenal, with double the amount of residences since last
year.

e Community Development staff has been a tremendous help this year with unfinished
residences and the nuisance department has been great in taking care of issues.

6. BOARD COMMENT (No Action-No Public Comment):
Vice-Chairman McGuffey:
o Attended the NACO Western Regional Conference:
o The Lands Bill was discussed, but there is no news.
o Affordable housing was brought up. A bill will be presented at the next Legislative
session. Several issues were discussed including what defines affordable housing.

Chairman McBride:
o It was a busy Saturday morning with the Reno-Tahoe Odyssey foot race. Spring Street
Vibrations also took place last weekend.
o These events help out the community and businesses.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
o Acknowledged the passing of Bradley Bryant from Rainbow Bend. Mr. Bryant served many
years on the Canyon GID Board.

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Tax Management Associates, Inc. contract
addendum and extension.

Assessor Jana Seddon said Tax Management Associates, Inc. (TMA) audits business personal
property accounts for the Assessor’s Office. The Assessor’s Office is an “appraiser” not an
accountant. Also, a lot of the businesses are headquartered in areas other than Storey County which




requires travel to corporate offices. Tax Management Associates has success with compliance and
getting businesses to report correctly - this is done by auditing their books.

There were some issues in the past. This contract sets time lines when items have to be completed -
not only by Tax Management, but also by Storey County. There is a penalty if Tax Management does
not perform and does not provide information when they’re supposed to.

We are using Tax Management Associates again based on:

e 33 accounts were audited in 2017. The cost of the audit is based on the company’s taxable
value.

e For the 33 accounts, the County’s cost for the audits is $61,500.

o From last year’s audit, the County is able to bill back for 2016-17, 2015-16, 2014-15, and 2013-
14.

¢ To date, the County has billed $97,665.74 in back taxes. It is estimated $433,654.59 will be
billed in June. This amount includes a 20% penalty dictated by NRS for un-reported personal
property.

e At this time, no one has asked to negotiate the penalty.

e The estimated total billed back per Tax Management will be $531,320.33.

Chairman McBride asked if the statutory requirement gives relief to the County for the penalty.

Ms. Seddon: Yes, it does. The statute says, “may charge the 20% penalty”. This is added to the bill.
If requested, most of the time the penalty will be waived. The initial contract with TMA was for three
years but work was not started until almost a year in.

Working with Tax Management has brought to light issues with the State. There were three
companies who confessed they had been taking GOED abatements for years when they were no
longer eligible. The County never received documentation from GOED or the State.

The numbers given are for last year. This year about 29 companies will be audited. Note that only
companies with a minimum $50,000 taxable value are audited. Under that amount, it is not worth it.

The County has not been notified by the State (regarding abatement eligibility). We have notified
GOED and the Department of Taxation who are working to correct this as well as other issues. We
hope to meet with these departments to layout guidelines of what should be done. Ms. Seddon said
she is working with the District Attorney’s Office on these issues.

District Attorney Langer: A problem with Department of Taxation was that personnel were changing
so regularly there was not a contact person. We are working toward getting together with the person
at the Department of Taxation in charge of the County to streamline the process and to make both the
organization and the Department of Taxation accountable in providing information so the County
can follow through.

Ms. Seddon: It was apparent as soon as the (companies) were audited they admitted getting the
GOED abatement they were not qualified for. Letters have been going to companies saying they are
no longer eligible for abatement, but the County is not being told. Tobi Whitten has prepared a
statement where companies will declare whether or not they are eligible for abatements.

5




Mr. Whitten commented that now that we know these companies were not eligible (for abatement),
the County can back-bill.

Ms. Seddon: Yes. Some of these companies are still within their “clawback” time. They will not only
be audited, but anything not previously reported will be billed and they will also be hit with the
clawback for taking the abatement when they were not eligible.

Mr. Whitten noted, on one account, he was impressed with the level of detail and work by TMA to
validate the numbers.

Ms. Seddon said her office does “spot check” the accounts making sure the life schedule put on
products is correct, that there is not real property improvements being audited. It is a “line by line”
check - some have 4 - 5,000 line items. It is definitely worth the time and money paid to TMA. Now
that the companies are aware, going forward the process should be streamlined. The contract does
not specify the number of companies to be audited, the number will go down year to year.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve Tax Management Associates, Inc. contract addendum and
extension, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

8. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve the renewal of the Intrastate Interlocal Contract
between Public Agencies, a contract between the State of Nevada acting by and through its
Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Health Care Financing and Policy and the
Storey County Fire Protection District.

Fire Chief Jeff Nevin: This is a renewal of a contract from last year. This is a five year renewal
allowing the Fire Protection District to bill Medicaid for actual costs versus the negotiated rate.
Hopefully it will enable the District to collect more.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve the renewal of the Intrastate Interlocal Contract between Public Agencies,
between the State of Nevada Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Health Care
Financing and Policy, and the Storey County Fire Protection District, and authorize the Fire Chief to
sign, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a Mutual Aid Agreement between the Storey
County Fire Protection District and the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority, or REMSA.




Fire Chief Jeff Nevin: This agreement is a renewal of a previous contract with updates and
corrections, and allows the Fire Protection District to respond into Washoe County which is serviced
by REMSA. The agreement also allows REMSA to come into Storey County.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I make a motion to approve a Mutual Aid Agreement between the Storey County Fire
Protection District and the Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority, or REMSA, and
authorize the Chairman to sign the Agreement, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

11. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Business License second readings:

A. SIERRA HOME SVC, LLC dba: MR.APPLIANCE - General / 795 Jacks Valley Rd ~ Carson City,
NV

B. SA RECYCLING LLC - General / 2411 N. Glassell St ~ Orange, CA

C. MARVIN E. DAVIS & ASSOCIATES - General / 12000 Old Virginia Rd ~ Reno, NV

D. GRANT ROBINSON CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 5935 Quail Rock Ln ~ Reno, NV

E. PRIME STORAGE LLC dba: PRIME TRAILER - General/ 10400 E. 102nd Ave ~ Henderson, NV
F. MARUI SANGYO CO., LTD - General / 42 Enokise ~ Japan

G. HOSE & FITTINGS, ETC - General / 1811 Enterprise Blvd ~ West Sacramento, CA

H. VINCO, INC - Contractor / 18995 Forest Blvd ~ Forest Lake, MN

I. MISUMI USA, INC - General / 1717 N. Penny Ln ~ Schaumburg, IL

J. CALIFORNIA HYDRONICS CORP - General / 2293 Tripaldi Way ~ Hayward, CA

K. CALNEVA TOWERS - General / 4690 Longley Ln ~ Reno, NV

L. FRAME ARCHITECTURE - General / 14308 Swift Creek Ct ~ Reno, NV

On behalf of Community Development, County Manager Whitten requested approval of items A.
through L.

Motion: I make a motion to approve Items A through L, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

18. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Tonya Brown, advocate for the wrongly convicted: Ms. Brown reviewed circumstances regarding a
wrongful conviction of her brother, Mr. Klein, over 20 years ago. As an advocate, she has worked on
getting legislation created since 2007. Ms. Brown discussed statistics of wrongful convictions. Ms.
Brown requested the Commissioners to ask District Attorney Langer to support her recommendation
for a petition for an exoneration - Public Integrity Unit Commission - to look into wrongful
convictions. Ms. Brown said she has made attempts to discuss these recommendations with the
District Attorney - to no avail. Ms. Langer was on the jury convicting Mr. Klein. Over the years Ms.
Klein has had legislation created. If there is a wrongful conviction in a Storey County case, there
would eventually be a suit and it would come to the Commissioners.

7




Kathryn Hyde: Ms. Hyde discussed the project to renovate the St. Paul the Prospector, Episcopal
Church and to install the Western Missionary Museum. She reviewed the history of the church built
after the fire in 1876. The church is owned by the Western Missionary Museum, a non-profit, and has
fallen into dis-repair. A team has been put together to restore the church - they are working with
various historic agencies. It is estimated the project will cost $1 -2 million. The museum will be a
high quality museum and income from the museum will be used to make sure the church does not
fall into disrepair again. Grant applications have been submitted. They have heard back on one - the
preliminary phase of the National Fund for Sacred Places - where they are one of 32 being asked to
submit full applications. Both of the grants require funding matches. Fundraising needs to begin for
when the matching grants are received. It sounds like a lot, but really is not for this type of project.
They are working with the mining industry, the State, and hopefully TRI - to help raise these funds.
This is a very strong team and project- with a high likelihood of success. The church is a contributing
property to the Virginia City Historic District and they believe it is eligible for listing on the National
Register.

Chairman McBride: Thank you. This is a very worthwhile project.
Ms. Hyde: The three churches have got together - creating a little group, with the well-being of the
buildings in mind. It is hoped that when finished with St. Paul’s, the team will be able to move on to

the Presbyterian and Catholic churches as well.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: You might ask Comstock Car Club. All proceeds from their annual car
show are given to local non-profits. Also, the Fraternal Order of Eagles.

Ms. Hyde: Thank you for the suggestion.

19. ADJOURNMENT
Chairman McBride adjourned the meeting at 11:16 A.M.

Respectfully submitted,
" Q.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/03/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Adoption of Storey County Administrative Policy 018 Surveillance in the
Workplace.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff and in conformance with the Storey County
Administrative Policies and Procedures, | [commissioner] motion to approve adoption of Policy 018 Surveillance
in the Workplace.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Human Resources Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: The purpose of the Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures is to establish
authority to implement the personnel program on a consistent basis. The Policies and
Procedures require that review and necessary updates occur every five years and
otherwise as needed.

5. Supporting materials: Enclosed proposed Policy 018 Surveillance in the Workplace.
6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Revieweg by:
Department Head Department Name: Human Resources and Comptrolier
Oﬁu‘*’ﬂ/tounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved
1] Denied

Approved with Modifications »
Continued Agenda Item No. £~ T

ey
[P P —

Page 1 of |



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 018

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 07/03/18
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: PAW

SUBJECT: SURVEILLANCE IN THE WORKPLACE

II

Purpose

Storey County recognizes that maintaining the safety and security of employees,
customers, and county property is best implemented with a multi-faceted approach.
To the extent that modern technology provides tools to maintain safety and security,
the use of technology such as video surveillance is supported by the board.

Surveillance systems may be used around buildings, public areas, on county property,
county vehicles and equipment, and on peace officers as allowed and regulated by
NRS. Video surveillance, and data management and retention, will conducted in
accordance with applicable state laws.

Managing and communicating allowed video and audio recording device use by
employees, members of the public, and others is also important to ensuring that
certain rights of employees and members of the public are protected.

Placement and Notification

A. Video surveillance systems may cover publically accessible places on county
property including buildings; hallways; lobbies, areas within offices where public
access exists; cafeterias and libraries; meeting rooms; county roads, sidewalks,
parking lots, parks, pools, and indoor and outdoor public places.

B. Video surveillance is prohibited in areas where there is a reasonable expectation
of privacy, including but not limited to, restrooms, locker rooms, clothes changing
areas, and fire district or county employee bedrooms and sleeping areas.

C. Video cameras will be placed in conspicuous locations. This policy encourages
video cameras to be highly visible and installed in prominent locations in order 10
deter criminal activity. Use of hidden video surveillance devices is prohibited.

D. Use of video surveillance within employee office areas may be used to monitor
specific areas where public access exists (e.g., front counter area), where
valuable or highly sensitive property or materials ave located (e.g., vaull, safe,
server room, equipment station, vehicle fueling station, cash drawer, etc.), or
where there is a need to for enhanced security and safety (e.g., public utilities,
water treatment, chemical storage, eic.).

E. Placement of video cameras will avoid 1o the extent feasible or to the extent that
the device fails to fulfill a direct safety purpose, direct view over employee office
work stations and employee office computer monitors. In such case that an

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page I of 8



111

employee''s office work station and/or office computer screen may be visible from
the video surveillance device, the department head shall approve or deny its
placement at that location, subject to approval by the County Manager. Video
surveillance within the Sheriff’s Office, its substations, the jail facility, and other
buildings thereof are subject only to the Sheriff’s approval.

Law enforcement “body-camera” use will conform to the applicable NRS and
Sheriff’s Office policies, and is not subject to this policy.

Unless written consent is provided by the affected property owner and its tenants,
video cameras must not be situated so that they cover or monitor neighboring
properties or buildings not owned by the county, including but not limited to,
neighboring buildings, yards, garages, and windows. A camera’s resolution
capability and ability to zoom and pan must be taken into consideration for this
purpose. Such systems are not prohibited from covering or monitoring adjacent
streets, sidewalks, parks, vehicle parking lots, and public places. The affected
property owner and its tenants may revoke the consent at any time, at which point
the county must within two work days make necessary corrections to the video
cameras to comply with this section.

The location, placement, function (e.g., zoom, pan, etc.), view span, and type for
each video surveillance device are subject to approval by the County Manager.

Surveillance systems may operate 24 hours per day on a year-round basis at any
and all times during business hours and non-business hours.

Surveillance system display monitors must not be located in areas that enable
public viewing.

The county will notify employees that video cameras may be used on county
premises. The notification will be performed by making this policy available on
the county website.

Any exterior video camera placed on a building within the Comstock Historic
District must receive a certificate of historic appropriateness from the historic
district. Extra care must be taken to ensure that video surveillance devices do not
cause detriment to the aesthetic authenticity and character of any historic
building, with special care toward public areas in and near the historic buildings.

Systems Use

A.

The use of video surveillance equipment on county property will be with the
knowledge and consent of the County Manager or his/her designee(s), and may
include the county Emergency Management Director as appropriate.

The County Manager will designate employee(s) who have authorization to view
and access surveillance equipment. The authorization may be revoked by the
County Manager at any time and for any reason. :

Employees and the public are prohibited from unauthorized use, tampering,
destroying, copying, distributing, or otherwise inlerfering with surveillance
equipment and recordings. Discipline up to and including termination may be
imposed in accordance with the Storey County administrative policies.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 2 of 8



IV.

The County Manager or his/her designee, and/or the Administrative Officer
and/or Personnel Director, may conduct periodic audits of the surveillance
system to ensure that use and access to the system is done in accordance with this
policy.

Surveillance recordings may be used as evidence that an employee, vendor,
member of the public, or other person(s) has engaged in behavior that violates

county policies or state/federal laws.

Surveillance systems may not be used for the purpose of performing employee
performance evaluations, monitoring employee compliance with dress code
policies, monitoring employee attendance or timeliness, or for monitoring general
employee performance. Surveillance systems may be used in any investigation to
confirm violations of county policies. Surveillance systems and recordings may
not be used to bully, harass, embarrass, or publically tarnish the reputation of, or
treat unethically, any employee or person.

Video surveillance recordings may show clear video, time, date, and year; and
location of the associated device;, may employ infrared and other night vision;
and may zoom, pan, and track individuals, vehicles, or other movement within the
field of vision. The system may employ vehicle and vehicle license plate
recognition and other recognition capability.

Security video surveillance footage may not be displayed on any website, social
media, or other media of the county. Special exceptions may be made by the
County Manager on a case-by-case basis. This section does not apply to
webcams, weather cams, wildlife cams, and other similar video footage.

Court proceedings, video arraignments, and court and detention facility
conference recordings may not be displayed on any website, social media, or
other media of the county.

No person will operate, monitor, or access archived footage of the surveillance
system until s/he has read and demonstrated in-writing his/her understanding of
this policy.

Audio Surveillance

A.

Except as otherwise provided by this section, audio surveillance systems are
subject to the provisions of this policy governing video surveillance systems.

Audio surveillance may only take place in vaults, safes, hazardous material
storage areas, and other areas where valuable or highly sensitive property or
materials are located (e.g., an office vault, safe, server room, equipment station,
etc.),; Sheriff’s offices, substations, jail facilities, and other Sheriff’ s facilities;
areas designated by the Emergency Management Director as high security or
highly sensitive to exterior threat; and other areas where the county determines
that there is a clear need for enhanced security.

Audio surveillance is prohibited where there is reasonable expectation of privacy
including, but not limited to, restrooms, locker rooms, employee break rooms,
clothing changing areas, and fire district employee bedrooms and sleeping areas.
Audio surveillance is prohibited in employee offices and at employee work
stations, except as may be appropriate under section (IV)(B) above.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 3 of 8



D. A prominent sign(s) must be displayed in a conspicuous part(s) of the area under
audio surveillance. The locations must include, but are not limited to, the
entrance of that area. The sign must clearly advise all persons that the subject
area is under audio surveillance.

E. Audio recordings by the employer, employees, and members of the public, not
associated with this section, will conform to the applicable provisions of this
policy and the NRS.

Data Storage and Security

F. Surveillance recording systems must be maintained within a secured location
within a county building(s). The entrance to the room or area containing the
surveillance recording system must be located so that it is not readily accessible
by employees or the general public, and it must be locked at all times except
during maintenance or repairs and when under direct supervision by the
authorized person(s). Electronic safeguards will be incorporated into the system
and maintained including, but not limited to, password protection, well-managed
firewalls, and encryption to protect the systems from hackers, unauthorized users,
and unauthorized use. The digital system must incorporate a video verification
encryption code (watermark).

G. Surveillance recording will be stored for a minimum of 14 days after the initial
recordings and for a maximum of 60 days after the initial recording. The
maximum period may be deviated slightly according to recording system
parameters for data writing over hard-drives.

Specific recordings may be retained for longer periods when they are suspected to
contain evidence of misconduct, policy violations, crimes, or matters which are
under investigation by law enforcement officials, the Administrative Officer
and/or Personnel Director, and/or the County Manager. Upon completion of the
investigation, the subject recordings must be erased from the surveillance system
in accordance with the time periods shown in this section, but the subject
recordings may be stored separately with the investigation file or case file in
accordance with state and county records retention laws.

H. Surveillance system failures must be documented and reported to the County
Manager or his/her designee. Diligence must be taken by the appropriate
employee(s) to remedy the system failure promptly. The County Manager or
his/her designee must be notified when the remedy is completed.

Viewing Requests

Requests for review of surveillance recordings will be regulated as follows.
A. Law Enforcement and Court Order Requests:

a. Requests by law enforcement officials to view or obtain surveillance
recordings must be presented to the County Manager. If the County
Manager is unavailable, the requests will be presented to his/her designee
or to the Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director. Law

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 4 of 8



enforcement officials may review the recordings, in which case such
records would be released only pursuant to a valid court order.

In the event of a search warrant, which is executable immediately, the
County Manager or his/her designee will comply with the search warrant
and consult immediately with the District Attorney’s Office.

Upon receipt of a subpoena or other court order, the County Manager or
his/her designee will consult with the District Attorney’s Office to
determine if the document is in proper form and that good cause for its
issuance in a court of proper jurisdiction is demonstrated. If not, the
County Manager or his/her designee will insist any defect be remedied
before releasing records.

B. Employee Requests:

a.

All viewing request by county employees must be submitted to the County
Manager or his/her designee in writing. Request for viewing will be
limited to those employees or county officials with a direct interest in the
recording as authorized by the County Manager or Emergency
Management Director with concurrence by the County Manager. Only a
portion of the recoding concerning the subject incident or issue will be
made available for viewing.

Approval or denial for viewing will be made by the County Manager or
his/her designee within 5 business days of the request, and so
communicated to the requesting individual.

If approved, recordings will be made available for viewing within 5
business days of the decision. All review of the recordings will occur in the
presence of the County Manager or his/her designee.

To the extent required by law, a written log will be maintained for those
viewing video and audio recordings including the date and location of
review, reason for review, date the recording was made, and the viewer's
written name and his/her signature.

Recordings will remain the property of Storey County and may be
reproduced only in accordance with applicable law and county policies.

C. Public Disclosure

a.

Protection of infrastructure, secure area, and other data from public
requests.

Confidentiality/privacy issues prohibit the general public from reviewing
surveillance recordings that contains information about county employees
and public customers. If the county receives a request from a member of
the public to inspect surveillance recordings which contains employee or
customer information, and the request appears suspicious, the recipient of
the request is advised to file a complaint with the Sheriff’s Office.

All requests for public disclosure of recordings will be presented to the
County Manager or his/her designee.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 5 of 8



VII

VIII.

d. A copy of this policy must be shared with members of the public upon
request.

e. Actual viewing by third-parties, such as the public or media, will be
permitted only at a secure county located as determined by the County
Manager or his/her designee, unless otherwise required by law.

Video and Audio Recording Use by Employees

A.

Employees are prohibited from operating video recorders or other visual/audio
recording devices in areas where confidential personnel information may be
compromised. Such areas may include, but are not limited to, areas where there is
a reasonable expectation of privacy including, but not limited to, restrooms,
locker rooms, clothes changing areas, eic.; the Human Resources Office except
for the designated public area therein,; and vaults, safes, and other areas where
valuable or highly sensitive property or materials are located (e.g., an office
vault, safe, or equipment stations); and areas designated by the Emergency
Management Director as high security or highly sensitive to exterior threal.

The County Manager or Administrative Officer and/or Personnel Director should
be contacted by any person if there is question as to where video and/or audio
recording in any part of the workplace may or may not occur.

Employees are prohibited from operating cameras or other visual/audio
recording devices at staff meetings where company trade secrels or proprietary
business information could be disclosed, except when there exists knowledge and
consent of every person in a room or associated with the subject meeting.

No employee may photograph or video another employee’s personnel record or
sensitive identification except as allowed for official business such as in the
Human Resources or Comptroller’s offices.

Employees may record workplace activities when the recording is performed in
such a manner not prohibited by law and when the recording does not
compromise confidential information as described above.

Video and Audio Recording by Members of the Public

A

Any member of the public may video and/or audio record within public areas of
county property and buildings, and areas visible from public places, including
buildings, office areas, work stations, and other areas which are visible from the
public place. This activity is sometimes referred by certain members of the public
as a “First Amendment Audit”.

Member of the public are prohibited from video and audio recording within areas
not accessible to the public.

Each county office must designate a place and/or places in which the public is
allowed to access (e.g., front service counter area, seating areas, lobby areas, elc.
within each office). These public places must be identified as such by highly
visible and conspicuously placed signage (e.g., “employees only beyond this

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 6 of 8



[T

point”, “no public access”, etc.). Outdoors areas around buildings and offices
where public access is restricted must be posted as such, but those areas may not
include public streets, sidewalks, parks, and other spaces open to the public.
Outdoor job sites, construction areas, and other such areas must be cordoned off
and/or demonstrated clearly as restricted areas. Employee vehicles and
equipment are not considered public places and do not need to be marked as
such. Private property in which county business may be conducted is not
considered a public place for the purpose of this policy.

. No member of the public video and/or audio recording in accordance with this
policy may obstruct, disrupt, or interfere with business, obstruct openings or
public access and circulation; physically or verbally harass, bully, intimidate, or
disturb employees, vendors, or other persons in the vicinity, or violate any law or
county policy. Persons exhibiting such behavior will be asked kindly by county
staff to leave the premises. If the person refuses to leave the premises after being
asked to do so, the employee will exercise appropriate effort to not escalate the
situation with the person, and s/he will promptly contact the Sheriff’s Office for
assistance.

Whether or not it is necessary to contact law enforcement, the following
guidelines should be followed when a member of the public attempts to video
and/or audio record a county employee at the workplace.

a. Allow the person to conduct the recording within the public place.
b. Remain verbally and physically calm.

c. Ifitis necessary to engage in conversation, respond verbally 1o the person
calmly no matter what his/her demeanor.

Qu

Inform the person of the parameters of the immediate public place.
Do not engage in argument with the person.
Do not confront the person physically.

Do not counter-video record the person.

> 00 N o

Avoid photographing the person except as necessary to take a photograph
that may be provided to law enforcement, emergency management, the
department head, and/or county officials. Do not photograph as a
mechanism to instigate the person.

i. Ignore the person as much as possible. Conduct business as usual despite
being recorded. Leave the immediate room out of his/her sight if
necessary. However, do not leave sensitive information or materials
unsupervised.

j.  Attempt to remember features of the person such as facial features, hair
and facial hair color, height and build, clothing, and unique features such
as tattoos, scars, piercings, elc.

k. Attempt to obtain the person’s vehicle make, model, approximate
vintage/vear, license plate number, and identifiable features such as
bumper stickers, body damage, elc.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 7 of 8



I Report the incident to the department head as soon as possible regardless
if the incident was hostile or not. Report the incident to the Emergency
Management Director and County Manager if the person appeared to be
suspicious or if the person is believed to be a potential future threat 10 the
county, any person, or the community.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: This policy will be reviewed on an annual basis by
the Information Technology Director.

Storey County Administrative Policies and Procedures
Page 8 of 8



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Dfib[ 32018 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
Tax Roll for Overassessment

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961
4. Staff summary: Numerous tenants with taxable personal property located at the Switch facility
failed to file a timely declaration this year. They have asked us to recalculate the 2017-18

unsecured taxes based on new information that they have provided to our office after the
close of the unsecured roll.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letters with adjusted assessed value and supporting
documentation..
6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. %evzewed by:
' artment Head . Department Name: Assessor’s Office
B AL o) P

T unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Boafd action:
(] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

oy

Agenda Item No. £ YT



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street

P.0.Box 494

Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR

(775) 8470961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

June 25, 2018

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners

Re: DC 000006, Continental Data Graphics

The above referenced account was processed and billed based on an estimate of value pursuant

to NRS 361.265 for the 2017-18 tax year. The taxpayer provided a detailed asset listing after the
close of the Unsecured Tax Roll. The corrected assessed value should be (also see attached):

2017-18 Original Adjustment Amended
Personal Property Acquisition Cost 1,000,000 (944,573} 55,427
Personal Property Assessed Value 350,000 (330,601) 19,399
Improvements Assessed Value - - -
Abatement (in Tax $S)
2017-18 Unsecured TaxBillAmt | $  12,112.45 [ $ (11,441.11){ $§ 671.34

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer and/or Assessor to make the changes
and issue an amended bill. No refund is necessary at this time as payment has not been received.

Thank You,

Ik

Tobi WHitten
Senior Appraiser
Storey County Assessor’s Office

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider



Over-the-counter Tax Calculation for Personal Property PP4300A

Current Tax Year: 2018 (2017-18)

Enter the Following Information:

Base Value or Cost...v v evvurrn 55,427

Year (for Cost Index, % Good).. 2017

Current Quarter: 4

Tax Year... 2018 (2017-18)
District... 12.2

Secured/Unsecured.............. U (8/0) INDUSTRIAL GID

Life Schedule Table to use..... Y05 FIVE YEAR LIFE

(F4=List Tables for given Tax Year)

Number of Months to Prorate.... 12 (1-12)

Additional Assessed Value......

Exemptions Amount.............. Tax Rate..: 3.4607

Calculated Values:

Assessed Value................: 19,399 Cost Index......: 1.000

Exemptions Amount.............: 0 Percent Good....: 100.0

Net Assessed Value............ : 19,399 Assessment Ratio: .35

Tax Amount..........coouvunenn : 671.34

First Payment Amount.......... : 167.97 if Split into 4 Installments
223.86 if Split into 3 Installments
335.70 if Split into 2 Installments

Press Enter to Calculate Values F1l2=End



Continential Data Graphics
Storey County
Asset Listing as of 7/1/17

Assessor Account Owner Class Owner Class DAcq Date  Asset # Asset Description Cost (O} Site Address 1 Site City
DC 000006 9 Computers 4/25/2017 162263 -T2 COHESITY GLOBAL BACKUP PROJECT 55,427 1 Superioop Circle McCarran ]
JUN 22 2018
STOREY COUNTY

ASSESSOR'S OFFICE




Tobi Whitten —————

From: Noyes (US), Dana E <dana.e.noyes@boeing.com>
Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 3:52 PM

To: Tobi Whitten

Subject: RE: 2017 Asset Listing for Continental Data Graphics
Tobi,

Yes this is server equipment.

Thanks,

Dana Noyes

Tax Systems Specialist
Desk (206) 662-2711
Cell (206) 679-3685

From: Tobi Whitten [mailto:twhitten@storeycounty.org]
Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 12:03 PM

To: Noyes (US), Dana E <dana.e.noyes@boeing.com>
Subject: RE: 2017 Asset Listing for Continental Data Graphics

Dana,
I have received the 2017 asset listing and confirmation of your billing address.

Can you confirm that this item is in fact computer equipment and not server equipment? The two types of equipment
are categorized differently in the Nevada property tax system.

Once that is confirmed, | will process a revision request and send it through our next County Commissioners’ meeting for
approval.

Thank you,

Tobi Uhkitten
SENTOR APPRAISER
Storey COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OTFFICE
(775) 847-0901 LXT. 4
(775) 847-0904 1AX
TWHITTEN@STOREYCOU

Srorpy County 1s anv Bouat OerorrunNity Proviper ant EmeLoYER.

From: Noyes (US), Dana E [mallto:dana.e.noyes@boeing.com]
Sent: Friday, June 22, 2018 11:01 AM

1



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South B Street
P.O, Box 494

virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR
(775) 847-0961 Phone
(775) 8470904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org
June 25, 2018

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners
Re: DC 000028, Cirrus Solutions
The above referenced account was processed and billed based on an estimate of value pursuant

to NRS 361.265 for the 2017-18 tax year. The taxpayer provided a detailed asset listing after the
close of the Unsecured Tax Roll. The corrected assessed value should be (also see attached):

2017-18 Original Adjustment Amended
Personal Property Acquisition Cost 1,000,000 (972,800 27,200
Personal Property Assessed Value 350,000 (347,061) 2,939

Improvements Assessed Value - - -
Abatement {in Tax $5)
2017-18 Unsecured TaxBillAmt | $  12,112.45 | S (12,010.74)} $ 101,71

Please approve these corrections, and advise the Treasurer and/or Assessor to make the changes
and issue an amended bill. No refund is necessary at this time as payment has not been received.

Thank You,

Tobi Whitten
Senior Appraiser
Storey County Assessor’s Office

Storey County Is an Equal Opportunity Provider



Over-the-counter Tax Calculation for Personal Property
2018

Current Tax Year:

Enter the Following Information:

Base Value or Cost

-------------

Year (for Cost Index, % Good)..
Secured/Unsecured. ........oo....
Life Schedule Table to use.....

{F4=List Tables for
Number of Months to Prorate....
Additional Assessed Value......
Exemptions Amount............

Calculated Values:

Assessed Value.......
Exemptions Amount.............:
Net Assessed Value

-------------

Tax Amount............ e :
First Payment Amount

-----------

Press Enter to Calculate Values

(2017-18) C

2013
T (5/U)
Y05 FIVE YEAR

given Tax Year)

12 (1-12)

305
0
305

10.55
2.72
3.57
5.30

F12=End

PP4300A

urrent Quarter: 4
Tax Year... 2018 (2017-18)
District... 12.2
INDUSTRIAL GID
LIFE
Tax Rate..: 3.4607
Cost Index......: 1.030
Percent Good....: 13.0
Assessment Ratio: .35

if Split into 4 Installments
if Split into 3 Installments
if split into 2 Installments



Over-the-counter Tax Calculation for Personal Property PP4300A
Current Tax Year: 2018 (2017-18) Current Quarter: 4

Enter the Following Information:

Base Value or Cost............. 20,700 Tax Year... 2018 (2017-18)

Year (for Cost Index, % Good).. 2015 District... 12.2

Secured/Unsecured. ............. U (s/u) INDUSTRIAL GID

Life Schedule Table to use..... Y05 FIVE YEAR LIFE

(F4=List Tables for given Tax Year)

Number of Months to Prorate.... 12 (1-12)

Additional Assessed Value......

Exemptions Amount.............. Tax Rate..: 3.4607
Calculated Values:

Agsessed Value................: 2,634 Cost Index......: 1.010

Exemptions Amount............. : 0 Percent Good....: 36.0

Net Assessed Value............: 2,634 Assessment Ratio: .35

TaX AMOUNE . « v v v v vt v s es e nnnnn? 91.16

First Payment Amount......... L 22.85 if Split into 4 Installments

30.44 if Split into 3 Installments
45.59 if Split into 2 Installments

Press Enter to Calculate Values F1l2=End



Jun 07 2018 0313PM HP Fax page 1

i R
ok i,
i 3
)
b B
; i
i
Y

iy f S nw 7

SOLUTIONS

MEL AT LA EARED (ALY

RECEIVED

June 7, 2018

JUN T 2018
Via Facsimile Transmission
775.847.0904 STOREY COUNTY
Tobi Whitten ASSESSOR'S OFFICE
Storey County Assessor

Re: DC 000028

Dear Ms. Whitten:

We are in receipt of your letter dated May 24, 2018 which was mailed the day we left
for vacation aut of the country to return on Thursday, June 6 at 7 p.m. | am responding at the
earliest possible time considering we did not receive your request until yesterday.

Please find enclosed our statement of business equipment which, as you can see, does
not come close to the unilateral guess of $1,000,000.00. Please update our records and
forward a corrected personal property bilf. Thank you in advance far your time.

Laura West

Enclosures

1236 SW Estates Place * Palm City, Florida 34990



Jun 07 2018 0313PM HP Fax page 2

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider
P.O. BOX 494
VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440 File this form at StoreyCounty,org/137/forms
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org using the online ACCESS CODE at left
Date Mailed: 05/24/18 Access Code: IBV82R TO BE COMI"L TBD BY TAXP.
Account #:  DC 000028 Unsecured 005-011-48 Business type: 5_% OJ'*“
Tax Year: 2017-18 NAICS Code: Mail address, if’ dlffcrem.
Location: 1 SUPERLOOP CIRCLE - 107279 C962 Location, if different: __4 ; \
Person completing form: aOah0E VST
Contact person:
CIRRUS SOLUTIONS Tidle: - i
1236 SW ESTATES PLACE Phone: F ok VYDA 2 Ia‘i {
PALM CITY, FL 34990 Fax:

\ .
email _ | A A0 & & S@@“ U,

STATEMENT OF BUSINESS EQUIPMENT / ASSETS / PERSONAL PROPERTY
— INSTRUCTIONS -

IN ACCORDANCE WITH NEVADA REVISED STATUTE 361.265 AND OTHER STATUTES, AS NOTED:
As a business owner you are required to submit & sworn statement of business equipment/assets (also known as personal property) in
your possession as of July 1, 2017,

Your staternent must be returned not later than July 31, 2017, except for a statement mailed to the taxpayer after July 15, in which
case it must be returned within 15 days after demand for its return is made;
Upon written petition of the propert) owner showmg good cause, the assessor may grant one or more 30-day extensions;

5 vm this r mr 's Office, nepglects or refuses gg ng& ibe statement herein p_g:g ;ggg _t_ or, the

The mformauon you prov1de is subj ect to vcnﬁcauon in accordam,e with Ne\ ada Revised Statute 361.263;
You will receive a new declaration each year as long as the business remains active. You will be asked to enter changes from the
previous year, including all acquisitions and disposals of business equipment/assets/personal property.

WHEN FREPARING YOUR EQUIPMENT/ASSET/PERSONAL PROPERTY LIST, PLEASE INCLUDE:

All equipment/assets/personal property:
Owned, rented, leased, borrowed, gifted, used, or in your possession as of July 1, 2017, regardless of actual owner,
That have been fully depreciated out for IRS purposes but are still in your possession;
Regardless of age, still in your possession, not previously reported.

Total acquisition cost includes:
Your original purchase price (if you did not purchase the property, your estimate of its value at time of receipt),
The cost of any impravements (additions to or renovations of the property) other than routine maintenance/repairs;
Transportation costs;
{nstallation and set up costs necessary to make the property operational.

WHEN PREPARING YOUR EQUIPMENT/ASSET/PERSONAL PROPERTY LIST, PLEASE DO NOT INCLUDE:
Any equipment/assets/personal property acquired after July 1, 2017,
Sales tax;,
Licensed vehicles subject to the Department of Motor Vehicles governmental service tax,
Inventory held for resale;
Raw materials held for manufacturing into finished goods;
Supplies that are consumed during day-to-day operations, that have a useful life of less than one yeat.

LEASEDILOANED EQUIPMENT/ASSETS/PERSONAL PROPERTY:

Plesse provide documentation (e.g., a copy of your lease agreement) should the lessor be the responsible party; otherwise, the assessor

will maintain that the lessee is responsible for the personal property taxes;,
Include: capital lease, operating lease, true lease, dollar buyout lease, nominal lease, conditional sale contract, loaned items, etc.
If you are in the business of leasing/loaning equipment to others:

Please provide the physical location address of each asset,

If a lease has terminated, indicate if the lessee acquired the property or if the property was returned to the lessor.



Jun 07 2018 0313PM HP Fax page 4

CIRRUS SOLUTIONS DC 000028, Page 2

PLEASE CHECK IF APPLICABLE:

Equipment is declared in another county, County;
No equipment is used in the business. Please explain:
Shared equipment is owned and reported by another business at the same location.

Their business name: Phone number:
Out of business. Date business ceased:

How was equipment/assets/personal property disposed of’
If' to enother business or person; their name, address, phone:
Business sold. Date sold:
Soid to (name, address, phone):

ACSEUISI’I‘!ONS not p.revlous!z Qggned (see list beginning on page 3

Delcription and Quantity Year Acquired | Total Acquisition Cost
ENY 2012 SOO=
Pc? A AX ’U\,. 208 AOIS oSO
Wy ﬁrxm OIS LW, OO0

| Cusco 0wk D7 WO RS R0 —

{(Use additional sheet(s) if needed.)

LEASED/LOANED PROPERTY: Documnentation is required to confirm lessor tax liability.
SIncmde: cggital lease, %eraﬁng lemz true lease, dollar bgzout lease, nominal lease‘ conditional sale contract, loancd items, ete.)

I.essor/Lessee #1~Name, mailing address, phone:

Asset#or Year Installed
Description and Quantity Customer # Acquired Cost
VD Z
N
q /
r - "y
Lessor/Lessee #2-Name, mailing address, phone: /

,\QQ V%“

Lessor/Lessee #3-Name, mailmg address, phone: /
[0 oSt /
W [
N

(Use additional sheet(s) if needed.)



Jun 07 2018 03:13PM HP Fax page 3

w

CIRRUS SOLUTIONS DC 000028, Page 3

Please carefully review the following list of previously reported property and cross out any items that are no longer in your
possession.

PREVIOUSLY REPQO EQUIPMENT/ASS RSONAL PROPERTY: < /
Item # | D ion _ ' qu_y_z(_cguired =1_\-gg§titm Cost
1 *+SERVER EQUIPMB TIMATE*** / A 2017 1,000,000

NO ACQUISITIONS, LEASES/LOANS, OR DISPOSALS HAVE OCCURRED SINCE LAST REPORT. Check here:

SIGNATURE: Under penalty of perjury, I do hereby declare and affirm that [ have examined ths entire declaration and any changes

migde therein agy to the best of my knowledge, believe that it is correct and complete. (NRS 361.265)
L4 A Iy
N ' Lo\ MSE Cioros Solohiens
pay Al Print taxpayer’s name Title

%/ ’-Vl‘@ 7’%\9\23\/3«4% \/@Jm%mm?g
ate Phone E-mail address ‘

Please return all pages of this statement to the Assessor's Office and make a copy for your records,




Jun 07 2018 0313PM HP Fax page 5

m Sm STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
26 South 8 Street

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR P.0.BoX 434
virginia City, NV 88440

(775) 8470961 Phone
(775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@StoreyCounty.org

May 24, 2018

Cirrus Solutions

ATTN: Laura West
1236 SW Estates Place
Palm City, FL 34990

Dear Ms. West,

Your letter regarding the 2017-18 personal property tax bill for Cirrus Solutions assets located in
Storey County has been recelved. Our office was informed by the Switch datacenter at 1 Superioop
Circle in McCarran, Nevada that Cirrus Solutions had assets at that location as of the lien date of July
1, 2017. You have received the enclosed bill in accordance with Nevada Revised Statute (NRS)
361.265.

Our office sent you a business personal property declaration on September 12, 2017, asking fora
detailed listing of assets as required by NRS 361.265. After some time had passed and no response
was received, we sent out a demand letter on January 29, 2018 requesting the information again. The
demand letter explained that if we did not receive a response from you within 15 days, an estimate of
value would be made. The bill was generated based on that estimate of value. A copy of NRS
361.265 is enclosed for your review.

if you can provide an accurate listing of assets located in Storey County to this office by Thursday,
May 31, 2018 | will make any necessary adjustments and issue an amended bill. Another copy of the
2017-18 personal property declaration is also enclosed, If you did not yet have assets at the Switch
location in Storey County as of the July 1, 2017 lien date, thers is a place on page 2 to indicate when
the assets were moved in. Please send the completed declaration back to me via email or fax to
expedite this process.

Should you have any further questions or concerns regarding this, please don't hesitate to contact me
directly by any of the means listed below.

Thank you,
Tobi Whitten

Senior Appraiser

Storoy County Assessor's Office
(775) 847-0961 ext. 4

(775) 847-0904 fax
twhitten@storeycounty.org

encl.

Storey County & an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 3, 2018 Estimate of time required: 0-5 mins

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: For Possible Action — Approval — Assessor’s Recommended Corrections to Unsecured
Tax Roll for Clerical Error

2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: Tobi Whitten
Department: Assessor’s Office Telephone: 847-0961

4. Staff summary: Renown Health (account #DC 000013) was granted a retroactive Colocated
Business Abatement pursuant to NRS 360.754 applicable to their reported equipment
located at the Switch Data Center in McCarran, NV. The Assessor’s Office was notified of
this Abatement and its retroactive effective date well after the account had been billed and
after the close of the 2017-18 Unsecured Tax Roll. This could be considered a clerical error
to be corrected pursuant to NRS 361.765.

5. Supporting materials: Please see attached letter with adjusted abatement and tax bill amount,
as well as related email correspondence between the Assessor’s Office, the Governor’s Office of
Economic Development, and the Nevada Department of Taxation.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: ____ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
___ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
%ﬁg—wa%e@gtgem %acl‘5 £D DCVQ Department Name: Assessor’s Office

@1{/ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

e

Agenda Item No.

Cr

e



STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
m , : 26 South B Street
P.0. Box 494

Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY ASSESSOR
(775) 847-0961 Phone
{775) 847-0904 Fax
Assessor@storeyCounty.org
June 21, 2018

Memo to: Storey County Commissioners
Re: DC 000013, Renown Health

The above referenced account was processed and billed on April 30, 2018 based on a Personal
Property Declaration submitted by the taxpayer to the Assessor’s Office for the 2017-18 tax year.
After the unsecured taxes were billed for 2017-18, our office received notification on May 29,
2018 from the Governor’s Office of Economic Development (GOED) that the taxpayer had been
approved for a Colocated Business Abatement pursuant to NRS 360.754 applicable to their
equipment located at the Switch Data Center in McCarran, NV. The taxpayer was told by Switch
that the abatement could be backdated if approved by the NV Department of Taxation
(Taxation). After multiple inquiries to both Taxation and GOED, on June 21, 2018 wc finally
received a decision from Taxation that the abatement was given a retroactive effective date of
January 18, 2017. Therefore based on Taxation’s decision, we are requesting the following
amendment to the 2017-18 unsecured tax bill for Renown Health, DC 000013:

2017-18 Original Adjustment Amended
Personal Property Acquisition Cost 7,311,816 - 7,311,816
Personal Property Assessed Value 2,559,136 - 2,559,136
Improvements Assessed Value - - -
Abatement {in Tax $S)| § - $ (66,423.02)
2017-18 Unsecured TaxBillAmt | S 88,564.02 | § (66,423.02)[ S ~ 22,141.00

Pursuant to NRS 361.765, please approve this correction, and advise the Treasurer and/or
Assessor to make the changes to the unsecured tax roll and issue an amended tax bill to Renown
Health. No refund is necessary as payment has not been made at this time.

Thank You,
Tobi Whitten

Senior Appraiser
Storey County Assessor’s Office

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider



PP5110 Storey County 06/21/18 Page 1
summary for Account # DC 000013 16:04:47

Property Location: 1 SUPERLOOP CIRCLE - 105005 R895

Billed to........: RENCWN HEALTH Parcel #: 005-011-48
1155 MILL ST, MAILSTOP 24 District: 12.2
RENO, NV 89521

Ad Valorem Special Penalties & Total Amount. Amount
Taxes Assessments Interest Charged Paid owed

Current Year (17-18) Taxes

Inst4 88,564.02 88,564.02 .00 88,564.02
TOTALS 88,564.02 .00 .00 88,564.02 .00 88,564.02
Mmoo SmmIEaRRE SRARNREINSRSEREREN RRDESRRmImmams mompmm it o miss e Soepom ot o ip oA . 2 e SO T T T MR M

Billing and Payment History

07/01/17 - 06/21/18 Original
Type Billed to / Payer / Reason Date Amount Balance Account #
17-18 Bill RENOWN HEALTH 04/30/18 88, 564 .02 88,564.02
S % ABATEMENT
[

T Bl
pAFTEL.
ARATEMERT.



Tobi Whitten

From: Shelli Long <s.long@tax.state.nv.us>

Sent: Thursday, June 21, 2018 2:00 PM

To: Tobi Whitten

Cc: Lezlie Helget; Melanie Sheldon; Larry Walsh

Subject: RE: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health
Hi Tobi,

We are going to use an effective date of 01/18/17 for Renown Health — Storey County. Let me know if you have any
questions. - -

Shelli Long
Tax Examiner
Department of Taxation

Ph # : 775-684-2124
Fax # : 775-684-2020
Email Address: s.long@tax.state.nv.us

CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT: This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for those to which it is
addressed and may contain information which is privileged, confidential and prohibited from disclosure and unauthorized
use under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient of this e-mail, you are hereby notified that any use,
dissemination, or copying of this e-mail or the information contained in this e-mail is strictly prohibited by the sender. If
you have received this transmission in error, please return the material received to the sender and delete all copies from

your system,

From: Tobi Whitten [mailto:twhitten@storeycounty.org]

Sent: Thursday, June 21, 2018 1:45 PM

To: Melanie Sheldon; Larry Walsh

Cc: Shelli Long; Lezlie Heiget

Subject: RE: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health

Hello Melanie,

As of today, we still have not been given the effective date of the Renown colocation abatement agreement for Storey
County, 1am just checking to see if | have missed an email along the way.

Thank you,
Tobi

From: Melanie Sheldon [mailto;msheldon@diversifynevada.com]

Sent: Friday, June 08, 2018 5:00 PM

To: Tobi Whitten <twhitten@storeycounty.org>; Larry Walsh <lwalsh@tax.state.nv.us>
Cc: Shelli Long <s.long@tax.state.nv.us>; Lezlie Helget <lhelget@tax.state.nv.us>
Subject: RE: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health,

Let me know if | can provide any further information on this or send any questions back to Switch.

Have a great weekend.



Melanie Sheldon

Program Manager

Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development

555 E. Washington Ave., Suite 5400, Las Vegas, NV 89101
Main: (702) 486-2700 ‘

Office: (702) 486-2702

Cell: (702) 526-0772

msheldon@diversifynevada.com
www diversifynevada com

Nevada Governor’s Office of
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

FEmpowering Sucress

Follow us: , ﬂ

From: Tobi Whitten [mailto:twhitten@storeycounty.org]

Sent: Tuesday, June 05, 2018 4:26 PM

To: Melanie Sheldon <msheldon@diversifynevada.com>; Larry Walsh <lwalsh@tax.state.nv.us>
Cc: Shelli Long <s.long@tax.state.nv.us>; Lezlie Helget <lhelget@tax.state.nv.us>

Subject: RE: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health

Good afternoon,

[ am just checking in to see if an effective date for the Storey County colocation abatement for Renown has been
determined yet?

Thank you,

SENTOR APPRAISLR

Storey COUNTY ASSESSOR'S QFFICL
(775) 847-0061 EXT. 4

(7733 847-0904 EAX
TWHITTEN@STOREYCOUNTY.ORG

Storey Counry 1s an Eouar OPPORTUNITY PROVIDER AND EMPLOYER.

From: Melanie Sheldon [mailto:msheldon@diversifynevada.com]

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 2:31 PM

To: Larry Walsh <iwalsh@tax.state.nv.us>

Cc: Tobi Whitten <twhitten@storeycounty.org>; Shelli Long <s.long@tax.state.nv.us>; Lezlie Helget
<lhelget@tax.state.nv.us>

Subject: RE: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health

Many thanks Larry and sorry for the confusion.

Melanie Sheldon
Program Manager



Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development

555 E. Washington Ave., Suite 5400, Las Vegas, NV 89101
Main: (702) 486-2700

Office: (702) 486-2702

Cell: (702) 526-0772

msheldon@diversifynevada.com
www.diversifynevada.com

Nevada Governor's Office of
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Fmpowering Mucess

Follow us: ’ [i

From: Larry Walsh

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 2:17 PM

To: Melanie Sheldon <msheldon@diversifynevada.com>; Tobi Whitten <twhitten@storeycounty.org>; Shelli Long
<s.long@tax.state.nv.us>; Lezlie Helget <lhelget@tax.state.nv.us>

Cc: Adrienne Cammareri <acammareri@switch.com>

Subject: RE: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health

Melanie,

Lezlie is out of the office today and I will run this by her as far as back dating the abatement packet to 02-01-17.
Apparently according to a letter in our files dated 12/31/12, Renown has been granted sales/use tax exempt status as a
charitable organization and are exempt from paying sales/use tax on direct purchases of tangible personal property. So
the only implication would be for property tax purposes. I'll let Lezlie reply.

Thanks,

Larry

From: Melanie Sheldon

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 1:55 PM

To: Tobi Whitten; Larry Walsh; Shelli Long

Cc: Adrienne Cammareri

Subject: RE: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health

Hi All,

Below is the message | received from Switch regarding the Renown collocated abatement. My apologies for any
confusion. They do have an abatement for their Clark County location (not Washoe) and the one | sent today was for
Storey County. Switch were hoping this could be backdated to the same date as the Clark County one if this is possible.

This Switch customer applied for an abatement back in February of 2017 however they had not provided the Colocation
agreement form for their Storey County location at the time. Here is the form. Would you please update your records for
this as well and inform Storey county that they qualify for abatement

Kind regards,

Melanie Sheldon
Program Manager
Nevada Governor’s Office of Economic Development

555 E. Washington Ave., Suite 5400, Las Vegas, NV 89101
Main: (702) 486-2700



Office: (702) 486-2702

Cell; (702) 526-0772
msheldon@diversifynevada.com
www.diversifynevada.com

Nevada Governar's Office of
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Empotpering Success

Follow us: ’

From: Tobi Whitten [mailto:twhitten@storevcounty.org]

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 1:46 PM

To: Melanie Sheldon <msheldon@diversifynevada.com>

Subject: RE: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health

Hi Melanie,
Was this abatement in effect as of July 1, 2017?

Thank you,
Tobi

Tobi Ukitten
SENTOR APPRAISER

Storty COUNTY ASSESSOR'S OQFHICE
(775) 847-0961 EXT. 4

(775) 847-0904 FAX
TWHITTEN@STOREYCOUNTY.ORG

Sronsy Counry 1s an EqQuat OpporTUNITY PROVIDER AND EMPLOYER.

From: Melanie Sheldon [mailto:msheldon@diversifynevada.com]

Sent: Tues Aay 29, 2018 9:46 AM

To: Shelli Long <s.long@tax.state.nv.us>; Larry Walsh <lwalsh@tax.state.ny.us>; Assessor <assessor@storeycounty.ofg>;
Tobi Whitten <twhitten@storeycounty.org>; Pat Whitten <pwhitten@storeycounty.org>

Cc: William Chuck Bailey <wcbailey@tax.state.nv.us>; Mariah Heriman <mheriman@diversifynevada.com>; Adrienne
Cammareri <acammareri@switch.com>

Subject: Approved Colocated Tenants of Switch - Renown Health

Good morning All,

Per NRS 360.754 our office can approve partial abatements for colocated businesses at a data center as long as they
meet the requirements below. We have received the attached request for tenant personal property abatements for the
Switch Data Center.

Piease do not hesitate to reach out to me with questions.



i ¥

5. If the Office of Economic Development approves an application for a partial abatement pursuant to this section, the Office may also
approve a partial abatement of taxes for each colocated business that enters into a contract to use or occupy, for a period of at least 2
years, all or a portion of the new or expanded data center. Each such colocated business shall obtain a state business registration issued
by the Secretary of State. The percentage amount of a partial abatement approved for a colocated business pursuant to this subsection
must not excecd the percentage amount of the partial abatement approved for the data center. The duration of a partial abatement
approved for a colocated business pursuant to this subsection must not exceed the duration of the contract or contracts entered into
between the colocated business and the data center, including the duration of any contract or contracts extended or renewed by the
parties. If a colocated business ccases to meet the requirements set forth in this subsection, the colocated business shall repay the amount
of the abatement that was allowed in the same manner in which a data center is required by subsection 7 to repay the Department or a
county treasurer. If a data center ceases to meet the requirements of subsection 2 or ceases operation before the time specified in the
agreement described in paragraph (b) of subsection 2, any partial abatement approved for a colocated business ceases to be in effect, but
the colocated business is not required to repay the amount of the abatement that was allowed before the date on which the abatement
ceases to be in effect. A data center shall provide the Executive Director of the Office and the Department with a list of the colocated
businesses that are qualified to receive a partial abatement pursuant to this subsection and shall notify the Executive Director within 30
days after any change to the list. The Executive Director shall provide the list and any updates to the list to the Department and the
county treasurer of each affected county.

Kind regards,

Melanie Sheldon

Program Manager

Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development

555 E. Washington Ave., Suite 5400, Las Vegas, NV 89101
Main: (702) 486-2700

Office; (702) 486-2702

Cell: (702) 526-0772

msheldon@diversifynevada.com

www.diversifynevada.com

Nevada Governor's Office of
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Tmprarering Sao{vss

Foliow us: ,



Meeting dafe: July 3, 2018

Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1.

2.

Title; For possible action, approval of the Treasurer Report for May 2018.

Recommended motion; Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.

Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens

Department: Treasurer

Contact Number: 775.847.0969

Staff Summary: Monthly report is attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Department Name: Treasurer

6. Fiscal Impact: 0
7. Legal review required: No
8. Reviewed by:
@ Department Head
( f%Munty Manager

9. Board Action:

Other Agency Review:

[ ] Approved

] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[
[

] Continued

!

i

=



TTYOV'SET'Z §  69°6TY'EY $ - $ 86'8ST0ET $ 9TVIS'O $ V6'SLVEZE $ SO'€L9T$ 99/06'8$ 80°6E6'S S ETLEY'00T § 9€'S69'6Z $ BTEV6'SB $ TE'SLP'StP § 8L'9ZE'SSL $ 69°LET'L6Z $  TWLOLANVUD

- $ - $ - s - s - $ - $ 1510 24
- $ 1510 Xd
v v’ $ - $ - S - $ - $ 05'990T $ 188 $ Lg67 $ 86T $ - $ T6'L6 S LEEYT $ VLBWT $ S6'69Y'E  $ 1S1Q XW
- $ - $ - s - $ - $ 1510 2d'Xd
JSIN
86°/99'T/T'Z § 696Tb'Sr$ - ¢ B86'8STOET $ 9TPB9 $ S6'60EPIE $ ST'Z6ST$ L1°£S9'8S OETLLSS TLEIN'86 $ [L79S8'8T % 96°TIS'E8 S LV'YS8Z€r § 90°999'26Z § 66'996'69C $  DI3SNNIVLIOL
uswhedsang
€6°028'S9T'T ¢ LYYIEEY $ YEEVE'6ZT $ V0’86 $ TEBYSEIE $ 98065T$ 6T 998 S LELSL'SS S6'S/8L6 $ SEOBL'BT S 0960E'€8 $ SSSO8TEY $ OETYY'TISL $ 097TL'89T $ 810¢/L102
, S0'LY8'S $ wsor ¢ v9'STE $ TT9ss § 1vIT9L $ 679 $ 860 $ 66€T $ 9rLLge $ 669 $ 9€Z0T $ TE'BYO'T ¢ 9LETTT  $ SEVSTT $¢  YOINd TVIOL
¥0'652'S $ Twse $ £2'982 $ zTssy $ TL069 $ 1LS $ et $ 89T S 19SIT $ Ire9 $ ISE8T  $ TTIS6 $ 9T $ VSEWT S £102/9102
10°88S $ 086 $ 162 $ 0086 $ €6°0L $ 80 $ 96T $ IET ¢ ST $ 1S9 $ S8'81 $ oLLe $ - $ 180€T $ |e3o3qng
- $ 9102/5107
- $ ST0Z/¥T0T
| 10'885 $ 086 $ 62 $ 0086 $ €60L $ 850 $ 96T S TET $ ST $ 189 $ s881 $ 0LL6 S 18°0€C $ $102/€102
- $ €107/210T
- $ Z107/1102
- $ T107/0T02
| - $ 0102/6002
- $ 600Z/8002
- $ 8002/L00T
HOSSISSV
ﬁ 66'162'LS $ - $ - s - $ 06678'S $ 6V660'8 $ 6029 $ TUTIZ $ VIBYT $ 2SEST S$ LUIPL $ S6°LpI'T $ OTTSI'TT $ 2£099'C $ 6L00L'€C $ SIVIOL LYOdIY
- $ pa4ndag punyay
66'T62°LS ¢ - $ - $ 06'628'S $ 6V'660'8 $ 60L9 $ TTITZ $ PI'BYT $ eSELS'T $ LUTWL  $ S6LPY'T $ OTTSITT $ 2£099°T $ 6L00L'€C $ @IWNIISIVIOL
ss'ovL'st ¢ - $ - $ TTI9E'E $ BLEBTL $ 6L6S ¢ LL66T $ 8SEET § OTLLZ'T $ L6699 $ TYEE6'T $ TSOSODT $ 2L099°C § 62S60'TZ $§ 8T/LTIVIOL
96701 $ 591 S v10 $ svo $ 0g£0 $ 9§ $ TST $ 68V $ sLTe $ EL'ES $ s53s5Y [e1ads
6STYIer S 1T99€'E $ 9TEBCL $ S96S S TEE6L S SBTEET S vETLLT S S¥899  $ EV6I6T $ LL£T00T $ TL099T S 9STIVOTZ § 8102/L102
vSeSL $ - $ - 8 - $ 69°€E9b'T $ TL66L $ 0fL $ SETT $ 9SYT  $ Trove $ oTiL $ EUvIZ  $ 8STOT'T $ - $ 05'609°C $ UONdIVIOL
88°600'7 s - s - s - $ 96889 S 602 $ 197 $ TLET S ive S 86779 S T6'LY $ €E0¥T S ST6IL $ 09°00£T § c10Z/9t0z @301
€89 $ 900 $ 610 $ €10 $ €1 $ €90 $ 81 S e $ wee §  ss9ssy jenads
96889 $ 9TSTS $ 19% $ TGET  $ veEe S S809T S eTLy $ IS8T S vL60L S 8£'8/9T $ £102/9102
95°SES'E $ ELPLLT $ ToLLT $ €9T $ v9L $ 605 $ vbeE8 $ 8TET $ 08€L § SbIsE $ - $ 06106 $ jesoagng
T6TLET $ LP82E  $ 189ST $ €971 $ TED $ S8T S wLSY $ 61zt S WUty $ ET9TC $ - $ T0TIS $  910z/sT0Z IRIOL
$Sassy |enads
LV82E  $ L89ST $ €91 $ IEY $ S8C $ wLSy $ o067t $ ww $ €191 $ T0°CTS $ 9102/510Z
- S - S ST0Z/v107 |eiloL
ssassy [ewads
, N ¢ S102/¥102
. s ¥T0T/E102
YIETT'T $ 9TIPY'T $ SL0TT $ 00T $ €€€ $ ¥TT S OLLE $ 60TT $ 80CE $ 0£991 $ 68'76€ $ €102/2102
- $ T102/1102
- $ 1102/0102
- $ 0102/6002
- S 6002/8007
- $ 800Z/£002
- $ £002/9002
101 %TU/V  LNJUAO  %9Y/V SIILTIYNId  ¥3IW3/3Yi4 HLNOA JOVANI Q3N ONi VIS nov dvd 80 HJS dO HOS qaio LSNani THINID ¥IUNSVYIYL

SST 30S9€-100 YOTIPE-TOO T00 0sZ T00 S8t 010 (1741 090 091 (119 00S-700 100

8107 Ao



00" 00"

00" 00"
-00°STB‘986 00"
-16°2Z0L"'C06 00"
-£8°0%T°LOZ 00"
-~00 " T89'LET'¥ 00-

LS SES’8 [l

£6 05268 00"
-L6° %2009 [
-LB TLE 589 00"
-€0°8TE 00-
-66"%¥T9°€6 00"
-YE 0SB PSTE 00"
-LY €T EET 00"

00" 00"
-BL 98E‘LY 00-
-61°82Z¥'8T 00-
-8L°ST8‘ZS 00"
-8L 8LZ'BIT'T 00"
-Z0°9tL‘6€T 00"
~¥L T9¥‘VOT 00"
-18°8S2'9%% 00°
-00°0S 00°
-€S ETT‘P80'E 00
-€8°¢1%'962 00"

00" 00"
-00°099 00"
-00°000°000°'T 00"
~ELTSYEITLE'T 00"
-GS0 EDT'6ET’'Z 00’
~€Z TBE'EET 00"
-ZE°TGL'6T9 [0

00°STZ €% 00"
-L2°9L8'v8 00"

00° 00"

00 00"

¥S 6%9'66 00°
-9%° 999 00"
~69°6LZ'999 00"

00" 00"
-0T"69€E'06¥ [l

0L°ZL8'SOT 00"

00°002 00"

00°000°2 [Hv

00°00T'T 00"

o€ 6td 00"

0L P68'8BLT’S 00"

05°20Z2'6ST'L 00"

ZVY €06 'SEL’9 00"

00" 00"

00" 00°

0L €TY'S 00°

Z€°89Z'6 00

00" 00"

00° 00"
00" 00°
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
[ 6Z°ZTIL
00" 00"
00" 9L 89
00" 00"
00" 00"
00° . oo’
1 00
[0 00"
00" 00"
00" 0o0”
o0’ 0o-
00" 00"
00" 00-
00 00°
00° 00"
00" 00"
(2 [
00’ 00"
00" 00"
00"’ 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00"’ -89°01§
00" 00"
00" 00°
00" 00"
00" 00"
00° 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00°
00" ST°LST
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" -Zs Les
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
0o 00"
00" 00-
00° 00°
00° 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"

00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00- v0- 758’
00" 00"

‘c LE PESLET S¥ Z8b '
08°€L0°9 £L°950°
»0°8ST 6Z 0% 6T%’
00" 217658
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 20°8S%°
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 9T zZLE’
00" 00"

00" 00°25%
00" 05" T15L°
00° €T €18’
00" 90°912"
00" 05" 09%°
00" 00°0¢
00° 6L°85L"
T€°66€°0T 8L €86 "
00" 00"

oo” 00"

00" 00"
09°0TO LT [ 140
00" 00"

00" 06°598°
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

oo” 00"

00" 00"

00" 00 0TE”

‘1 PELOEFT 8% S8t
00" 00"

00" [e824°M

‘€ 69°9€6 'LLY 6Z°0SZ"
00" 00"

00" 00"
00" 00~
00" 00"
00° 00"
00" 00"
-ST°0Z%'2S0°'T -1 TZL”
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" : 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"

HONV'TYE ONIANZA

1 abeg

LNO SYTASNYAL NI SATISNTAL

SYTHONOA NANOL STTIOWAYA

8102/50 ¥OA
LITHS ONIONYIVE ATHINOW
ONILNNCOOVY S« dTANSVIAUL
JTANSYIAL ALNNOD ATAOLS

00"
00"
00"
T -86°656 'Y
00"
05 -Z1°668°00S
zT -Lo°zLe'L
ov -€5°1ZZ ‘¥ET
0T ~00°5€8°C
00"
00"
9 -1s°L10'T
00"
-00°000°T
00"
€ -SLTTLL'T
-99°L06'8
-00°€€9
1T -6S5°6€%TILT
S -¥6°0%C YY
0¥ -8Z €96 58
602 -TE GS¥ LD
-00°0¢
I8T‘T -00°8%6°0ST‘T
8T -¥8°668°SE
00"
00"
00"
v1 -60°0€9°9¥
-80°12Z'9¢
6%9 -o0"o0ZL LE
-9€°569'62
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
T -00°0TE
LET ~TL 02696
00"
€ -80°6€6°5
886 ‘T -6T LVT‘¥IB'S
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"
60°6¥0°869'8
00"
00"
00"
00"
00"

88e ‘v

00"

00"
~00°ST8'986
-€0°565'658
-€8° 09T LOT
-66°0TSL¥0'¥
-68°22¢°¢C

9Z 918 ‘€91
-60°6%0 ‘89
-L8°%L6°S89
-€0°81¢€
-05°650 66
~¥€ 0SB PST '€
-LY €28 ZEY

00"
-61°986°LY
-£5°025'6
-8L°%€9°2S
-69° 065 ‘8S6
-1Z°809°00T
-ZS PEL8S
~00"$9Z'80€
-00°0§
-ZET¥TEPTITE
-80° 968 °68C

00"

-00°099
-00°000°000°T

-0E SPB SSET
-L6°188°201°C
-€1°LTS°SSB
-96°950 ‘06S

00°STZ €%
-LZ°9L8°%8

00"

00"

S 6¥%9 ‘66
-9%°999°1
-S6°80¥‘2ZL

00"
-ZT°%50°88%

€77 09€‘LST'E

00°002
00°000°2
00°00T'T
0€°6EP

0L ¥68°8BLT'8

0S°Z0Z‘6ST L

L9 S66°8LY'C

00"

00"
oL €ECY’S

ZE 8926

[

SINGWISIANGSTIA SIJdIFOFY

IYMAQA  ~TTYE

ONIQTIOH SIXYL dIANDIS
ONIQTOH SIXVL QIANDISNI
HAEIZ IDELOAd TYLIGYD
a1y TYOALOW

AONIDWIWT FAId
IOIALSIA FEIA

ESNOH WY3Id0 S¥IIIL
NOISSIWWOD WSI¥NOL 2A
NOISSIWWOD L¥A

ADAL0dd TIVY DA

anNnd 2419 TIVL S J4dI¥IHS
SINYID TYdIaEd

MOVYHAYA IdL

aNnd davd

LEN IdL

aNnd I3N0D IFDILSAC
INIQIDOY INADIGNT
L¥N0D IOTYULSIA

AIVLS

aNnd ADOTTONHOAL

L4g3a TOOHDS

TOOHDS

JLaNod on3a

QD¥VI STTAM ANOHE VAsn
YIMIS BAIAIA VINIDYUIA
ALID VINIDYIA 40 NMOL
TIIH 10D 40 NMOL
NOIIVZITIIHVLS

WALSAS dILUM

aANNA FINLONALSTAINT
SLDALOAd TYLIAYD
NOILISINOOVY LNIWIINOE
ADIAFAS

aiv TYNLOW

LOI¥LSIq FdId
AONIDWIWT JdId

FAIL

NOIXNLILSTY

SaYoy

X¥l- FDONVYLSISSVY LINEDIGNI
TIOIAEN LNIDIANT
TRAINID

YOSSISSY HSVYD ALLId
d4TYIHS HSVYD AdLEd
HSYD ALLId

SNIOD U110

INNCDDY dIDT JFLVLS
LIV AINOW OD¥VYE STT1AM
INNOIOWY DO 0D¥Yd STI1EM
SAMYS ALAAION4 ¥ 40 4
Sa¥YOD NNVE SSANISNd
MNVYHE NI HSYD

ONIQTOH 1¥A0D IDI¥LSIa
HSYD ¥AasSl 09¥Y4E STTIM

NOILATHOSHEA

65:60:80 81/52/90

006
008
08¢
0LT
092
0S¢
TET
0€Z
1ee
ozz
012
902
00z
06T
681
L8T
S8T
08T
0LT
S9T
09T
0ST
0yl
SET
0ET
0ZT
011
00T
060
080
0LO
090
0s0
S¥0
0%0
SE€0
0€E0
¥Zo
ozo
STO0
0T0
100
S06
Y06
€06
T06
961
16T
661
86T
LET
GE6T
¥61
€6T

LOY

:uny

00TZ¥L :ON 3xoday



0Z°Ss 81/SZ/S YIAINNAL ‘NIYDDW (AN AR 00 66T 86616 D

88 9% 81/SZ/S NI SEDIAYES HENIT FOVNONVI 9G¢EP0V 00 661 066T6 D
8C V1 81/s2/S 0D SNI H4IT ALID SYSNVA €92S0¥% 00 6671 68616 3D
00°00T 8t1/sz/s SHd ® HLIWYHL NISVH IVHEID OL¥E0T 00 661 €L616 D
oo"0%€‘Z 81/52/S ‘Y qdv¥yMaid ‘HNIAAVID 0v9%0Y% 00 66T 0L6T6 D
¥8°G8L 6% 81/s2/s DNIYHINIONE ISHEM davd 91CZe0¥ 00 661 99616 2D
06 L€8'9 81/52/%S AJHS DONIJAAYILS ‘I TAMLYVHO SeZsoy 00 66T 28616 2O
00 %2 81/s2Z/S JHIINNHL ‘NYWAVHO OLLEOY 00 66T 19616 3D
LE'TITT 81/G62/S TYNQOISSIA0dd ® SSHENISNI £9%00T 00 661 9%¥616 2D
08" ¥%ce 8T/S2/s SIMAT LLODS 'T1addnd TLI9EOY 00 661 S¥616 MO
00 002 81/s2/S NNAT NVYSQS ‘dAONITAITAD L60E0Y 00 66T vve16 O
TE LT 81/s2/S IAYES HADNHIHANODHTHL LRIV 6T9¢€0¥ 00 661 gv6T6 O
SZ 0¥0’'6SS ‘T 81/52/S NOILDONYLSNOD SHWY SEev0y 00 66T Zve16 2O
00°0S2 8T1/LZ/¥ ONI ¥HALNIDILYV SAYUVIN ILNIVS S6€£002C 00 661 80616 D
ve-9c 8T/LZ/¥ YIYWY.L ‘NUYDIW 6Z29¢€0% 00 66T 28816 2D
SE°S6 81/L2/% S HLI®M ‘Nosanc 950S0¥ 00 66T vL8T6 D
¥6 9T 8T/LZ/Y ADYdL ‘SILiND T867%0% 00 661 8¥816 2D
SE°EY 81/20/¢€ YIYWYIL ‘NYDIRW 629207 00 66T TO¥Te 2D
00°000'S 81/91/2 NOSYL ‘TAAVHNYA S00S0% 00 661 6€£€T6 D
00°SsC L1/2z/2T ¥ooddEd ‘NYador 88TS0Y 00 661 L2806 D
LE"T6 LT/€T/0T YIDIYIYd ® TN¥Yd ‘SEAVHE LSTSOY 00 6671 Y0206 3O
g€g-¢c LT/T0/6 dY0d ODONIZVYID VYAYALIN 96Z10T 00 661 £€9868 D
¥8 €V LT/0Z/L NOYVHS ‘ad¥Nyad 8TITSOP 00 66T 08€68 D
80°%Z8'T bH\MO\m d¥0OD OHONIMONAUL HILITIIANIOD ¥S900T 00 66T 61188 2D
00°SZ 91/60/2T 011 HDILON LISHL 8T870Y% 00 66T vESL8 D
69°¥%Z9 91/60/2T HSYHIWHN HTYSIEATOHM ODLS0O LPZE0T 00 66T 6€E¥L8 D
LY 8%€’2 91/%1/01 ¥SIT ® LIODS ‘NOSIAVR €99%07% 00 661 L9698 D
00°9% 91/91/6 SNOISSHIYAWI HAILVAONNI o¥e€0T 00 66T £€vL98 O
00?1 91/91/6 NYHEd ‘JIOWAVH L8001 00 66T 8€L98 D
00 ¥be‘C 91/20/6 SHSIYJdYHEINE XAVAd NAS 268¢0V 00 66T 9L998 D
€v°8 9T/20/6 ALSHATHD B NNHTO ‘NOLHOIHT £€96V0V 00 661 ¥Z998 2D
00°9% 91/20/6 SNOISSHIAWI HAILYAONNTI 0¥ €e0T 00 661 TT998 XD
29762 91/6T/8 oL #I1ggod ‘1sind 9¢6v0OV 00 661 6¥¥98 D
€6 °6T 91/zz/L NOSYL ‘SNIMMVYH 806707V 00 66T $6198 D
6T ST 91/80/L dIvod ONIZVED YAVYAHEN 9GZT10T 00 66T €L098 O
00°00T 9T1/80/L YANOL ‘MOTYVH S68Y%0% 00 66T TZ098 2O
AN Y4 9T1/0T/9 AIYYHEL ‘HONAT €L8V0Y 00 66T T9LS8 D
00" 108 91/81/¢ ONI DIDOTHAIOD LLIEOY 00 66T 666¥8 D
8091 G1/81/6 NOSVIY AIUVI NNV ‘AVIANW L69YVOV 00 66T 06€€8 D
00°SL S1/%0/6 YHLIGYI ‘NOSHOH 9eLP0Y 00 66T 0692¢g8 D
00°8L Ss1/vZ/L ONI 5DD HHYHL 8¢6€0% 00 66T L1628 D
8T 06 s1/92/9 HONH ‘L¥0D44dr 9L9%0% 00 66T 16528 3D
S0°98 ST/21/9 Aduvd ® YANIT ‘¥dd1d QLOTOV 00 661 SL¥%Z8 AD
0006 sT/21/9 NHOCL ‘d@NSIdANd Z8€EE0¥ 00 661 YovZs AD
SL°6¢E ST/LT/¥ NHOCr ‘XVdS 6T9V0V 00 6671 €L6T8 2D
T6 9T ST/LT/Y avHD ‘SNYAR TZ9%0% 00 66T LE6T8 MO
00°09%9 ST/LT/% HYJ0g9da ‘JIAANILD 656€0¥ 00 66T cTeT8 D
€Z2°91 8T/%T/S I¥d ‘NAILLIHM 96 10T 00 66T 29¢9¢ MD
00°00S°‘T 81/v1/S 48504 4ddHEL ALNNOD AHAOLS ZSe107 00 66T 9%£9¢€ D
00° 009 8T/¥%1/S ONIINIVd H44IIOAVY 696707 00 66T 0Z€9¢ O
L9°999'T 8T/%T/S ALD ALINNWWOD NIVML MIVRW T69%0% 00 66T §8Z9¢ D
00°00T 8T/%T/S HOIAT NILSQAC ‘WWI¥D T9SP0V 00 66T 8929¢ D
00°908°L9 8T/¥1/S I SWELSAS ONILOA NOINIWOQ 9LSEOY 00 66T 96Z9¢ D
00 0S¢ 8T/%v1/S SUYHLHDIAHYIA ALID NOSYUVYO [5324'4%) 00 661 1% 24° 1D t0]
Junowy @3ed 3o2Yd sweN 2oAordwug/iopuspn # uosisd bos jueg # osuyp di

8T1/1€/S - 00/00/0 woxd

666666 Ubnoayl T #3(09UD woxd

s309yD burpurisano

ONILNAOODDY S« ¥TANSVYHYL 0€:02:0T * SWIL uny 8I/GZ/90 : ©93eg uny

T abeg AINNOD AHIOLS Z9LTad :ON 3xoday



¥9°62H'198'1 :7e30L

$9°6CF'T98°T :1e30l Jued
0€°CSL'¥ :Te305 adAL
8% 6658 81/81/S £ DIID ‘$sdH AN 00 661 ¥8e9c ¥4
00°0I%'T 81/81/S LZZVH# DOSSY YAILHOHIA FVUIL 105006 00 661 €£8€9¢ ¥d
76 °0%S 81/81/S SENd NOINA/IWOSAY  20¥006 00 661 Z8€9€ ¥d
€6 9€L 91/80/% HONVINSNI HAIT €I1006 00 66T €10G€E ¥d
€S E€PT'T ST/60/0T dning dFXOTAWH/TVOIAINW L0T006 00 661 YLLYPE ¥d
€L°09 ST/%1/8 GZT °"SNI "dATT TYINOTIOD T0Z006 00 661 SoLbE dd
TL°0T PT/61/8 ¥O/NOILDIATIOD FAA JATVFHS ST19006 00 66T Tgzve ¥d
00°099°s¢ :Te3o0l odAL
00°099°S¢ 8T1/60/% INFNJOTIAHA TVINd ¥ASN 8¥8T0T 00 66T 816 hAcH
pe LIO'TZB8 T :1e30y =2dAlL
00°0€ 81/62/S NYHIVYN ‘HILIHM €7050% 00 661 £€50Z6 D
80 9%%'T 81/52/S 00 ATddNS YAVAIN NIIILSAM 026101 00 66T 25026 AD
09182 81/52/S YT TYINIWNOITANT NATLSAM LETEOT 00 66T 15026 AD
00°08%'T 81/s2/S ¥E8d AS JNVI DILdHS SYIIVM 080€0T 00 66T 05026 D
00°00€ g8t/sz/s g0IA40 SAJIYTHS 0D HOHSYM ZE6T0T 00 661 8¥026 D
00" 9¢€ 81/sZ/S ONI S¥N0L ALID YINIDIIA €68€0% 00 661 Sy0Z6 AD
00°0§ 81/s2/S JILOA €86€0¥ 00 661 $$0Z6 AD
00°00¢ 81/G2/S (DA) HADIAJIOLSOd SN SP8TI0T 00 661 Zy0oz6 D
00°L¥8 81/42/5 SASTAJEIINT AVAd NAS Z68E0Y 00 661 LEOZE D
00 8% 81/52/S YSSHENVA ‘SNAHIALS TELYOY 00 661 9€026 MO
00091 81/5Z/S HINNOE 'HLIWS zTLZSO0Y 00 66T 1€0Z6 D
00°¥2T 81/42/S ONI S¥0LNAIVLSIA NYVWIHHS 18050% 00 661 82026 MO
$9°0¢C 81/GT/S ONI 00ddnd 9Z00T 00 66T 92026 AD
99°LZ¢ 81/52/S NYIrQ I990d 'SL¥dg0d S60G0% 00 66T S2026 D
00°522 81/92/S SI¥HD ‘NITNOd $L8EOY 00 661 61026 D
00°0€ 81/S2/S HSNOH Y¥AJO S.,dAJId 96250% 00 661 81026 D
00°28 81/62/S a OTIONVY ‘INI¥LEd S68€0Y 00 661 91026 D
00° 001 81/62/S IS ® SDOIHAVED HGIS HHI NO 0Z2€01 00 661 21026 AD
9Z°'S9 81/62/S ONI 104dd #DIAI0 z8LZ0T 00 661 11026 D
0% 8€€’8 81/52/S HITVAH TYINIWNONIANE-HEdd ZZLEOY 00 66T S00Z6 D
0L’ 0L 81/62/S NOILVXVYL ILdad AIN SEETOT 00 66T $0026 D
€€°20¢ 81/62/S ANTVA ANAL HSNO0H ANACKW TLY00T 00 66T z00Z6 D
00°002 81/52/8 AHLOWIL ‘ZHIIYIDW 668Y0% 00 66T 666T6 D
Junowy ajeq Moayd sweN sakoTdwg/Iopusp # uosasd bag jueg # osup di
81/1€/S - 00/00/0 wWOIA
666666 Ubnoiyl T #308UD woaj
syosyp bBuTpueisaino
ONIILNAODDY SudAANSYAAL 0€:0Z:0T : SWTL und 8T/SZ/90 : 23eg UNY

z abed AINNOD AHIOLS Zz9.11g :oN axodey



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting‘“’da‘te: Estimate of Time Required: 0-5 min.
Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

1.

Title: For possible action, Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $412,214.63 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $1,700,467.44.

2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.
3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Treasurer Contact Number: 775.847.0969
4. Staff Summary: Attached.
5. Supporting Materials: See attached
6. Fiscal Impact: 0
7. Legal review required: No
8. Reviewed by:
@_ Department Head Department Name: Treasurer
/@ y Q\\’éounty Manager Other Agency Review:
9. Board Action:
[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ 1 Continued




ATAINSYIAAL

AATTOALANWOD

HANOISSIKWWOD YINOISSIWWOD NYWIIVYHO

:SI9UOTSSTWWOD JO pieog Ajunoy As3103§ 9yl Aq paasoxddy

€9°VIZ'ZI¥ 1posaANgsTa Te3I0L
9%' 59961 :I030NpaQg 03 I3JSUBI ISS) TeIOL
£%°285'8T :91tgd dog a11g uo pasgx spag 23Aordwd Tejol
16°989 662 : :31sodag 309aTg 2KoTdug Te30L
6%7°108°T :go9yD @skotdug Tel0L
¥8°€TS LT 18)09YD I03doNped IBIOY
0S"¥S6 ‘%S 15dldd 103J IdFSURIL I9SN Te3I0oL
Jjunowy gaked # paa # aa

/# dwd  /308UD

6 8 L 9 S % € ¢ 1 :sdnoap jroalked
81/0T/90 :®3ed puUa-potIad 8T/ST/90 :393ea FP8UD xernbey :adhl T1oaked

AIYNIWITIIL 13318T68Y Yooyd 60:€EP:¥T 8T/ET/90 :uny
S abeq WALSAS TIOYAVd ALNNOD ATYOLS ¥0150d8d :3day



T

80 " T¥%L

10°2Ie’¢E

Lz et
99°6L8'¥
00°SLC
60°9€Z'188

€€ °8BET

00°02%

S9°9¢T

00°00T

IY.LOL

ADEHD

sbeq

00°0%T
£¥ 092
0s°ST1C
01" 8s

00°0¢

00°0S1
097981

00°0SS
007991
65°SST
6761

00°0ST
88 %1
80°LLT
00°8LT
00785
v 1¢
21 e8¢
T8°SS
L AR ANA

Lz'2T
99°6L8°'V
00°S§LC
60°9€Z°188
ve'vL
05°9%
ve'vL
85702
LL'8

08" €T
00°0C¥%

96" LOT
69 8¢

00°00T

INNOWY

€£356%8
£5678
€568
£56%8
£56%8
£5678
£56%8
£56¥%8

25678
296¥%8
Z56v8
2s56¥8
(413 4]
256%8
256%8
Z56¥v8
25678
2s6v8
256v8
256%8
2sevs
2567v8
256v8
25678
Z56v8
Z56V8
[4=1:34]
Z56%8
9678
Z56v8
Z56v8

iv8v8
LY6Y8
998¥v8
oveve
6LLYB
6LLY8
6LLYV8
[h%:34°]
0E8Y8
o 2:24:1
Svev8

€898
T€878

6E678

H#SNAL

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/z2/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9

81/22/9

81/22/9
81/2¢2/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9

HIVd

d¥¥d/HOLVM IHOIN 91 aNACL
INFWNIVIYILNA LT¥9T dNAL
SEITddNS INIVIW

SHITddNS INIVW

NIVI¥ALNE 0T’6°€‘Z ANAL
YIVdEE NOIS

d3dd /HOLVM IHDIN 6%Z HNAL
JOdvT DNIAVDSANYT 1Od3d

LOVAIINY 40 N¥NLAA
SYIVdHEE LOdEd

SAIVATA dOHS I1AID/L0dIA
LAIADHE AD0T dANIATV
LINIWNIVIAILNT NIVYL W
HOLVM LIHDIN NIVYL L¥S
INOHA TIED LOdHEd 12A
Sd11d4dNs

INHAT dIA d0A SAOLOVNAHY
LA ¥0J ILNIY X0d Od S¥X ¢
SHIANILIY d04 STVANW
SNIVIL dd d0d dALYM
SHI40D

LNIWNIV.LYI.LNT

dOHS L4ID ¥0d AD0OTIAYd
LOddd d0d SINVTIdA
SEITAdNS NIVIL dW
SHAANALLY d04d STVIRW
SAITd4dNs

SAITddNs

dWVYD XH AVI0d 404 004
AYD MTYINIY SSHIIXE AVTOd
SHEANILLY ¥0d STIVIARW

HOIAYES HONITYAANODHTIL
YANIVLEY ONILIYW ENOL
ATTIIANOM -TYAE HDASd

8Z# TLZ 4AS LO-Z6V¥ASN
dOHS

HD

dOHS

AYANOVT SL 1S
AYANOVYT 2L 1S
A4ANAYT TL IS
dDUNDIS

SHITddNS dWV
SHITddNS dWV

8€T610/1d ¥OJ IDIML (IVd

NOILAI¥DSHd HIDIOANI

81/22/9 WIALSIODAY ADIHD

ALNNOD AHAOLS

HYM083d ‘¥EANIY

STIWVL ‘NYHE

ANIVIE ‘¥IDNILS-TINaXAvd
IAYES HONFAHANODATAL L3IV
arl ‘SYANIAVA WRLNIADAVY
SSHANTTIM ANV HLIVIEH DAY

NOTIDAALSNOD SAWY

ONI ODS1Y

ONI SNDIS ANIATIY

ONI NON SVOUIV
dd00 INIWLVIAL AIV
HOANIA

81/12/90
STETdd

91226

S1226

1 A%44%
£€1ece
[AX44
11226

01226

60226

80ZZ6

L02Z6
90¢cce

ATGWNN
ADEHD
23eg uny

:oN 3acday-



4

00°008°T

96°006°T

S8°682'S

€9°¥62°1

2% 89¢
00°00T
1s-¢€ce
68°0%C
8v 6€6°1T
€L°821
00759
00°2L
0Z°9s
00°s52¢
S6°0LT

007929

00°LLT
29°908
00°s2tT

00°00L

96°€0T
857991
€T €PS’T
00" ETT
TY.LOL
ADIHD

abeg

00°008°T
00°08¢
00912
2s°1€EE
Y0 €ELO’T

00°000°S
587682

00°GLT
€9°6TT T

2% 89¢
00°00T
15°¢€2¢
68°0%C
87°6€6°T
€L°8CT
0059
00°2L
0Z°9S
00°g2¢
S6°0LT

00°s2s
00°66

00°LLT
297908
00°sctT

00°0S¢E
00°0S¢€

96 €01
867691
€T EVS'T

00°s0T
00°'8

LNOOWY

vs8vs
v98v8
808%8
808%8
808%8

vegvs
88878

S687V8
S06v8

6L878
09898
0L8%8
12434
c06v8
8£8¥v8
69878
80678
898¥v8
08LY8
968%8

L2678
L2678

g18%8
96L7V8
55678

8¥6¥v8
8v6v8

L98%8
988%8
zegys

9Z6%8
9Z6%8

#SNTAL

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/2¢2/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/2Z/9
81/22/9
81/2Z/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/ez/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

qLVA

81/2Z/9

# 0/d

ONIYEINIONT HINOY
SONILSO4 13ddnd

ONILOA ATIVA

D3¥ 40 FSOTID

SYFTAVIXV.L T3Q

£O¥d HDYO4 INWVED AdH A0D
HYVYHS NOILVNOA JAWKWVTIS
INYED 1S dOLS ASA
qISUNESIA LNIAWHS INYVYD
8T/91/9

SLIX dNd ® SHLOIDHSYM
¥IND LISIA SLONAOY¥d dHAVYd
Md 96LL888086

S1009 -9D8C6

MIOMNAO0TE NOSVL ‘TIVINVH
O-LT0Z# NIWAVY-VYADS

AIMIS / AALUM

MOL 62099 €WV

S¥00d SSYID-NYAd SOLT

€1/9 - 1g€/s
€T/9 - 1g£/s

SANYTHOIH DA
dvd ADVUNS
WWNOD DNINNVTId TIDIIA

JANYL dWNd 8T daNAL
JANVL dW0d 8 INNL

OOdWVYHS JIYWNI

INAWNIINOH/0Iavy

£€T/9 - 1€/S
€1/9 - T€/S

NOILATEDSHA FDIOANT

YIALSIDIF ADIHD
ALNNOD AHYOLS

+ VIQIW SLI4dIONOD FAILVYI™ED

ONI ‘INOIDATANOD

(DA) FTOINOYHD MDOLSWOD
LYANNOd A¥ALAWID MADOLSWOD

ONI ISEHD ALINAKWWOD

AEN 40 FDIA¥YES NOILDATIOD
03T 'TTIMITO

XTL-WAVYHD

ATddNS AYVLINVS TYALNID
dIHSYINLYVYd ODTTID

d¥0D INIWIINOHE NYWHSVD
VAH TYNOIDIY HOHVI NOSAVD
SYILIOJHY TOLIAYD
NINIAOYIWI TYIINID NOANVD
® ONIMOL YAVAIN-TVD

d4¥S ¥ SSYID ‘MD0T M ® D

SIMAT 110DS ‘T13dANd
ATTEN T TTIMNMO¥E
NNXT NVYSAS ‘JHONITAIIL

S.:d00T¥D YHOLOH

NAVTD SEWYL ‘vIN€0s
ONI ANVAWOD ¥EXuve €08
ALLYd ‘TIESIE

SESTYGUILNT AY¥IL

JOANHA

81/1z/90
STETdd

oveee

6€226

8ETTE

LETZ6

9¢€226
S€226
vezee
£€CC6
[AX A4
T€ZZ6
0€cZe
62¢2Z6
82zz6
Lzezee
92zZze

S2zce

144443
£2¢226
[44443

12226

0Z¢ie
61226
81226

L1zZze

AFTEWNN
MDFHD
?j3eqg uny
oN 3aoday:



00°0%C
00" ¥¥L

8S°SGLS

8C SET

91°6L8°26

8% vL

§9°ST0'T

00°20%'T

89 ¥PS’'¥

00°sZT
00°0S€°€
00°LLT
€0°L8
08°0¢€L
§6°S5¢
00° 0S¥

TVLOL
MADEHD

€ abed

00°6€6°T
00°0v2
00" %%L
sL Loz
8S°€0T
S2°¥9C
88°€CT
91°8
yZ'e
857218
¥9°8¢8'TL
SL €8T’'8
0S"LET 'V
6L°6€ES'T
06°99Z°'9

(4200 51
91" €T

00°¥%9¢
S9°'1SL

00°Z0¥V'T
00°0SL’'€
€C2°69
Lo Lze
0% " ¥%TT
(420 21
-2S°6¢¢
16°09

00°§82T
00°0S€’€E
00°LLT
€0°L8
08°0€L
S6°5¢
00°0S¥

LNNOWY

L8LY8
19678
LEBYS

cL8v8
cL8vs
ZL8v8

L8¥8
SB8LY8
S8L%8

6€8%8
6€87v8
v8LYV8
6€8¥8
veLve
6€E8Y8

£8L78
€8L78

958%8
Lo6%8

[44:34:1

z8Lv8
Z8LY8
Z8LY8
Z8LY8
z8LY8
28Lv8
z8LY8
z28L¥8
28Lv8
z8Lv8
Z8LY8
Z8L¥8
Z8LY8

056¥%8
67678
918¥8
6v8v8
00698
8LV8
€26¥8

H#SNYAL

81/22/9
81/02/9
81/2z/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
8t1/2e/9
81/22/9

81/2¢2/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/2¢2/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81T/2ce/9

81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
a1va

81/22/9

# 0/d

89271Sd / 1€V DIA IAL
SANYTHOIH DA AONY AX
FSAOHLINOD

TIVL -INVA0dd
g0I440 Ssnd -ANVAOUd
TIVL -INVA0dd

SLIX dIV LSYIA
SONILLIA dOHS
PNId FENL -TLL

NIWQY/OLWN €nd 9THAVO ASVL
6Z 0d¥ Avd 1LZdS

TZ ¥HAYO0 ASVL

T MSVL'0ZH#QIO ASVL

HYHIY avOod LW LTOT
NOISEA TT#QYO ASVL

NOILVDIWAI
NOILVDI¥II -Nddd SO0LT

0¥¥€09 LODOVY
0°06€£€09 ANI

ONITIVW LOTIVE dTIWYS

ANIHOVIW aNOD ¥IV
YOLDANNOD STEBYOS
dWNd TINd -6LZESHSIWOD
AYILLVE $20990S

Savd FJv¥d S20990Ss
LIO3ED dOHS

¥ATIIL ‘d¥D S¥D TL1A
dy¥d TdNd L6€85dA
SHI¥ALLYE -SAvod
SYALTIA -SAV0d
SYHLTIA P¥8TSHL
¥20990s

JILTIIS TaNd -SAVOA

SYIVATE YINNVH
SHOIAYIS SINIAH
SANVTIHOIH DA

YIINAD AOOMADO0T -dTdYD
SIAOTO

NOILOYYOD INIWAYd
ONILIO4dHEY ‘SAV¥ FTHO0D

NOILJI¥OSIA FDIOANI

YALSIDTA ADFHD
ALNNOD AHIOLS

WNIATOJYLAG LIIAS/HALYD NIATOD
TIVA TTVIENYD

YIHIIO ‘AESIAd

dT SYDTTIIIA

ANYAWOD TYNHALSYA

ONTYHENIONA 1SHM JJvd

SLONA0¥d NOILVOIVUI ONIMA

LSNIVYMS 3 HJdYOHL NOSAOIYI

FOIA¥ES ONITIVIW HSITONI

ONI A71ddNS OILNVY LLOITTIA
dVid 3 DNINMY JIDYIGTANIL
T AANVYD ‘NVONNA

NOYVHS ‘NOXIA
NOILYIO4d0d Sdd HSIA

ONI SMEAQTD TYOIAAW HSYA

ONI ¥SN SHOIVA

JOANIA

81/12/90
S1eTdd

95226
EEE44)

vscce

£52¢26

[ATAL]

IS T44)
0sZZs

6v2Z6

8¥2cZ6

L¥226
9vcie
ER 444
144443
€vZce
zveee
:HvNNm
YIGWNN
JADEHD

23eQ uny
oN 3xoday:



4

6078
£5°66
oo0-cee
88 €EVC

T66EE’ LT

96°162

69°95S’T

0T €1S

00°000°09
00" LTC
00°8¢ET
9T'T

SV SES

05°¢28
LZ°281

SE°889

00 s¥g’8e

8% 112

88 ¥IL'C
00°¥%67C
£€°809

0s LTV

87" S¥S‘€E

TY.LOL
ADAHD

abeg

vT°0S
60°8
€5°66
00-¢ce
88 €E¥C
96°6L6'€C
96 ' 6SE'E
8S°¥SCT
8E°LE

06 ISE’'T
6L°Y0C
L9 0¢ge
£€v°2Z8e
00°000°09
Q0°LICT
00°8¢€T
91T
00°061
Sy Sve
0s°¢8
LT"Z81
0s°vLZ
00°¥2
$8°68C
00 sve’8e
0s° 0§

86 09T
88°VIL'T
00°v6C
£€°809
087211
00°STE
8%°909'1T
LNOOWY

sg8¥s
088%8
£68¥%8
ot8¥e
L88%8

L68Y8
T06%8

88LV8
88LV8

z98ve
298%8

LEGYS
198%8

68LY8
668%8
v68v8
aZ8%8

vveve
144324

55898
£98%8
8c6¥8
8C6¥8
T68Vv8
v06¥8

0T6¥8
0T6¥8

$98%8
z18%8
zs8vs

85698
856%8

LBLYS

#SNYAL

8t1/22/9
81/22/9
81/2Z/9
81/22/9
81/2¢2/9

81/2¢2/9
81/22/9

81/c2/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/tz/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
qLvYa

81/22/9

# 0/4

ASNOHLANOD
AT I dONJ™

L89L
WHLSAS INIWONIVIIY OddIA

SEITddNS ¥ITIVIL
d¥D TId -¥OLOVA

405 TOOMMDOT MOVH dHLIA
HONVNAINIVA TTIYMINIA

810C ANNL OD AZIOLS/LPTIN
/1T HATIOSNOD NIf UH¥HS

gYHIY av¥od IW

ONTd XAH MONAL JALVM

ADIA¥EAS IIANYALNI INAL
HAYES LIANYILNI AVKW/OLAS

LANVHINI 2L LS
AONVNALNIVN XO¥d DVYNWS
€T/9 - 1€/S

€T/9 - T1€/S

AIVHS NOILVNOd YIWWVIS
YOLVIEANEID dOdDVE ATINIED

SHITAdNS EWY
SEITddNS gNWV

Savoy
qOOMXD0T
YAMOL MV¥Hd dNOd

S¥$ X S¥YH S°'¢
S¥$ X S¥H L

S2C 1SAQ / 0%E€ DIAA MT

NOILAI¥OSHA FDIOANI

JALSIDAE ADHHD
ALNNOD AHAOLS

SYTOHDIN 'ONINVZZVT

NI SHDIAYES ANIT dDOVNONVYT
TINOVY ‘ LHOEANA

T VaOYT CFINAEA

NOSNHOL ¥ qyd¥Mad Iopane

SAS QIdIA 0OIANVY NOSIYIJLIAL

27171 480

QT ED¥N0S TLI

NI IOW OANI NIVINNOW NOVI
IVHES A¥ANTS NIVLNNOWAALNI
ONI Ld3DUHLINI

SNOISSHYAWI JAILVAONNI

A¥ES IYIVLSNANI DITINVIAAH

ONI JNVHAVO¥" LOdS LOH
ONI ANVEAVOdd LOdS LOH

JOIA¥ES 1IAEYD 1LO4d3A 3WOH

OHOS ¥¥M HIINOA DIVOLSIH

DI¥LDATE ANVTHOIH

NIFHDOS AMNIH
arT ‘IVH
g QIAVA ‘I¥VH

0717 SINIWLSAANI 41D

WOL ‘AYIESNVID

VOANIA

81/12/90
STE1dd

6LCC6
8LZT6
LLCZs
9LTZ6

SLTT6

43443

€L226

ZLeze

TLCZ6
oLzze
69226
89¢¢C6

L9226

99226
s9cee

121449

£€9226

Z29¢ie

19226
09226
65226

85226

L5226

FHGWON
ADIHD
ajedg uny
ON 3xo0day:*



)

00°006
00°0€T 00°0€T
00°002 00°002
00" %2 Z8°S
2€°91T
€6°S¥v
T16°SL
-86°6TT
00°00T 00°00T
LL ¥26°T S0°8¥8°7T
ZL 9oL
LL 60T LL 60T
SL°89C'T SL°892'1
20 LZY'9 zo'Lev'9
¥9°v8 ¥9°¥8
00°0¥%T 00°0%T
00 ¥LT 00 PLT
00°0VT 00°0%T
00 "bLL 00°¥LL
00-82c 00°8¢22
9¢€° 1€ 9¢€°1¢€
0Z°S0% vL°9
-6S°S
00" ¥L
PCTL9T
187291
00°2Z9 05°99
05°6SS
88°LSCZ' ¥ 88°LSZ 'Y
TT 9SS €1 TIT ¥SS°€T
0070052 00°005°2
89998 897695
S8°68¢C S§8°68¢C
v1°0s
TY.LOL INOOWY
ADIHD
abeq

306¥%8
908%8
v56¥8
Z6Lv8
c6LYB
Z6LYB
Z6Lv8
zeLvs
Iv6v8

008v8
188¥v8

LS6V8B
£L8V8
06LYB
v08%8
LT8?8
818¥8
yisve
618%8
£18%8
8687V8
ovevs
ovevs
10898
T08%8

Sv8vs

6678
6C67v8

816¥8
LT6%8
916¥%8
60678

6889%8

H#SNWAL

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
8T/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
8T/22/9
81/22/9

8T/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/2¢2/9
81/2Z/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/2e/9
81/22/9

8t/2z/9
81/2z/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9

aLva

8t/22/9

8102/11/90

HLOO" ONILOA NO 09071
LIN¥Ed YALYMWIOLS

TI0 TYIANIN-dOHS
JATAN0D VIV AALTII dOHS
LI FDIANAS 86559ud

LI FDUVYHD SAYOH

£av LNINAVA

saAd TVINOd

AJVNTAd SLOTTVH HTdWVS

‘0D AHY¥OLS XYL WOOY AVH
SANNOYDAIVE / INTHJIADNT A
ASVHOUNd WILVM AVW
SIAVD ¥Od STAHHM

NIVMI MIVKW

NIVML M¥VW

aoOMIDOT

Ad FESNOHINN0D ANV LW

aoomM3D01

yddvd LIID

Yadv¥d LIIAD NIA

SAITd4dNS Da

SdITddNSs NOILODATH

LLVE ' ¥EAT04 ‘138Y1’ d3dvd

€1/9 - TE/S
£1/9 - TE/S

SNOISSTIWWOD ¥ILSAO
NOISSIWWOD ITIHO
dIHSYOSNOdS NNHAFH
SEITddNS HWY

HYYHS NOILYNOQ ATWWYIS

NOILJI¥OSHd HDIOANI

YALSIDAY ADHHD
ALNNOD AHMOLS

NYOL ‘ENJO€SO
IS ¥ SOIHAVYED HAIS FHL NO

JATTOULNOD HHL 40 dDIAA0

SHSIYAYEINT OXNVY ATIIHHA.O

(ONY) ILT d078 YAVAIN

TASNNOD FAILVTISIDAT AIN
NOILVXVYL Ld3d AIN
ALFAVS DITdNd Ld3d AEN
SANNOAD 2 SATH NIWAY AIN
INTVA dNdAL dSNOH ANNOW
NOAZ VANOW ‘HIOOW
HY¥093d ‘HAO0W

ITYD ‘EVOOW

T YAHLYNNY ‘HJOOW

‘Y HEATINAN “AATTIN

VIVWYL ‘NVOIW

NI SNOILATOS d#DIA40 OULINW

NOISNVYIW AWIDVNW

2711 SINIA® 3019 AINGIT
0711 SINIAZ FNTE AINDIT
0717 SINIEAE INTd AINDIT
ONI LSISSV-JJ4IT

T ON 0D HANIODNHT ALIILIT
HOANIA

81/12/90
S1€TEd

20ece
10€26

00€£26

66226

86226

L6226
96226
S62C6
v6226
£6226
26226
16226
06226
682C6
88CZ6

LBTC6

98226

58226
¥8¢%6
€8226
28226
82¢C6
0Bece
YIIWON
ADEHD

a3eQg uny
:oN 3xoday-



9

$8°68¢
10759
L0° 591

Z1°9¢9

0S°8%9°SL

00°00¢

18°vce

00°08¢

00708
00°00S'L
66°6%¥Z°'C
90°€L8
00°06
L6 06T'T

00" 90T

00°68T
€€°980°20T
00°06L°8
66°6%L'102
09°¢€¢€9
00°006
TY.LOL
MDHEHD

a2beg

8L°¢C1
LY ET
Sy e
6T 1
vyl
§S°
06°T
(A
S8°68¢
10°S9
L0"SST

8v €81
9 2S¥

ST vZB LE
ST vz8 LE

00°00¢
10°6T
£€6° 5S¢
19°ve
92°SLT

00°0%T
007091

00°08
00°00S°L
66°6¥Z°'C
90°€L8
00°06
L6°06T'T

G09S
00"8%

00°68T
£€€°980°Z0T
00°06L'8
66°6VL'T0C

09°¢€9

LNOOWY

096%8
096¥8
096v8
0967v8
096%8
096%8
096%8
096%8
068%8
segvs
S6L¥8

v6L78
y6L%8

€6LV8
€6L¥8

208¥8
858¥8
858%8
£58%8
£58¥8

658¥8
65878

118¥8
T16%8
vv8ve
s08%8
k43 4]
L08%8

1e6¥v8
1€6%8

0g6¥8
T6L¥8
L78%8
98LY8

1c6%8

HSNVAL

81/T2/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/2e/9
81/2Z/9
81/2z/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/z¢/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9

CA 4 e

81/22/9

HOL¥dSId TIVILNIAD
INIWIOTIAIA ALINNKWWOD
JITHIHS

ASNOHLANOD JJIATHS
SMI0M OITdad

(OA) H¥IA

AT

1d8L/891d

HIVHS NOILVNOQ JTWWVIS
dAIM T00dSs

SEHDLVYT 86553¥d

LNIVd €300 NIIAD
LNIVd €300 agy

8102 S00LB8ZZL8DOAZSADT
8T0Z 6L868ZZLTDDATSADT

SHHONNT AV¥d NOILDITH
NONVD LI

NONVD SNOI.LVDINAWWOD
NONVD S¥0SS53SSY
NONVD TL LS

TYLNIY WOOALSHA
TYINAd WOOULSHA

TOOMMOOT
SYYOMAAIA ATINL HLIY
1 ‘¥DI¥AY

SLOTIVE TIVW/EY
ENIHOVW HDIVLSOd
HSYHT JIALIVNO HLP

£€1/9 - 1€/S
£€T/9 - 1¢/S

€1/9 - 1¢/S

€/1 6ZE9L9ALLXOVAVYAXT
HOVIdHEY JA00¥ Ld3d JdId
G2€925340dXD0T244dT OXd

zZ/L - s2/9 aivodIIId

NOILATYDSHA HDIOANI

UALSIDAAE ADIAHD
ALNNOD AHMIOLS

dT NI SEDIAY¥ES TYHOTD J€S
ONI ¥HLNADIAV SA¥VYW LNIVS
ONI 0dddnyd

HONVINGWY NIVINOOW AMD0d

LYYW LNIVd ONIY

OTT dNO¥UD dIHSYITVAA ONIA

SEIANYD S.0d3d

(VD) ONI OD NVDIOW AWA

DTT E0¥dS dIdvy

‘0 NAYHIVA ‘AETOIND

ONI ‘SANDOYAdA

LNIANFITILIY ATdWI OITdNd
ONI SNOILATOS INIWNJ0JOAd
ONI SIMOY AINLId

(VET) TVdOTD SIMOL AINLIA

dASNOH Y¥Hd0 S5,¥3d41d

a OTIONY ‘INIALIAG

d % SLIVd MOMIL LIIIAIIA
ODNIJI00¥ ZdA¥aEd

AYINTHOVW HIVd

OTT VYIQEW INO¥ALNO
VOANIA

8T1/12/90
STETdd

€CET6
44343
icece

0ZeZ6

61EC6

8TEC6

L1ET6

91€EC6

STEZ6
viece
€1£C6
(AR X4
11e2e
0TeZ6

60£26

80€£26
(AR A
90¢€26
50€26
voeze
£0€C6
YAGWON
JADHHD

T 93eqg uny
:oN 3axodsy -



L

00°000°22

ST ELE

88°022'V
00°00T'€T
61°22

00°029°T

STV
€0°2%0°2
00°0Ss
00°0S
LA AN %4
00°8%
8€°9¢
00°0%1

007081

¥S°L9

00°02tT

05°8¢2

00°¥Cc

ZZ°681°'¥%

60719

TYLOL
ADEHD

obed

00°2¢ee
00°2ZLS'T
00°000°22
00°2¢tt
SL 8L
057291
88°022'V
00°00T‘€T
61°2¢¢C
00°L8
00°SE¥'T
00°86

ST PIY
€0°Z%0°2
00°0S
00°0§
12202 % 4
00°8¥
8€°9¢
00°0%1
00°0S
00°0s
00709
¥S'L9
00709
00709
05°8¢
007211
0021t
L9 LY
SS°ICT'V
0T T2
ve”

8L ¥

[
LNOOWY

veevs
veev8

¥16¥%8
25678
£T6¥8
£16%8
LS8Y8
8%8¥%8
66L78
£E678
£e6v8
£e6v8
TGs8%8
£08%8
6T6¥%8
26878
86L%8
9L8%8
SL8Y¥8
cy8vs
£06¥8
€06v8
£06%8

£vevs

L6LY8
L6LY8

zZE6¥8

vL8%8
vi.8%8

£88%8
£88v8

096v8
096%8
096%8
096%8

#SNTAL

81/22/9
81/2¢2/9

81/22/9
8T/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/z2/9
8T/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81/22/9
81/22/9

81r/zz/9
81/22/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

JIVa

81/22/9

£€1/9 - 1€/S
£€1/9 - 1¢€/S

ONILSOH 'NODISHd HALISHAM
NDISEA Qi¥D SSANISNE @M
NOISHQ d¥ HYIHM

HAIND LISIA JOHV.I IMYT N
NOILNLILSHEY

YOSSISSY F04

NIVIA ANVS wC

€T/9 - 1€/S

£1/9 - 1€/S
€1/9 - 1€/S

ATddVHYE - ININAVAIHIAO

DIT SNd HONYIVE ONINIVNIY

LI0ddNS AVH

YANVATD INVLOHANISIQ
SNOILAIYOSHYd TLVWNI
YALSdWNA ‘YIVLS

ANI JISSTIW -INOD LSdd
ANI JISSIW -INOD LSdd
ANI JISSIW -INOD 1Sdd

Q¥ NVHINIT 0%T

SWIOJIITOD
SWIOJIITOD

€T1/9 - 1¢€/S

ATIN HLVANI
ATIN ALVANI

/T NIWAV ZE£60-L¥8
SNOILVDINAWNWOD-ZT¥9-2S2

DLOA

(dA) TNIA
YIANOISSIWROD
wa

NOILAI¥DSEA IDIOANI

YILSIDAA ADIHD
AINNOD AHAOLS

SAQHMOD HANOLSHWOL HHL

ADNEDVY SOLNY dHL

ADNIODVY SOLNV HHL
IMDIA ‘¥OTAYL
ONI DJSSVY INAWIADYNVYW XVIL

SLONAodd TO04d JOIVIANS

SHSI¥YdIALINE AVHd NOS
WILSAS ¥FLVYM OD IS
YTANSVILL 0D IS

d4I¥HHS OO 1S

SYYOM DITENd 0D IS

ONI SHOIA¥AS ALITILN ddS
III [0 DININOQ ‘ENOTIVAS
YALNID DNYA ¥ 004 SHLIKWS

vdaa DT SHI¥LSNANI ADITIS

ONI TOYLNOD LSdd VIdHIS

0D JIMOd DIAIOVd VJIdIS

IYINTNNOYTANT VHAAIS

NATIV NVIdd ‘dVOHS

ONI SYOLNEIALSIA NUVWIATHS

ONI SHOIAY¥ES 'IVHOTOD DHES

YOANIA

8T/12/90
STETHd

142317

£vEZ6

Zvece
Tvece
oveEes

6€£EZ6

8EEZ6
LEEZE
9tEEC6
SEEC6
veEECe
£EETE
CEECE
TEECE

0gece

62€T6

8zezZe

LZEZ6

EXA XA

ErA XA

veeee

AITINON
ADHFHD
: ajeq unyg
:oN jxoday -



09°¢8 6287v8 81/22/9 AYIIIINYND ‘IT0D-1

€Y7 TYINIWNOIIANT NAILSHM S9€Z6
00°291 00°291 608%8 81/22/9 HSNOHLINOD
NAJYY '¥IANAEM ¥9€T6
05°89¢€ 0S°89¢€ LZ8Y8 81/22/9 YALSNOW ¥IONY
ONI 0Dazm €9€26
00°0%L 00°0¥%L 9z8%8 81/22/9 D11ddS HD
YEa AS JANVI DILdES S™ALUM Z9€26
8T T2T'T 8T°T2T'T 058%8 81/22/9 8T0Z AVA SIVAN QOOMMDOT
A¥ES AOINHS ALNNOD HOHSYM 19€26
00°009°2 00°009°2 8L8YV8 81/22/9 ASdOLOV LIFAIIVL
YINOYOD 0D HOHSYM 09€26
00°L9T°C 00°L9T’'C E¥8Y8 81/22/9 SHDIA¥AS 1SIALEOT
SHALYIDOSSY ¥ JYANTYM 6S€ET6
00-'oLz 00°0LZ €EBYS 81/22/9 SHNA VASN ddADS
adA SANVTIHOIH YINIDIIA 8SET6
00°00T 0082 9£67v8 81/22/9 €T/9 - 1g€/S
00 2L 9£6¥8 81/22/9 €T/9 - 1E/s
ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDAIA LSET6
00°00Z°€EZ 00°009°1T 9v6¥8 81/22/9 LT/9 ® 9T/9 NIVIL WVALS
00°009°TT 9¥6¥8 81/22/9 0T/9 % 6/9 NIVAL WYILS
0D A FAMDONAUL ¥ VINIDAIA 95€26
00°6LS'E 00°08T SE6V8 81/22/9 €1/9 - 1€/S
00°S¥Z‘¢€ SE6V8 81/22/9 €1/9 - 1€/S
00" ¥ST SE6V8 81/22/9 €1/9 - 1€/S
0D ¥ FANONAL ® VYINIDUIA SSEZ6
00°%LT 00" %LT 0z8¥8 81/22/9 . NIVML YW
ASINAG ‘ANI¥OLDIA-¥IMO¥HL ¥S€C6
PT €0€E 00°0¢ Z1698 81/22/9 LIN¥Ad ¥0N0IT INIAH
00°0§ z16v8 81/22/9 81/62/S INIDOA
00°0S Zi6%8 81/2¢2/9 8T/61/9 INID0A
LS 6 Z1678 81/22/9 S3ITdANS ANIFA TIAIOMOD
LS 6T z16%8 81/22/9 SAITIAANS ANI¥A THIDMOD
00" 0% Z16%8 gt/ze/9 HONOT ONILIAIW 8T/€T/9 LIA
00" %9 Zl6%8 81/22/9 8T1/8/9 ANAAILS INIDOQA
00°0S zZI6v8 81/22/9 8T/6T1/9 1NIDOA
DIOA €5€26
ZS VIE ZS viE 9£8%8 81/22/9 gSYL -DA
ONI ‘D04 1L ® A ZSET6
00°L99°8 00°L99'8 9v8%8 8t/zz/9 IW¥ODY aNNd L0 TIIg ATdL0
TYDIDOTOED SHILVLIS AILINA TS€C6
00°2L 00 2L 956%8 81/22/9 IYINEY XO€ Od
(OA)  dDIZIOLSOd sn 0S€26
T9°9€T T9°9¢€T S26v8 81/22/9 SWOOULSHY IAYYYd AVA WENW
N 40 SHDIA¥AS HLIS QEILINN (34349
00°060°TT 00°06% 65678 81/22/9
00°009°S 65678 81/22/9
00°000°S 65678 81/22/9
ONI ‘SEHIDOTONHOEL ¥IATAL 8VEZ6
00°08T 00°08T zzeve 81/22/9 YHINAD LISIA ¥0d EANIM
D MDIA 'ONITASSLIL LYETE
16°2LS'T T6°2LS'T 124:31] 81/22/9 MYAONAS 07dd /00% OT3A
077 WNHATOYLId SYWOHL 9v€Z6
06°20S 06°22% LLBY8 81/22/9 TIVL QATIYLSNI SMD¥d ddT
00°08 ¥8878 81/22/9 1IVL
AWALYVWIFHL SYETE
00°%06°T
TYL1OL LNNOWY H#SNVHL AR (] # 0/d NOILAIJOSAA ADIOANI ¥OANIA YHGWAN
ADIHD ADIHD
81/22/9 ¥ALSIDIY ADIHD 81/12/90 : 93eg uny

8 abeq ALNNOD AZ¥OLS STE€THA :ON 3xoday-

N



6

T6°LSE'TE9'T

g€C 116
00°00T
oL"T2T
02°L91

IVLOL
MOFHD

abed

TYLOL SADHHD

€T T16

00°00T

0L "TCT

09°¢€8

LNNOWY

15698
S16%8
8c8v8
62878

#SNVAL

81/22/9
81/2zZ/9
81/22/9
81/22/9

HILVa

81/22/9

SLSOD dWV¥D SSAAdXH ¥V¥I0d
aNOg YHANSVYIAAL

LIM ¥IVddY SMVYH
AVEIIINYAO ‘IT0D-1L

NOILJI¥DSAA ADIOANT

JALSIDIAA ADEHD
ALNNOD AJYOLS

NYEL VTYYD ‘NOSTIM
ANVAWOD ALAENS NIYIALSHM

00 AT1ddNS YAVAIN NIALSAM

FOANIA

81/12/90
STETHd

89¢l6
L9tZ6
99¢C6
FIGANN
ADHHD

ajeq uny
ON 2xoday:



dJLYd

NOILVZI¥YOHLNV ANV MIAIATY A0 ILNIAWIDTITMONMOVY

€5°601°8 %1301 pIeds

£5°601°8
8€° 9% SEVI 81/22/9 TIIE ADYIANIAN DVWS 8LYVOVY
$9°29 SEVT 81/22/9 dAWd VIA HDIANES ODSID 05069T9489999ZSHY
Ly 102 SEPT 81/22/9 INDW HLSYM OVAS 6-L9TT-TSO8LIE
86°62 SEVT 81/22/9 SHLYNINYT Q¥¥OV1d 105820
¥9°0€ PP 81/22/9 ¥d4dId HDIA¥HAS LANNHINI LIV €M
687695 1322 81/22/9 SANNLSOD YTWWNS -ATW NOZYWY €M
L1709 0T 81/22/9 SEITAdNS IDTII0 10d3d FOIAI0 Al
10°82 £v¥T 81/22/9 WLT FDONYSINN SANIVLS
00°LZ 8esT 81/22/9 SHITIANS T00d ITAL AVITOA- ATHLS
66°6¢€ 82ST 81/22/9 NIFUDSNAS NOZ VWY - ATI4S
6v 12 82ST 81/2Z/9 SAL INTNOTHD ‘ddVI DAY NOZYWY - AHYES
-00°21 8ZST 81/22/9 NANLAY LINSHIMS LATINO WIMS -AZAES
98701 82ST 81/22/9 SHAOTD -¥YEADVYNS 0DSHEY -AHAAS
66°6¢€ 82ST 81/22/9 NETADSNAS NOZYWY -AZd€S
00°0¢€ 6EVT 81/22/9 S1008 WJOAINA €1/90 SNINV "
86°60T (334 81/22/9 S1008 WIOAINA ZT/90 SNIXAY "¥
z9° 1€ 6EVT 81/22/9 INIVd LNVAAKH L0/90 SNINQV "¥
SL'ZY 8EVT 81/22/9 I N¥OH OSIg ¥H DW 1D ad ISNOH ONILSVOd Md
S6°6S 8EVT 81/22/9 0D¥N WOD " AIVOD0D Md
00°S¥ 9EVT 81/22/9 4 I7Ivd 304 EIVId FAWYN
T6°L61 8EVT 81/22/9 Md ODYN SHENITIIV NVDIVAWY WW
T16°L6T 8EVI 81/22/9  dAV¥DAN IVAS 43 ODYN SHENITAIV NVOIIIAWY WW
TT°L8 0%¥I 81/22/9 INID LISIA ¥Od SLANOVH INTAAVISIA QX
96°6€ (324 81/22/9 TIYMIAIA ALISHAM DIOA I¥ADNS ax
99°6S6°T 0v¥yT 81/22/9 SIMIHSL DA SUAHAVIDOJAL ONEN a3
€57 %S 0%¥T 81/22/9 SYALSOd ATINL HLP ONIININA Tdd ax
0€'9 0% 81/22/9 ONILAIN ® HAIIO0D HEIJ0D 0dId ax
S¥ 9%€E 8EVT 81/22/9 LINA HJI440 ETIGOW HNAPL HOVAS MDIND 40
€2 LY 82sT 81/22/9 SNOIS M¥¥d IS ONNOUDAV'IA-MNOSYL
¥Z' LY 82ST 81/22/9 SNOIS M¥¥d 1S ANNOADAYTL-MNOSYL
v¥Z LY 82ST 81/22/9 SNOIS M¥M¥d IS ANNOUDAYId-MNOSY[
vz LY 82sT 81/22/9 SNOIS M¥vd IS ANNOUDAV'IA-MNOSYL
88 €62 82ST 81/22/9 SNOIS TOOd NOTIV'ID - MNOSY
65°L0T YEVT 81/2Z/9 INNOD-EDIAZA HIOOLANTH YdEYr -SILEND "D
2z 901 8ZsT 81/22/9 HINI¥d NETIHEVT dADAET £P8S60NTI# ANT
08" 16 LEVT 81/2Z/9 SLYIHS LS04 AATAAANOM g ‘YANHAYD
8€°2S LEDT 81/22/9  SOVL I ¥ SAWVLS NI g ‘YANIAYD
00° 52 o9 81/2Z/9 SOV NILIVA NVEQ MOOHHEIV
ST 6¥%2C 0v¥I 81/22/9 av HLSYL plolel:icio) £t
02" €66 9EVT 81/22/9 AT HON ¥HANOD ¥IWY NI S9N¥A
€L°%TI LEDT 81/22/9 ¥ALOOHS FAILDY ATITINZ 1 ‘NEsod
LE T6T 6EVT 81/22/9 INIVW NOILVLS £1/90 ¥IAAANS ‘Q
v 28 6€VT 81/2z/9  dINDE DNISSIW/NINO¥L €1/90 ¥ATANS °Q
Lv'z VERT 81/22/9 #11440 OJHS OL HDVISOd Sdsn -NIAEN'D
9619 YEDT 81/22/9 INOHd HLITIALYS LS0davod -NIAEN'D
z6°58 YEVT 81/22/9 NAD QOOMIDOT -LANMEINT LLY -NIAIN'D
S9°LE 8EVT 81/22/9 oVdNTIS  ATH ‘TEAVEL SEAOT OY
v9°2ZL 8EVT 81/22/9 OVdNTS ATd ‘VAYAEN TALOH OV
95°5¥ 8EVT 81/22/9 ovanis ATE ‘S, ANNIA OY

INAWAVA QUVD TYIDYENWOD ENO STTIM 8€T
TYLOL LINNOWY HSNVAL FIYa NOILdI¥DSEA # EDIOANI LdHA-ANNA JOANIA YHEWNN

aygvo od
YILSIDIE qIVYD ASVYHOANG 81/1Z/90 © ®3eQ uny .

1 obeq ALNNOD AZAOLS 1508%S€d ‘ON 3z0d3y



YANOISSIWWOD

HINOISSINWNWOD
NYWAIVHD
HIANSTAAL
YATIOALANOD
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNVIL JIL¥a NOILJIY¥OSHA # HDIOANI 1ddad-aNnd JOANIA AIENON
[ag:Afo) od
JALSIDAY YD ASVHOANd 81/12/90 ¢ ®3eQ uny :»

[4 abeg AINNOD AHIOLS 1508%S€d *ON 3xodey

’



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 7-3-18 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title; Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary; First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

S. Sepporting materials; See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact;

Funds Available: Fund: . Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

Department Name:

Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

(1 Approved with Modifications
{1 Denied i1

Continued

Agenda [tem No. ) 'VI



P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 *mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 25, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the July 3, 2018, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
LICENSING BOARD

FIRST READINGS:

ECOCLEAN, INC - General / 26801 Northwestern Hwy ~ Southfield, M1
4 CONCRETE LLC - Contractor / 2735 Azuza Lane ~ Reno, NV
IGNACIO MADRIGAL-GONZALES, DBA:EL CARRETON - General/8716 Deer Cr ~ Stockton, CA
URETEK USA, INC - Contractor / 13900 Humble Rd ~ Tomball, TX
C.G. AUTOMATION & FIXTURE, INC - General / 5352 Rusche Dr ~ Comstock Pk, MI
ECARGO LLC — General / 545 Valle Verde Dr ~ Sparks, NV
RON COLCORD CONSTRUCTION - Contractor / 280 Vermillion ~ Reno, NV
ADVANTAGE TECHNICAL RESOUCING - General / 201 E. 4% St ~ Cincinnati, OH
AMERICAN SCALE CO, INC - General / 21326 E. Arrow Hwy ~ Covina, CA
LYRA CLINICAL ASSOCIATES, P.C. — General / 205 Park Rd ~ Burlingame, CA
ACE INSULATION NV INC - Contractor / 1306 Dynamic St ~ Petaluma, CA
WADE METAL WORKS LLC - General / 3025 Mill St ~ Reno, NV
. MEE2, INC — General / 171 Coney Island ~ Sparks, NV
FCC COMMUNICATION, INC - General / 1360 Greg St ~ Sparks, NV
SAIKAI ELECTIC CO, LTD - General / 34-19 Suehiro-cho ~ Osaka, JP
.AEM CONSULTING GROUP, INC - General / 1125 Ivy Lane ~ Ashland, OR

POZEFRETFEQTERESORY

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners” Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: February 6,2018 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda[ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title Consideration and possible approval of interlocal agreement with State Fire Marshal
delegating duties relating to the administration and enforcement of the 2012 International Fire
Code to County

2. Recommended motion: I (Commissioner) move to approve adoption of the
interlocal agreement with the State Fire Marshal’s Office delegating inspection duties to
Storey County

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The County previously approved an interlocal agreement with the State Fire
Marshal’s Office on February 20, 2018. In May, the State Fire Marshal’s Office sent the
agreement back to the County with minor changes. Those changes are incorporated in the
attached agreement

5. Supporting materials:
See Attached Agreement and Scope of Work

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

epartment Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. 8



INTRASTATE INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through lts
Department of Public Safety
State Fire Marshal Division
107 Jacobsen Way
Carson City, NV 89701
Phone (775) 684-7509 / Fax (775) 684-7507

and

Storey County Fire Protection District (District) and
Storey County, (County)(Collectively Agency)
110 Toll Road
PO Box 526
Virginia City, NV 89440
Phone (775) 847-0366/ Fax (775) 847-0935

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with any
one or more other public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking
which any of the public agencies entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services hereinafter set forth are both necessary and in the
best interests of the State of Nevada (“State”) and the Storey County Fire Protection District
(District) and Storey County; and

WHEREAS, District, by interlocal agreement (Agreement) with County, approved on October 3,
2017,has delegated its duties to administer and enforce the 2012 International Fire Code (Code)
to the Storey County Department of Community Development for a period of two years which
agreement automatically renews for additional two year periods unless previously terminated;
and,

WHEREAS, District and/or County may terminate the Agreement upon which termination the
duties to administer and enforce the Code will return to District

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as
follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved
by appropriate official action of each party.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page 1 of §

,/[_Formatted: Font color: Blue




2. DEFINITIONS. “State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein,
its officers, employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307.

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective upon approval_and last until June 20,
2021.

4. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by any party prior to the date set forth in
paragraph (3), provided that a termination shall not be effective until 60 days after a party has
served written notice upon the other parties. This Contract may be terminated by mutual
consent of all parties or unilaterally by any party without cause. This Contract may be
terminated by the State with less than 60 days notice after the Agency has been served written
notice that it has failed to comply with the terms of this Contract; has failed to comply with any
provision of NRS or NAC; or has failed to meet the personnel or program requirements of NRS
477.030, paragraph 10.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this
Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally
in hand, by telephonic facsimile with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the other party at the
address set forth above.

8. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the services to be performed shall
be specifically described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending
order of constructive precedence:

ATTACHMENT A: SCOPE OF WORK

7. CONSIDERATION. The Agency agrees to provide the services set forth in Attachment A at
no cost to the State based on other good and valuable services performed by each party under
this contract, including but not limited to the Agency's being permitted to gain benefits, including
collection of certain fees, which would otherwise be unavailable, from performing those
services. Any intervening end to an annual or biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an
automatic renewal (not changing the overall Contract term) or a termination as the results of
legislative appropriation may require.

8. ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments
of this Contract are also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective
order of precedence and any limitations expressly provided.

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.

a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under general accepted
accounting principles full, true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents as
are necessary to fully disclose to the other party, the State or United States Government, or
their authorized representatives, upon audits or reviews, sufficient information to determine
compliance with any applicable regulations and statutes.

b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic,
computer related or otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and
SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County

Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page2 of §



practices of the party, financial statements and supporting documentation, and documentation
related to the work product shall be subject, at any reasonable time, to inspection,
examination, review, audit, and copying at any office or location where such records may be
found, with or without notice by the other party, the State Auditor, Employment Security, the
Department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada State Attorney General's Office or
its Fraud Control Units, the State Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any federal funding,
the relevant federal agency, the Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the
Office of the Inspector General, or any of their authorized representatives.

c. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract
must be retained by each party for a minimum of three years and for five years if any federal
funds are used in this Contract. The retention period runs from the date of termination of this
Contract. Retention time shall be extended when an audit is scheduled or in progress for a
period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to complete any administrative and
judicial litigation which may ensue.

10. BREACH; REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall
be deemed a breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and
remedies of the parties shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and
remedies provided by law or equity, including but not limited to actual damages, and to a
prevailing party reasonable attorneys' fees and costs.

11. LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter
41 liability limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive
damages. To the extent applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited to
the amount appropriated for the performance of the contract

12. EORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is
prevented from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public
transportation, civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts
of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods, winds, or storms. In such an event the
intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the
excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after
the intervening cause ceases.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may
exist in law or equity.

14. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for
the purposes and to the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of
services pursuant to this Contract, each party is and shall be a public agency separate and
distinct from the other party and, subject only to the terms of this Contract, shall have the sole
right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance of the details incident to its
duties under this Contract. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or construed to
create a partnership or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or
principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the
indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency or any other party.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page3 of §




15. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular
breach of the Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a
waiver by such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach.

16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a
court of law or equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the
nonenforceability of such provision shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions
of this Contract unenforceable.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or
duties under this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law or
this Contract, any reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs,
negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system designs, computer code (which is intended to
be consideration under this Contract), or any other documents or drawings, prepared or in the
course of preparation by either party in performance of its obligations under this Contract shall
be the joint property of both parties.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to
public inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular
record is made confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form,
produced, prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is
confidential by law or otherwise required by this Contract.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing
this Contract on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and
that the parties are authorized by law to perform the services set forth in Attachment A.

22. GOVERNING LAW: JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the
parties hereto shall be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of
Nevada. The parties consent to the jurisdiction of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of
this Contract.

23. ENTIRE _AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated
attachment(s) constitute the entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a
complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, discussions,
and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject matter hereof.
Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to amend a
particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in language between any such attachment and
this Contract shall be construed consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless otherwise
expressly authorized by the terms of this Contract, no modification or amendment to this
Contract shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in writing and signed by the
respective parties hereto, approved by the State of Nevada Office of the Attorney General.

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page d of §



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be

legally bound thereby.

Board of County Commissioners of Storey County

By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman

Board of Fire Commissioners,
Storey County Fire Protection District

By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman

Approved as to form:

Anne Langer, Storey County District Attomney

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, Storey County Clerk

Bart J. Chambers, State Fire Marshal Division

Sheri Brueggemann,
Department of Public Safety , Director's Office

Approved as to form by:

Dated this day of ,2018
Dated this day of 2018
Dated this day of 2018
Dated this day of 2018

Title Date
Chief
Title Date
Administrative Services Officer
Title Date

Nathan Hastings, Deputy Attomey General
for Attomey General, State of Nevada

(Date)

SFM & Storey County Fire Protection District and Storey County
Intrastate Interlocal Contract
Page 5 of 5



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 3, 2018 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required | ]

1. Title: Recommendation to award contract to successful bidder for the construction of the Five
Mile Waterline Replacement Project.

2. Recommended motion: I move to award contract to the successful bidder (TBD) for the
construction of the Five Mile Waterline Replacement Project in the amount of (TBD.)

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: PLEASE NOTE THAT BIDS FOR THIS PROJECT WILL BE OPENED
ON 06/28/18. THE BID TABULATION SHEET WILL MADE AVAILABLE TO YOU
PRIOR TO THE COMMISSION MEETING DATE.

The project includes replacement of the Five Mile Waterline.

5. Supporting materials: Notice of Bid Opportupity
Contract Documen'ts ¢ avatlable for reference at the Commissioner’s
Oftice

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: l[//
= District Attorney
8. Reviewed py:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

@%nty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
1] Approved
[] Denied

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

e —

Agenda Item No. Ol



Cherie Nevin
L. ]

From: Chuck Reno <chuck@farrwestengineering.com>

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 3:32 PM

To: Jason Wierzbicki; Mike Nevin; Cherie Nevin

Cc: Pat Whitten; Lucas Tipton; Nelson, John - RD, Carson City, NV
Subject: 5-Mile Pipeline Project Bid Information

All-

As you know, late last week we received clearance from USDA to go to bid.

The below Bid Advertisement is planned to be published in the Comstock Chronicle for two consecutive weeks (Friday
June 1% and Friday June 8t).
e A mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting is scheduled for Wednesday June 20" at 1:00pm
¢ The Bid Opening is scheduled for June 28™ at 2:00pm
¢ County Commissioners review, acceptance and award of the contract will be placed on the agenda for the july 3rd
meeting. Thanks Cherie!
s Farr West will reach out to potential bidders on Friday and let them know the project is out to bid.

Ad:

STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Storey County Public Works, as Owner, will receive sealed
proposals (bids) delivered to: Farr West Engineering, 5-Mile Water Line Project, 5510 Longley Lane, Reno, Nevada 89511
up to the hour of 2:00 p.m. on June 28 , 2018. Bids, therefore, will be subsequently opened and read publicly. It is
anticipated that County Commissioners will consider awarding the Contract on June 19, 2018. This project consists of the
replacement of approximately 14,500 feet of raw water line from the 5-Mile Reservoir to 1.5 miles west of the water
treatment plant. The Engineer’s Estimate is $1,580,000.00. A mandatory pre-bid conference will be held at 1:00 p.m. on
June 20, 2018 at the Storey County Water Treatment Plant, 100 Ophir Grade, Virginia City, NV. The Contract Documents
may be examined and downloaded for free at the Farr West Bid Room at: http://farrwestengineering.com/bidroom.htmi,
and may be examined at Nevada Blue Plan Room, Reno NV. The Contract Documents with all project requirements may
be purchased at Nevada Blue for the cost of printing. Questions regarding this project shall be directed to: Mr. Chuck
Reno P.E., chuck@farrwestengineering.com. State prevailing wage rates shall apply.

FARR WEST

ENGINEERING

Chuck Reno, P.E., W.R.S.
Senior Engineer

Farr West Engineering
5510 Longley Lane

Reno, NV 89511

Main: (775) 851-4788

Direct: (775) 853-7264

Cell: (775) 225-0096

Fax: (775) 851-0766
www.farrwestengineering.com




USDA

= |
United States Department of Agriculture

Mm‘chg, 2018

Marshall McBride, Chairman via e-mail
Storey County Commissioners

P.O. Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

SUBJECT:  Storey County — 5 Mile Water Project -Plans, Specification and Contract
Documents Concurrence — Authorization to go to Bid

Dear Mr. McBride:

The USDA Rural Development has reviewed the Plans and Specifications and the response to
our comments and concur with the submittal. Based on our review of the Plans, Specifications,
and the Contract Documents, we hereby authorize you to go to bid on this proposed project. Any
addendum issued during the bid process must be submitted to me for concurrence. Do not
award the contract until we issue an approval to award letter.

If you have any questions, please call John Nelson at 775-887-1222 ext. 4759 or email at
john.nelsond@nv.usda.gov.

Sincerely,

/fc%w%
State Engineer

/7 USDA Rural Development (Nevada)

ce: Cherie Nevin, Storey County via e-mail
Chuck Reno, Farr West Engineering via ¢-mail
Greg Lyman, Farr West Engineering via e-mail
Cheryl Couch, USDA RD via e-mail
Pat Whitten, Storey County via e-mail
Lisa Goodfellow, USDA RD via e-mail

Rural Development « Nevada State Office
1390 South Curry Street « Carson City, NV 88705
Voice 775.887.1222 » Fax 855.816.1209

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 3, 2018 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1.

2

w

~

10.

Title; Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit Application 18-020: The applicant requests a
special use permit for the purpose of construction or placement of uses allowable in the F Forestry
zone including a site-built or manufactured single-family residence, agriculture and horticulture uses
incidental to the principal domestic use, general agricultural uses and structures, continued use and
maintenance of an existing solar energy generating facility, and other accessory improvements related
thereto on property located at 700 and 800 Menezes Way (APN 004.131.13), Lockwood, Storey
County, Nevada.

Recommended motion: (see Enclosure A Recommended Motion 18-020)

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968
Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-020

Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2018-020

Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
Legal review required: District Attorney

part.ment Head Department Name: Planning

AV County Manager Othcr agency review:

éoard action:
[] Approved Nk
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

St St

Agenda Item No. lo



CASE No.:

APPLICANT:
PROPERTY OWNER:
PROPERTY LOCATION:

REQUEST:

MEETING LOCATION:

MEETING TIME & DATE:

STAFF CONTACT:

Storey County

Board of County Commissioners

Staff Report

2018-020

Mark Menezes

Herman and Mark Menezes

700 and 800 Menezes Way, Lockwood, Storey County, Nevada

The applicant requests a special use permit for the purpose of
construction or placement of uses allowable in the F Forestry zone
including a site-built or manufactured single-family residence,
agriculture and horticulture uses incidental to the principal
domestic use, general agricultural uses and structures, continued
use and maintenance of an existing solar energy generating facility,
and other accessory improvements related thereto on property
located at 700 and 800 Menezes Way (APN 004.131.13),
Lockwood, Storey County, Nevada.

Storey County Courthouse
26 South “B” Street, Virginia City, Nevada

Planning Commission: 6:00 p.m., Thursday, June 21, 2018.

_ County Commission: 10:00 a.m., Tuesday, July 3, 2018.

Austin Osborne, Planning Director

1 of 11



Staff Report — 2018-020 Storey County Planning Department
Menezes SFR/Solar 775.847.1144

L. BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1 Site characteristics

The subject property is approximately 187 acres and is located in the F Forestry zone. The land is
situated upon an isolated bluff approximately three miles west of Canyon Way in Lockwood.
Existing improvements include a solar energy generating facility encompassing approximately
2.5 acres in area, mass grading, and an access road.

1.2 Proposed use

The applicant proposes to construct a site-built or manufactured single-family residence,
agriculture and horticulture uses incidental to the principal domestic use, general agricultural
uses and structures, continued use and maintenance of an existing solar energy generating
facility, and other accessory improvements related thereto on the subject property. The solar
energy system on the property is not proposed to be used for commercial energy production;
however, the special use permit, as proposed, will allow it to be used for domestic and
commercial energy production. If the solar energy facility expands in area, an amendment to this
special use permit or a new special use permit exclusive to the solar expansion will be required.

1.3  Abutting uses

The property is almost entirely surrounded by vacant F Forestry zoned land. Situated toward the
northeast corner of the subject property are several parcels containing a mixture of commercial,
industrial, and residential zones and uses, each of which are owned by the applicant and/or his
immediate family.

1.4  AreaImpacts

The proposed use will be located in a remote area which is further isolated by the immediate
surrounding topography. There are no uses, zoning allowances, or master plan provisions in the
area with which the use may become in conflict. The future potential for the surrounding land
includes additional heavy industrial uses to those already existing to the north, and other uses
listed in the F Forestry zone on the remaining sides.

The solar energy system on the subject property may be used for domestic and commercial
energy production purposes. However, if the solar energy system expands in lateral area, an
amendment to this special use permit is required in order to address safety, vehicular access, and
other impacts that may be potentially caused by a large solar energy generation system.

1.5 Planning commission action

On 06/21/18 the planning commission heard testimony from county Planning staff and the
applicant. Discussion included use of the land, expansion of the existing solar facility, and legal
access to the property. No comments were made by members of the public and no
correspondence was received from abutting or other property owners. The special use permit was
approved by a unanimous vote of all members present, with Kris Thompson and Jim Hindle
being absent.

2 of 11



Staff Report — 2018-020 Storey County Planning Department
Menezes SFR/Solar 775.847.1144

Figure 1.1: Subject property and vicinity. The image demonstrates the remoteness of the area subject
to proposed development and its relation to existing uses located near the northeast corner of the
property. The residence subject to the requsted special use permit will be connected into the exisitng
solar energy generating facility shown in the image.

3of 11



Staff Report — 2018-020
Menezes SFR/Solar

II.

2.1

Storey County Planning Department

USE COMPATIBILITY AND COMPLIANCE

775.847.1144

Subject land and surrounding master plan and zoning designations

The following table shows uses, zoning classifications, and master plan designations for the land
at and surrounding the proposal.

LAND USE

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION

ZONING

APPLICANT’S
LAND

Mostly vacant, and including
a solar energy facility

Lockwood-Mustang Area,
Resource

F Forestry

LAND TO Vacant (north) Lockwood-Mustang Area, F Forestry (north)
NORTH Industrial, manufacturing, and|Resource (north) and 12 Heavy Industrial
processing (northeast corner) {Industrial (northeast corner) |(northeast corner)

LAND TO SOUTH | Vacant Lagomarsino Area, F Forestry (south)
Resource (south) and 12 Heavy Industrial
Industrial (southeast corner) | (southeast corner)

LAND TO EAST | Vacant Lockwood-Mustang Area, F Forestry
Resource

LAND TO WEST | Vacant Lockwood-Mustang Area, F Forestry
Resource

23  Conformance with the 2016 Storey County Master Plan

The subject property is located within the Lockwood-Mustang planning area in the 2016 Storey
County Master Plan. Lockwood is described as the principal population center at the north end of
the county, at which approximately one-third of county’s residents live. The area is described as
an emerging mixed-use community of single-family residential uses intermixed with commercial
and industrial uses and zones. This mixed-use pattern is expected and encouraged to continue
into the foreseeable future; however, county leaders are encouraged to consider potential use
compatibility and conflicts between residential and non-residential uses.

The subject property is designated in the master plan as Resource. The south border of the
subject property abuts the Lagomarsino planning area, and that abutting land is similarly
designated as Resource.

Conforming land use zoning and uses in the Resource designation include forest and rangeland,
irrigated agriculture, natural resources, and recreation. Forest and rangeland are most

4 of 11




Staff Report — 2018-020 Storey County Planning Department
Menezes SFR/Solar 775.847.1144

appropriately zoned F Forestry, a zone which is intended to protect areas in the county having
important environmental and resource qualities from unnecessary degradation, and to provide
areas of very low density (i.e., 40-acre minimum) single-family residential and other compatible
uses. Uses allowable within the F Forestry zone include rural residential; mining and processing;
renewable energy generation; recreation; and certain agricultural uses. The master plan states
that all uses are to require oversight and special approval by the board with action by the
planning commission, and the F Forestry zone conforms to this guiding principle.

24 Conformance with zoning

The subject property is zoned F Forestry. Storey County Code 17.32 F Forestry zone requires a
special use permit for all uses listed in the zone. One single-family detached dwelling of
permanent character and location, general agricultural uses and structures, agricultural uses
incidental to the principal domestic use (i.e., to the single-family residence), and energy
production including solar, are uses allowed in this zone with a special use permit. The south
abutting parcel, located in the Lagomarsino master plan area and designated Resource, is also
zoned F Forestry.

The approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the special use permit request must be based
on findings of fact that the proposed use is appropriate or inappropriate in the location. The
findings of fact listed in Section III below are the findings recommended to be included in an
approval or denial of the requested special use permit.

There are no evident conflicts between the proposal and the county master plan and zoning. The
proposed use is consistent with the surrounding rural undeveloped land that allows for very low
density residential uses, and industrial developed land allowing light and heavy manufacturing,
energy production, and distribution.

5 of 11



Staff Report — 2018-020
Menezes SFR/Solar

Storey County Planning Department
775.847.1144

NVId HILSVIN 9102

Offictal Master Plan
Map of Storey County
Lockwood - Mustang
Sub-Planning Area
Advgeed by Phaming Conndivies

August 4, 3800
]

T bt BN

£ common<;

£ roainimueaitionns 0
Q) west

G siomidnions. ®

[ m FAOEIE

£ romint s et T

) v spex o s

Subrouives
o oo o o S

- cossnin
e, e ot Bt s

‘Subject Property

69 a8eyg

“Thie 0 senif th 8 i e VI Miwwer
o Mool Soory S’

{(Panuizuon) dowy Dasy Butuud(d BUnISNN-POOMNIOT UBId L13ISOIA (050 € 3410814

€ 44 LdVHD

HLMOYD B 43S ANV

Figure 2.1: Master Plan Designation Map for Lockwood-Mustang Area Plan.

6 of 11




Staff Report — 2018-020
Menezes SFR/Solar

NVId H3.LSVIN 9102

6L oFed

Official Master Plan
Map of Storey County
Lagomarsino
Mupred mﬁzmw

D i

Toe & tp w5 e () Mo
o Mok ey oty

t
o e om o by nt

dupy HRE] ey OUIRIBORET] UeLd SNSuly 9g-+ € saniing

Storey County Planning Department
775.847.1144

€ Yd.LdVHD

HIMOYD B SN ANV

Figure 2.2: Master Plan Designation Map for Lagomarsino Area Plan. The subject porperty, located
witin the Lockwood-Mustang area plan abuts to its south the Lagomarsino area plan.

III. FINDINGS OF FACT

3.1  Motion for approval

The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the requested special use permit when
the recommended conditions of approval in Section IV Recommended Conditions of Approval,

are applied.

1. This special use permit is granted for the purpose construction or placement of uses
allowable in the F Forestry zone including a site-built or manufactured single-family
residence, agriculture and horticulture uses incidental to the principal domestic use,
general agricultural uses and structures, continued use and maintenance of an existing
solar energy generating facility, and other accessory improvements related thereto on

7 of 11



Staff Report — 2018-020 Storey County Planning Department
Menezes SFR/Solar 775.847.1144

3.2

property located at 700 and 800 Menezes Way (APN 004.131.13), Lockwood, Storey
County, Nevada.

The solar energy system on the subject property may be used for domestic and
commercial energy production purposes. However, if the solar energy system expands in
area (beyond 10 acres), an amendment to this special use permit or a new special use
permit exclusive to that expansion will be required. Should such occur in the future, a
conditional approval or denial of that exclusive special use permit or expansion for the
solar use shall not affect the remaining uses on the property under this special use permit
(Special Use Permit No. 2018-020).

The existing solar energy generating system was permitted by the county and constructed
without a required special use permit, and, therefore, is a non-conforming use. The use,
however, conforms to the purpose and allowed uses in the F Forestry zone, and the
special use permit hereby requested will resolve and nullify the nonconforming condition.

The proposed uses conform to Lockwood-Mustang planning area and do not conflict with
the south abutting Lagomarsino planning area of the 2016 Storey County master plan,
and the uses conform to the master plan Resource designation.

The subject property is zoned F Forestry. This zone provides for a wide-range of uses,
and each use requires a special use permit to ensure that the subject land remains rural in
character and that environmental qualities of the land are protected from unnecessary
degradation. The proposals conform to the F Forestry zoning designation.

The subject property is located in a remote area of the county and the proposed use is
further isolated by the property’s immediate physical topography.

The special use permit will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on
the abutting properties or the surrounding area, and the zones and uses existing therein,
and it will comply with all federal, state, and county regulations.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the special use permit request, the

following findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

1.

The proposed residence, agriculture and horticulture uses incidental to the principal
domestic use, general agricultural uses and structures, continued use and maintenance of
an existing solar energy generating facility, and other accessory improvements related
thereto conflict with the master plan designation or zoning of the subject property or
abutting properties.

The special use permit will impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding area, and the zones and uses existing therein, and it
will not comply with all federal, state, and county regulations.

The conditions of the special use permit do not adequately mitigate potential adverse
impacts or safety hazards on surrounding uses.

8 of 11



Staff Report — 2018-020 Storey County Planning Department
Menezes SFR/Solar 775.847.1144

IV.

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable county department, unless
otherwise stated.

1.

Purpose. This special use permit is granted for the purpose construction or placement of
uses allowable in the F Forestry zone including a site-built or manufactured single-family
residence, agriculture and horticulture uses incidental to the principal domestic use,
general agricultural uses and structures, continued use and maintenance of an existing
solar energy generating facility, and other accessory improvements related thereto on
property located at 700 and 800 Menezes Way (APN 004.131.13), Lockwood, Storey
County, Nevada. The solar energy system on the subject property may be used for
domestic and commercial energy production purposes. However, if the solar energy
system expands in area (beyond 10 acres), an amendment to this special use permit or a
new special use permit exclusive to that expansion will be required. A conditional
approval or denial of that exclusive special use permit or expansion for the solar use shall
not affect the remaining uses on the property under Special Use Permit No. 2018-020.

Permits and expiration. The permit holder must apply for all building and fire permits
for the structure within 24 months from the date of board approval, and continuously
maintain the validity of those permits, as appropriate, or this approval will become null
and void. The permit holder is also responsible for obtaining a certificate of occupancy or
certificate of completion for the existing solar energy generating facility within the
timeframe specified herein.

Transfer of Rights. This special use permit shall inure to the record owner of the subject
property and shall run with the land defined herein. This special use permit, subject to its
terms and conditions, may be transferred by the permit holder, its successors, heirs or
assigns. The record owner may rent or lease the land; however, in such case the record
owner is ultimately responsible for compliance with the special use permit regulations.

Record of survey. The permit holder must submit to the building department a Record of
Survey with the building permit application. The map must show existing parcel
boundaries, easements, and right-of-ways. No building may be constructed over an
easement or right-of-way, or within a building setback area.

Legal Access. The permit holder must establish legal access to the subject property via
easement or other legal means before placement of the residence may occur. The access
must be recorded with the Storey County Recorder’s Office as required by NRS.

Physical Access. The permit holder must document the proposed access to the parcels.
Access must be consistent with county and fire district requirements. Evidence of any
proposed access easements across private property will be provided and the easements
recorded prior to any permits being issued.

9 of 11



Staff Report — 2018-020 Storey County Planning Department
Menezes SFR/Solar 775.847.1144

7. Taxes paid. Before obtaining a building permit, the applicant must show the building
department evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

8. Well and Septic Improvements. The property must be developed with a domestic well
and septic system adequate in capacity to meet the minimum requirements for a single-
family residence.

9. Road and driveway improvement. The private driveway must be adequately compacted
or surfaced to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles and equipment. The surface
must be completed to the satisfaction of the building department and fire district.

10. Stormwater management. Any increased stormwater from development of the land
must be detained on-site or directed appropriately to the abutting public right-of-ways
and not allowed to enter abutting private properties. Stormwater drainage onto the right-
of-way must be to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director.

11. Compliance. The permit holder is responsible for maintaining the premises in
conformance with all conditions of this special use permit and all other federal, state, and
county regulations.

V. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the planning commission must take such action thereon as it
deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the planning commission upon which
it bases its decision. The decision of the planning commission in the matter of granting the
special use permit is advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing
body must consider the report and recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it
deems warranted.

VI. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by staff in accordance with the findings under section 3.1 of this report. Those
findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for denial may be made and that motion
should cite one or more of the findings shown in section 3.2. Other findings of fact determined
appropriate by the planning commission should be made part of either motion.

A. Recommended motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the planning commission, the
findings of fact under section 3.1 of this report and/or other findings deemed
appropriate by the board, and compliance with all conditions of approval, I
(commissioner) hereby motion to approve Special Use Permit No. 2018-020 for the
construction or placement of uses allowable in the F Forestry zone including a site-
built or manufactured single-family residence, agriculture and horticulture uses
incidental to the principal domestic use, general agricultural uses and structures,
continued use and maintenance of an existing solar energy generating facility, and

10 of 11



Staff Report — 2018-020 Storey County Planning Department
Menezes SFR/Solar 775.847.1144

other accessory improvements related thereto on property located at 700 and 800
Menezes Way (APN 004.131.13), Lockwood, Storey County, Nevada. The solar
energy system on the subject property may be used for domestic and commercial
energy production purposes. However, if the solar energy system expands in area
(beyond 10 acres), an amendment to this special use permit or a new special use permit
exclusive to that expansion will be required. A conditional approval or denial of that
exclusive special use permit or expansion for the solar use shall not affect the
remaining uses on the property under Special Use Permit No. 2018-020.

B. Alternative motion

Against the recommendation by staff and the planning ¢ omission, in accordance with
the findings of fact under section 3.2 of this report and/or other findings deemed
appropriate by the board, I (commissioner) hereby motion to deny Special Use Permit
No. 2018-020 for the construction or placement of uses allowable in the F Forestry
zone including a site-built or manufactured single-family residence, agriculture and
horticulture uses incidental to the principal domestic use, general agricultural uses and
structures, continued use and maintenance of an existing solar energy generating
facility, and other accessory improvements related thereto on property located at 700
and 800 Menezes Way (APN 004.131.13), Lockwood, Storey County, Nevada.

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Enclosures:
Exhibit A — Assessor’s Vicinity Map/Record of Survey

Exhibit B — Zoom — Assessor’s Vicinity Map/Record of Survey
Exhibit C — Application 2018-020

11 of 11



ASY HALL
E&SO } HCCARRAN BLVD
SPARKS WY 89431

05/31/2018  1:58PM 0
000000HB0T CLERKOY

OTARY
%mm $5.00
TTENS 20

CHARGE $12. 50

5g 1551
S TsrT
uS AGAIN

$1.50

RECEIVED

JUN OB Ro4g

STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING

Storey County P!ann ng Department
26 South B Street, P.O. Box 17 , Virginia City, NV 89440

Phone: 775-847-1144 Fax: 775-847-0049
planning@stors icounty.org

Development Application

Submit this completed application and all attachments along with the application fee (see page two for type of
application and fees) at least 30 days prior to the meeting you wish to have your request scheduled. The application
will not be accepted unless complete, including attachments (applicant will be notified within 15 days if application is
not acceptable and what is still required). The application fee is non-refundable. Please make checks payable to
Storey County Planning Department,

Project Number:

2018 -020

Paston (3( -3097

Property Owner:;

Mailing Address:WEm_mMs bOC..\A‘
City: Spgﬁ\ﬁ,g& / LQQku)chg:& State: h}l/ _ zp 8543

Telephone: (NDE)_ DUQ - OU (L FEmail Wleal @ vk, eutcer

Allland owners must be listec on this applicalion. Type or print fegibly in black or blue Ink.

Applicant

Mailing Address;

Wleale Wlenez s,

800 VV/eneres b(/aw

All applicants must be listed on this application,

cny;m{zﬁméz,s/wa State: j{/ v Zip_ £9¢43Y

¢
Telephone: (}28)._ 25U -0 (Y emal. . TN\ eal @ k. ewci |
| [CGold Hin OVirginia City * ] veC Highlands [T Highland Ranches [ Virginia Ranches
(1 acre) (10 acres} (40 acres)

CIMark Twain [JHafed/Mustang BdCockwood [JPainted Rock [JTR! [JOther
Project Address:_ 1€ Mi'a*w g.[l{ Loo Menez e W"‘I

Assessor's Parcel Numbers (APN).___ OO ~ 131~ 13

Paxeel 1

Block: Acreage: | 8 (p . 830

IR



Sorey Coundy Dovelopnent Apphioation

Professional Consultant/Representative(s)

Name:

Address:

City: State: Zip:
Phone: Email; Cell:

¥

Prinled name
project and/or request, and all the statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in
all respects complete, true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee

can e gjven by members.ofthe Storey County Planning Department Staff,
Z

qg{ﬂfﬁﬁgﬁﬁ Date / /
State of Nevada,

County of Sterey Washee

Amant’s Afﬂg‘avit:
i AP L(. \J\I enezel . being duly sworn, depose and say that | am the applicant of the described
)

s

Signed and sworn to before me on:

B i Bl O by,
WAes& . \Mewezes

Notary's Signature

My Comigsion Expires

Applicant’s Affidavit:

1, , being duly sworn, depose and say that | am the applicant of the described
Printed name
project and/or request, and all the statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in

all respects complete, true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee
can be given by members of the Storey County Planning Department Staff.

Signature of Applicant Date

State of Nevada,
County of Storey

Signed and sworn to before me on:

by,

Date

Notary's Signature

My Commission Expires



stovey Coanty Deselopimwens Applivation

Pro‘f“?rtybwn??&fﬁdavit:
I, ’/'/ :~é / — e 2 €4 | being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described

~/Printed nm
property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief, | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the Storgy Cpu /V’Iay ing Department Staff. /
/x/ﬂ. 7= 5/3/ /&
Sigfallre; fpyfp AL Date

7 | /77

State of vNeVa'da,
County of Stefey Weaslwe

Signed and sworn to before me on:

E)%JSA«:A@A‘ 7_\ \ X ;Zf) \E( by,

™ , ' 4 HEATHER MCKINNEY
7 . ({aa8y: Notary Public - State of Nevada
ooy s Signatura ‘\s e m‘ 'W 2870-0 ol Whm%

Clasqusd 35— 04/

v Cemimishion Expires

Property Owner’s Affidavit:
I y/%{é/vfﬁy/yfﬁngf being duly sworn, depose and say that | am an owner* in fee of the described

Printed name
property involved in this application, that | have knowledge of, and agree to, the filling of this application, and that the
statements and answers herein contained and the information herewith submitted are in all respects complete, true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief. | understand that no assurance or guarantee can be given by members of

the mnmng Dgpgrtment Staff. ‘
: )

Signatufe of Property Owner Date

State of Nevada,
County of Sterey- [/\76« s/me

Signed and sworn to before me on:

HEATHER MCKINNEY

o] migsion Expires




L en X Yo

Detail Description/Justification of Project
Attached additional pages as necessary

Constvo ot simq\c o \u‘

Res




sierey Connly Developnent Applivation

Application Type

Application Fee

Application Type

Application Fee

] Abandonment $200.00 | Amended Map n/a

__| Condition n/a Boundary Line $250.00 + 25.00 per lot
Amendment Adjustment

| Development $1,000.00 [_] Extension of Time 50% of Original Fee

Agreement (Requires a
Special Use Permit)

Request (One Year
Extension Only)

[ TLand Division Map | $500.00 + $50.00 per | [_] Lot Consolidation n/a

(40 acre minimum) lot

| ] Master Plan Map $2,900.00 [ TMaster Plan Text $800.00
Amendment Amendment

{1 Natural Resources $65.00 per hour ] Street Name n/a
Exploration and Request

Registration

] Parcel Map - $250.00 + 25.00 per lot [_] Parcel Map Final n/a

Record of Survey

|| Planned Unit

$500.00 + 1.00 per lot

L] Planned Unit

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

Development (PUD) - Development - Final

Tentative o~

*Special Use Permit £$250.00./ ] *Special Use Permit | $450.00
- Minor - Routine

[ ] *Special Use Permit | $750.00 [ ] *Special Use Permit | $2,500.00

- Major

- Major Industrial

] Subdivision Map -
Tentative

$500.00 + 1.00 per lot

[ ] Subdivision Map -
Final

$200.00 + 25.00 per lot

[ TVvariance - n/a [ ] Variance $100.00
Administrative
[ ] Wireless [ ] Wireless n/a
Communication Facility Communication

Facility, Modification
[ ] Zoning Map Change | $1,000.00 [] Zoning Text Change | n/a

Note: Additional fees to cover costs accrue by the county in association with the application, including
staff time and consultation with outside legal and professional council may be charged to the
applicant. No additional fees will be charged without expressed written permission by the applicant.

Applicants Initials

*If you are applying for a Special Use Permit, please refer also to the Storey County Special Use
Permit Definitions List when determining a minor, major, routine or major industrial permit.




Submittal Requirements

Application Type

Detailed
Description/Justification
Qriginal Map Mylar

Map & Data in CAD
Format on Disk

Vicinity Map

Floor Plan

Legal Description - Deed

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS
i
|

Title Report

Drainage Report

Scils Report

Traffic Report

Water Rights

Reclamation Plan

Additional Information
from Planning Dept.

Special Use Permit - Minor

Special Use Permit - Routine

Special Use Permit — Major

Special Use Permit —
Major Industrial

s | s | > | % Paid Tax Receipt
> | X | X |X| Reduced Size Map

Street Name Request

Subdivision Map - Tentative

X X X Ix|X

>
bd

Subdivision Map - Final

M| > | || X Plot Plan

bad
»
>
b

Variance - Administrative

Variance

Wireless Communication
Facility

oI x> x| XXX | Development Application

Wireless Communication
Facility, Modification

Zoning Map Change

X x| X x| X
o

Zoning Text Change

olojolo|ojojojc|ojo| g |D|0d|®E

Other

FARE BRI S N A D B A B Il
b

P IR B

XXX X

HKIX )y X | X
>

s Ioe] s b x> x]x

Note: Additional information and

materials may be required with the application.




Workspaces v

@

et}

g




Received From:

MENEZES BROTHERS LLC

For:

2018-020 MENEZES SUP

Fund Fund Description

001 GENERAL

Recelpt No.

2218

Fiscal Year:

Treasurer' Receipt
STCREY COUNTY TREASURER

VANESSA STEPHENS
26 SOUTH B STREET
P.OC. DRAWER D

VIRGINIA CITY, NV.

Account
001-000-32206-000

2018

89440

Description

PLANNING SPEC USE/VAR

No. 2218

Date: 06/06/18

#erk*Rwex50,00

Amount
250.C0CR

wwwRkrE*C250 00

Bank Bank Description
199 WELLS FARGO CC ACCOUNT

Receipt No.

2218

Fiscal Year:

2018 Bank Account Total:

Amount
250,00

*rkkRARR®250 . 00

Check amount

Total Cash:
Total Checks:
Total Non Cash:
Credit Cards:
Total Othex:

250.00

*****W*****AOO
*RERRRRRIE0 . 00
FhAERARRARE Q0
FhAKEEFRRAN 00
KR F RS R EFER 00

ABAY

Check#t 1734

Payer MENEZES BROTHER

&

Treapurer

Deputy



S

Menezes Brothers LLc
100 Canyon Way
Sparks, NV 89434

PAY,
. 70 THE
ORDER OF

Nevada State Bank

FOR ,é@fsﬁlgj—mds.ﬂéw Jéér,_t

%ﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁ%ﬁmﬁwvwwm »»»»»»

f— e i P T



Parcel Number 004-131-13 Prior # (F4) 004-131-10 Changed 12/10/13

Last Updated 12/12/17 By JVS Created by split; Primary # ©04-131-11

. Ownership .. ....... .. T ¢ FﬁpAli.aners,,,f7rD cumants,.

Legal Owner......... MENEZES H IT 3 otice. _

Assessed Owner...... MENEZES H ‘ Force A% Message... —

Mail Address........ 102 CANYON Wi Force Label........... _
Force Card/Aff (C/A) B

City, State....... .. 89434

Vestlng Doc #, Date. 11§§5§ 112§§ZZ§I§ Yr,BK Pg 13 000 008 Corr Rq'd _

Map Document Bs..... -

_Description . ... ... (FIl=Additional Tocations)..

# Dir  Street or Other Description Unit #(s)

Property Location. PTN S19,20 T19N R2@E, S24 R20E

Subdivision......... PTN 519720 R2IE & 524 RIOF  Block..

TOWN . e vt ternenennnns OUTSIDE Parcel "MapID.. PARCEL 1

Property Name....... Confidential..

Remarks......

Pgrcel # Containing Descrlpflvelbocument Data.... 204-131-11 Land Use: 580
JSize C i ks T T T R R T
Total Acres. 186.830 Square Feet.... 9
Ag Acres...... . 000 W/R Acres......

=Scan >/< > ~F5=Addr Hist F10=0thr Func F12= CanceI F14~Imprv/Ap$rsl Data
F15=Legal DeScription F16=Misc Notes F17=Factoring History _ F20@=Tax Years
F21=Personal Property F22=Ag Land F23=Exemptions F24-L1vestock Counts

SER wll ke

sddrecsed as @O0
Wlenczesw‘?-



d

TSR gy ey Sy g5 At S0 ARSI S UL N POMITESE

B ANQHI O fasms 3 mosask P KING sssoitind sapeamiy pow
FIISIISTE 07 0SS ATRO7) £330 950 5 Jof. paredand v dewr oy,
VAVAIN 'AINN0O ATIOLS

JOHSYM

L . fﬂ\\)// 1 @
o - e T T T3
+# 1\ J/h\
~ __ by - | } B9
X W u ! i P
1 1 i ! )
' 1% » i %m_m_ .
. s¢ h ve M €€ . 2¢ ) ey 9¢ _
) ) L ;o ool
. ‘ N r ! ! 21
i } P ! i r 1
! g | 1 Tﬂ.
- ....f.muo..ol g { - e e i e o e e 2 e ..*i.llll..m..—: llllllllll
- t i
" N~ H
.2 ; i _ ' ! rﬁ
. \ , i ! “ “. i
N rod ! by
j— —d 9z “ e N w g2 I 62 __ o.mmg sz
1 08y .
ol _ SV e !
oo T 1 1 i 1! \ bt
”.%wnn Sy i ! 1 i mndm“
I St T f...h lllllllll b e e Loyt
- uvwwm.. » .W wioﬂwﬂ_ 1 3N
L8 bt S . r ]
H e [T i
P "
i ]
2 § nl”uv: €2 w, 22
_nlul H 3 Lys9m8en L
N R I @ r--m-yo-
. | s i . h.as06 ) swos | ua0s | Beis !
: i R ‘. TEEEEEER
T - ! A
¥ kS )
* |

SI—b0

3024°N6IL 92862 'H2 suondeg

3124 ‘N6l L- N\_m

00



i WW\.; iew e 160 wees eonevre 100 « [ JE S -
: D e e o - <20 231 005 = uOU; DY 7 Viouvd
P + oira teeas Yo osr ég 1994 00S MU L EDYRa . : {6 O5EY  3,0000088 :
b IS Sujuusy § Dupseouduy / e WER i
VavAR ALRNGD AZNOLS | IFCROREE MNOSS ARKQLS b
VT 2 O LSYS 12 IOKVN HINON 8} dHSNADL d!—.gé SV £5°981 o
'SE R YE RS ZE AT UL B W L2 A2 {217 OF €1 SNOMDAN S34IV IR £4 = W
20 SNCUMOE INY LS¥E 02 IOMYY HLYON 81 SNSNMOL AR SO0 4Pt o SRR 9 3 2 x4 e
I ¥ 5L YT £ SNOWDES 30 SNOL MO MR LAY SNEAE %?tag 08 e ¥ X m g 19040 o . ¢ 122404 aml 3 m,.
S311M3d0Ud ALNNOD AJY0LS i ; 2
HOH VN NOISIAIOBITS 8 GV MIDIN PO ooy ... 3 s
ST T O N LW M fr RS TR s Ko e b b el ¢ RO S B
o oejed e ROl mern g e A | . . Y ey
v WL 2 : — Viaen s weskamm i © g .,
RN P vy - Wy Comorsy g ;
O S0y a& - b3 otibundimare s H
A R > 1 G EF T IEE poow «Mﬂ» oy \wlfi..u!n»u%ﬂam oty
SRR S , e R TLZ ;099NN 4O 9IS
FETARTE VY L PR . : ) . )
£ 3 HEY P | : . FORD-12L-b NGV . 211 dnucwopy
e wame 4 TI=1Z:—% Nav
w2 i
AL - e e wsv‘ .0
Gt N ST S— e .
-, . -
v
» che . o
R Y v.:gissgi?tg
O RIS S0 Sy 3 RIS 1Y e W s . R . \o
R IR, B e BN NS D T2 W v WWE./BIE LETLY 2RC LR ~
2 5
Fa
S0 e, vy o ) R [ T SR : : bt
a B i o, B s o Rk O AN, A @y ¥ 0% Y
iNE SRAGHD i3 %
L tre S TUR N NS g . 3
§{ LA i & . . -
ALFTIVUND VY 238900 WO LTS 50 TV GV . . RS =
TN SICH 2 SO W X0 NOIOKR XTIV 3 is H o
B M MO TN ST W] 2 ] H $
! v x
Ve S.: IAVD A0S SHIGADD INL L¥I 21V IX. zoEEnwimg IS 25 USTHAG, erosearag H T connen 7
PG ANY TNY SAOI IS LIS IO MY DL LM SINAWEI LI WL € B N ST L2 ® i =
THOZ B AWTROT MO OZ_TNOS SYat ABNNS LNV Y 8GR 3 - ¢ it i oo o &
490702 TONYE HLHON 51 AWTNMGC. 96 Y W TX 1T 0 R - = kil * - . .
2 B2 3T O K8 SROLITS 0 SMALGA QMY 153 OC TNV HENON 81 MRT i c e v ek ey o
WY 52 PP £ ONGIDTS 20 SN GH Y ML I TEAROL SONYY D5 3 PUSTRPI IS & [T W TR P
SITIN AN S0 TNWLENG ML 1Y NOBAY IS 5 s v mone ryog o ¢ :
LDTaN AN HET TLNONIO ATAMCS ¥ 90 SUTWIY 4L SUNTSTA AN LV SUiL t ke 4 3, OwnTotrs daway 304 b =
AL APANED 4
FOPATN 4D ALVLS M} 1 TEHNTNT 095 KAALOS CW1 TYNORS Sdod ¥ T2 K WAAILE Vi :
PR o, i ovmmionens o i - .
a, ; . I
> ~ J0% P P i 3 N
z e g L Y W g ey i - ~ 1,
=3 o g s e A i .ty P . s
N ™ AR . W Kt - LEw PR H *

o, e X I E N ear Aigi o B
jinrevotuaiy ) P 2 - B R R ¥ ] - 51
‘iw?ﬂ.aa,“‘e; o W 5 *. ~ i, o

. .)3&332 F ) b o T PR
FLL G g dwwarg e : 5
NI SN IO W ; CAIIEIX S ATH_ A VL TIXTTURONTSY DM sl 2
ANV 4L VENTY CRINT SRLASISONS £o weiaet Y S, et i 0y 3 =
AIMCTAMOLS 20 LU LEIIIUIT 4L SO VI Y ATITT B T s : mns v e B i <
3 [T o i g ey o e Sotvt S uaRias g ~ e
AHYION W T DI ORIVIY A TSNS gy ' pE | zo o 3 et E Ead 3
=z - e e - F 0L¢08°8 i ™ 2
H SRS 0 ALNCY = o S S : . -
% : ‘ - * J
- YORATH 90 5 ¥1S © . e = i,
et SR S N e e s e oy s, oo - — B ~13
: < <%
FILLTWKID ININGIVNYI Fis 4O TN = iy N =
C L g e s i 134D w © O
I _\\x’g\& E o T v senanc . H ge < 3 s
27 3308 , S 3
NN ALPEYD abcﬂﬁ&»ﬁ.ﬂbg;g« : 27 wounsg H & ~ He
H ~ - H Fd M 3
A R XIS A S AR g S, TR N e AN e Wl M R B - - e = 5
KNI 57 S INTNDEVR LTI DO NV FOVAETHN) I DR ST A0 e i z v A <
S N 4 THORRADINS - 0L LI WIE DN S TONVORINDT N DEUTIRNS By roens N Btk AS R b5 i : : ¢
FTVS It JVMLONY LY MSHL S0 NOSLLYRICOTY Y NOLLYAYCTe el OF ERNOD G - omaan) 3 iy S Ben -
e v S8 PN 50 JPRH PL 0 SEINO I DaY 5 N TR e e WS ?.5 ne Yy N
ANVIHIOO ALTRNT) OAAIFT SHLAHOON ALNCOT 43901 S H : - QL
TPENER NG H ot =
FAYOHINAT SHIANGO 3
-~ =
ER T TT: SO, — s g
i : “
oy ; ]
K QoD . 2
I NIE TOTR ez 4 oL - e .
! o H E1 . 3
PSP B TIISVER P IOOT 2w - - oo - - S P Vg
FICIS DiHAVES 5 & ; e
GRUOWSY MG LIS ONMION DR HYTD D TIWOS DIHAVED m‘, Ty e e =
p N ‘a6 IR - 30 TIPS IIVTE ¢ Wil : HF A T e
AL S ON TN 2N # TRINEII W VALHBE L) (TR WALSAS S5 31 0L m3oon ¥ FIHA R
. . FeCha T OV B2LD3 600 ¥ LU £OBL ML 0 DO 3 vt

TPHONHLTE IO (NG O OIS COMY L0 TE TN (BT INOT 15 0 N STIYNIIROY QO RS By WO X0 QN1 103 SO -9
. e e AL STWIRITOWD h OF RS TARE STEC WG S 3T I S04 VR THOMNG Ty

FARBEAAD T HO IS CIWICN NG N &. DHA_ S NNDODH SMOMNER FNONHI e F0L ¢ EONNETE AZARIset?
WIRMCO MR HO XA (A HOOGT FNGD 1R TN TS WIVAIN PATE-(vee B E RSP T AN LHON B BISNNO G IV CIDET -4y

T3S
BRNISTT EERTvIa 30 Sieva IR TONTH LRI AT O H £ 1030 o1k
SEONSLSSY




DOC # 119550

11/@8/2013 11:43: AM

Official Recard
Recording requested By

Ticor Title - Reno (Commer'ciai)

A portion of APN 4-111-01 and 4-131-08

Recordation requested by and when
recorded mail original to:

Jen Chapman

Debbie L. Young & Mark J. Menezes, Co-Trustees Fee: $1,581.00 ~ Page: 1. of 8 "; ‘z
The Mark Jonathan Mcencezes 2011 Irrevocable Trust RPTT $1560 % /\ Recor’déq 8y G/ A
{00 Canyon Way
Sparks, NV 89434

st ] o
rtwno O/3cog2 1O

The undersigned hereby affirms that this document submitted
for recording does not contain the social securily number of any

person or pem?per NMB.OBO.

Signature of D@Wt

\ GRANT, BARGAIN MQ;&ALP, DEED

For value received, Storey County Properties Lumtcd \Lmbtmy Company, a Nevada limited liability
company, as "Grantor,” hereby grants, bargains and sci!s 10*’1‘ bc ‘Hermin, anczcs, 2008 Revocable Trust dated July
11, 2008, as w a sixty percent (60%) interest in the propi,rly,, and""fhc Mark Jonathan Menezes 2011 Irrevocable
Trust, as to a lorty percent (40%) interest in the properly; as xemmts in pommon, wllcauvdy as "Grantee,” the real
property situated in the County of Storey, Stdte of Nevada L(mm pamcularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto
and incorporated herein by this reference subject (o lhe exceplltm&, reservatmnb, and resirictions set forth herein and
incorporated herein by this reference ("Pmperty") L *Herrnan Menezes, trustee of

RESERVING AND EXCEPT]NG onto Oramor aod Granlor’s successors and assigns in perpetuity all
waler rights appurtenant (o the Property, surmce or undu)gmund of whatever kind or character, including all vested
rights, permits. applications, rmd cemﬁcates rcggrdmg said water rights; and  **Debbie L. Young and

"Mark Jonathan Menezes, Co-Trustees of

RESERVING AND EXLBP’I %NG unlo “Grantor and Grantor's successors ang assigns in perpetuity all

rights and easements reséwéd by Gramor. o&(;ramor s predecessors in interest, pursuant to the deeds recorded in the

Official Records of Stor@y(;oﬂ*my,wevada as File No. 77973, recorded on July 18, 1996, File No. 66299, recorded

on Scplember 3, 1990, F‘ﬂe N@ 44799 (gccrded on lune 27, 1979, File No. 44798 recorded on June 27, 1979, File

No. 068169 on September. J0; \1991“ as amended by File No. 078108 recorded on July 8, 1996, and File No. 69398

on April 29. 1992; with.all sax&{xghxs and reservations being for the benefit of Grantor's Dominant Parcels (as

hereafler defined) Qéam%xn Smrcy é.gunty, Nevada, excluding the Property conveyed to Grantee pursuani 10 this
Grant, Bargain and/ ngle Dee(} ;
i Vo

RE‘%ERV{N v&lﬂD DXCFPTING unto Grantor and Grantor's successors and assigns in perpetuity all oil.

gas and mt}nml r‘igbzz. “of, wmwvu kind or nature, whether known or hereafler discovered.

meI:RVINQ AND EXCEPTING unto Grantor and Grantor’s successors and assigns in perpetuity a non-
LMustw ;,aéamunl tor“cmcrgcnt.y and periodic access purposes over, upon and across all roads now existing or
hex;gafter crealed«on any portion of the Property for the benefit of Selter’s Dominant Parcels (as hereafler defined).
Seller. qbau havc\Lho* right to extend and improve one road to the border between the Property and Seller’s adjacent
Dommam P’srcch al a location to be mutually agreed by parties. These reserved easements shall be for emergency

:Il,_\’k\\ and periodic zaccoaq purposes and shall be utilized by the owner of the Dominant Parcels in a manner that will

TN minimize fhe! /disruption of Grantee’s business or use of the Property. Grantee shall have the right to substitute
’ gxrcmh; present and {uture roads with access of equal or better quality and character at the time of the

1




LI RN ORI 0129550 Bogs: 8 AageY/3%R

substitution. The reservation of these easements shall not impose upon Grantor or Grantee any duty or obhgauon m\
maintain, share in the maintenance, or improve said road or roads at any time. )

The Property is furlher conveyed subject to the following covenants and agreements: (a) Gramce covenanls’
and agrees that the Property shall not be used or developed as a commercial sand, gravel, 1l or other r aggregate pit
by Grantee or ils successors of assigns. As used herein, a commercial aggregate pit shall includy’ wpit used for the
sale, ransfer or exchange of sand, gravel, fill or other aggregale materials t0 any individuals o e.‘mmes méludmg
relaied companies or subsidiaries. This restriction shall not prohibit Grantee from using aggrcgatcb ‘taken lrpm, the
Property on the Property; (b) Grantor and Grantee agree to cooperate with one another concammg\tbn Tocation of
easements for future roads and wtilities including without limitation water, gas, electrig’ aud SEWER that{nﬁy Cross
propertics owned by Grantor and Grantee, that will benefit the propertics of both Grantor and Ofari{ee p”rqwded
however, this cooperation shall not impose on Grantor or Grantec any duty or obhgatton\to constrycy maintain, or
improve roads, the utilities or related facilities. Grantor and Grantee agree 10 | Tocaté future roads ancf utilities in such
locations as will mutually benefit their respective properties, afler wnsultanon ‘wih the othér-party.-

/\
x( ¢

The above-described Property is conveyed subject to all of tbc Ioilnwmg wvcmrgts casements, liens and

encumbrances: NN I
N . /

.,

. 1. Qencral and special county taxes and aqwssmentmmmamg,puwonal property laxes and
any district assessments collected therewith, not yet dc!mquém
2. Covenants, conditions, restncitons,*mé’&rvahons exceptions, encroachments, zoning
ordinances, laws, regulations, rights-of-way, and easements, Q[gccord oi‘whlch are applicable to the Property.
3, Rights-of-way for any cx:s:mg mads, caqals Jduchcs drainage easements, pipelines,
utility easements. and pule or lransmission hm:s, if an‘y, Lraversmg\}ﬁ’c Property, including any prescriplive or
implicd rights and casements, e ; /

4, Grantor’s roserved rigms and"éasc;iﬁents"ihorc particularly described above.
5. All liens crealcd or suffcred/b“y Gram!cu
S [N |
0, Detm}cncwa in quamuy of’ gmund boundary linc disputes, overlaps, encroachments,
unrccorded casements, and an;y @aﬂcrs not"of record which would be disclosed by an accurate survey of the

Property:

fes crvqgoas and hghts of way contained in the patents from the United States of
America apphc.abk to lhe‘Pmpe{ty, RN

9. (i Thc euwmcm and rights reserved by Curtiss-Wright Corporation, a  Delaware
corparation, by Dé@ rc.,cardt,d Géptumbcr 26, 1977, as Document No. 41001, Official Records. of Storey County,

Nevada.

!:_x;./ pl i‘b{ me reservations, exceptions, and restrictions expressly set forth herein, the above-described
,,Pmpcrtff wnvcyed 10 “the Grantee together with all tenements, hereditaments, and appurtenances of the above-
é\ldcvc\n hed: Pm‘puty and the rents, issues, and profits thereof.

“!he resewcd intercsts and restrictions set forth in this Deed are execepted and reserved by Grantor for the
benelit Of the real property awned by Grantor located in the County of Storey, State of Nevada, mure particularly
described \n mal certain Quitclaim Deed 1o Grantor recorded on September 30, 1993 as File No. 72504-R, Book 97,

~Pages 751/ Jugh 255 in the Official Records of Storey County, Nevada, excluding those portions of the Property

. thz:um dmcnbud previously conveyed by Grantor or which are being conveved o Grantee pursuant to this Grant,

- 2




RO 0110550 Bogk: 8 Baee¥/E%

,;"

Bargain and Sale Deed (“Dominant Parcels™). Grantee understands and agrees that Grantor may subdivide or partei
its property and sell parcels to different entities and that Grantor and all of its successors, assigns, and u,nants shall \

™

have the benefit of said reserved interests and restrictions; unless otherwise provided by Grantor.

The reservations and exceptions set forth in this Deed shall run with title to the Dominant. Parcéwgnlew
otherwise provided by Grantor, and shall constitute benefits to and burdens of the respective DWRQ‘I'S af such\pamels,
and their heirs, successors, and assigns forever. !

Dated this 22 day of Dote\pav. L2013,

GRANTOR:

Storey County Pmpcr;tes I u‘mted
L:abmly Company, 4 Nevada :
limited liability cq;ngany L

By Q_L\AM »—-—- Yowns

anagcr ané*!?rembc.r

Byz'

fﬂpﬁﬁ—ﬁm&ﬁ”ﬂanager and Member
o

Fap The Herman Menczes 2008 Revocable Trust
i éa”i:ed July 11, 2008

By - A A ——

. /ﬁ(mﬁn Menezes, Tw( /

The Mark Jonathan Menezes 2011 Irrevocable Trust

Dchb;cl Yo;g,. Co»lms
Mar‘k %n an Mencyh, @,/




N N R MBI 0119550 Bogs: & RageYA%%E s

STATE OF NEVADA NN

COUNTY OF WASHOE

Nevada hmucd liability company.

JAN OLIVEROC :
Notary Public - State ot Nevada 1 P
3 Agpoitiment Recorded in Washoe County.
No 94 0989 2 fmms Se-czenter 5 20}4

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY OF WASHOE

Nevada tzmztcd habuhty comparny.

o

" JAN OLNERC} { ~
Notary Public ‘5*3tc0 Mn ad 7
&mn'men‘ Regongid i i

mgmwz Emi 3
" Y

STATE OF NEVADA > °

COUNTY OF WASH

]

This Grant, Bargam "Sale Deed was acknowledged before me on L j .)_3 , 2013, by
Alex G. Gassiot, ‘@ a Mandgcr and Member of Storey County Propertics Limited Liability Comp«my

Nevada limited hab:iny wmpany

-

LSJANOUVERG DA & Lo A
Not: Jy\mhlvr Stats of Novada 4 -

" A nime Reouroeg in Hasioe Courly P'{O/ta y Public

%QS}A-BS%.} - Eapires Sepcer et §. 4014 - 4

N, R




R O ORI WA MR 0219550 B3gei & BaR%/2%R o

STATE OF NEVADA

COUNTY OF WASHOE

JAN OLNERO :
Notary Public- State of Nevada
Agponement Recorded it hazhee County
No 94 CBBM Exrmss Sec‘er’-sar 5 20‘45 “

L

STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF WASHOE

This Grant, Bargain and Sale Deed was acksio N/,ﬂjtﬂgcd bdcvre me on , 2013, by
Debbie L. Young, as Co-Trustec of The Mark Jcnaman Mcm;zes "011 Irrevocable Trust.

This Grant, Bafgam and Sale‘ﬂccd was acknowledged before me on ] { f &% 2013, by
Mark Jonathan ML!]L«’:C‘%, a3 Cbonstee of The Mark Jonathan Mcnezes 2011 Irrevocable Trust.

N Lo

_JAN GUVER ;
O i N taﬂ Public

: dery Public - Stats of Nevada

: We!}lmqni Becorded in Wastos County |

"



| AR UL O I 0129550 Bggs: & ARRYE%%3 &

STATE OF CALIFORNIA }

s . 1SS,
COUNTY o?/_ﬁfg’f%‘”ﬂq/ )

On //"/"/3 . , before §§ L Zz Zféld G P R
personally appeared Dtbbie A. 7);& e 3y

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactoryAvidencal to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the Within </ 7
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that
by his’her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s). or the entity upon bebalf of v{bigh%tﬁeméérson(s’l,«ﬁcted.
executed the instrument, e R

~

‘\K «,\K \“\",\
graph is thue and

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the t%régning para

correct. ‘ N P
WITNESS my m>d<n ffjcial scal. /7 .
) R o T VRl
Signature ’ u/\\ . (Seal) o f.ﬂw:g, é‘oﬁﬁ%g’iéggm%
el . TARY PUBLIC « C&
/ , ' B NOliERcED COUNTY O

"5t LAPRES SEPT. 19, 2017 ¢




| A R DA OO ORI 0119550 Bgge: & B3e¥/3%%% s

EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Escrow No. 01300642 18 )

Pmpulsu, auwrdmg to the map thereof, filed in the office of the Co;mly Rewrdcr ol Sto x:” ‘County,
State of Nevada, on October 8, 2013, as File No. 119408, Oﬂnc.mf Rumds bung mme particularly

described as follows: . x,\ a
"ﬁ\ '\\ { ;‘
A parcel of land situate in the Southeast 1/4 of Section 13, Northeast. l/lt of §,¢cnon 24, Towns} hip 19
© North, Range 20 East, M.D.B.&M., North 1/2 of Section 19, North 1/2 of-Scetion 20, Township 19 North, -

Range 21 East, M.D.B.&M,, Storcy County, Nevada, momparucuiar!y described as follows:

Beginning at the Southwest corner of Parcel "A" of that urlam R‘.ecord of Survey {or DR Land Co.
n,wrdcd as Dowmcm No. 42()94 dated June 16, 197“8 ) !‘hc 0 hcuﬂ ‘Records of Slorcy Coumy, said

. Thenee along the North boundary of said ‘ieumn 26 b 87"2 \,47" W 806.46 feet o a seribed stone
marking the Northwest corner of said Section’ 25 /

Thence along the North boundary of said ,Sf:cmn *If) 8. 85"54‘(}’5' W 507.77 feet 1o a scribed stone
marking the Southeast corner of Section 18 Townslgp 19Norih Range 21 East, M.D.B.&M;
Thence zlong the North boundary of saidi Section 19N "89°05"1 1" W 2648.34 [eet 1o a scribed stone
marking the 1/4 corner commonto sasd@ecnon l&aad 19;

Thence atong the North qund'xry<Qf said'Section 19, N 89°36'48” W 470.96 feet to a scribed stone
marking the Northwest c.amem&f said: Set:»unn 19;

Thence along the Easy bdundagy of said Smt}on 13, NQ0°34'41" E 1123.40 feet:

Thence leaving said Eastbéiidary N-89°0052" W 133035 feet;

Thence S 00°37'54" W 1312 10 feel'to ! \hw South boundary of said Section 13;

Thence S D0°36'27" E 997.44.§ feet;,

Thenee N 90°0000>E 5753 7S\fe\ei~

Thence N OO"OO‘OO" E 1190, 94 feet'to the TRUE POINT QF BEGINNING.

Document No 1’1946}9 1§ pmwdnd pursuant (o the requirements of Section 6.NRS 111.312.

Parcal 2 s, shnwrfmn the Division into Large Parcels Merger and Re-Subdivision Map for Storey County
Pmperms ’mmrdmp to the map thereof, filed in the office of the County Recorder of Storey County,

. State of Nwi:da on October 8, 2013, as File No. 119408, Official Records, being more particularly
t}mmbcd 35 follows:

b



[ OO 6119550 Bogs: & PaEeY/E%R .

Slony Coumy, Nevada more parucular}y dcacnbad as follows:

Beginning al the Southwest corner of Parcel A" of that certain Record of Survey for DR L&nd Cn\
recorded as Document No. 42094 dated Junc 16, 1978 in the Official Records of Storey Codnty, said N
corner marked by an Aluminum cap stamped PLS6836 and the TRUE POINT OF BEG(NNING |

Thence along the North boundary of said Section 20, N 86°48'52" E 1313.81 leet, m LMNOr:Lh 1 (:urnu

of said Section 20; [ TN
Thence along said North boundary 8 88°55'58" E 1285.62 to.a rebar and cap stdmpcd PLS 4‘78’7 markmg

the Southeast corner of said Parcel "A”; Py A
Thence leaving said North boundary S 00°00'00" E 1240.00 feet; / "
Thence N 90°00°00" W 2597.18 feel; I N
Thence N 00°0000" E 1190.94 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNIN ‘% }

Document No, 119410 is provided pursuant to the requirements of 'iectf‘m G‘NRS { 11.312.

Apn:  Portion of 4-111-01 and 4-131-08



STATE OF NEVADA
DECLARATION OF YALUE FORM

I.  Assessor Parcel Number(s)
a)portions of 4-131-08 and 4-111-01

':)) Storey County - NV
d Jen Chapman - Ré‘cox;&er )
2. Type of Property: page 1 of 1 Fee:<$1,581. 00 ) ‘ o

Recorded 8y: 3C RP“{T &1560 80
ay B Vacant Land by O Single Fam. Res. Book - © Page- g
¢) [0 Condo/Twnhse d) O  2-4 Plex ; -
e) O  AptBldg H O  CommVlndl
gy O Agricultural h)y O  Mobile Home ;
iy O Other ”
3. Total Value/Sales Price of Property: $400 OOOJ)Q v
Deed in Lieu of Foreclosure Only (value of property) $ :‘ 8 Y )
Transfer Tax Value $400.000:00: T
Real Property Transfer Tax Due: $1,560.00° . W

4, 1f Exemption Claimed

a. Transfer Tax Exempnon, per NRS 375, 090 Sec}ﬂm

b. Explain Reason for Exemption:

DV-119550
11:43:AM

DOC #

11/08/2013

OffFicial Recoﬁd

Recording requested By
Ticor Title - Reno (Ccmmercm’l}

5. Partial Interest: Percentage being transferred: 100

,,,,,,

The undersigned declares and acknowledges, under pena vﬁl of pci’)q;;y, pursuam to NRS 375.060 and NRS 375.110,
that the infornation provided is correct to the best of their informauorr and belief, and can be supporied by
documentation if called upon to substantiate the_ m‘f’ormatw}f prov'ided heréin. Furthermore, the disallowance of any

claimed exemption, or other determination of addxubrm{ tax dée, m4y/résxxix in a penalty of 10% of the tax due plus

interest at 1% per month.

Pursuant to NRS 375.030, the Buyer and Sgil all be’ mrmy and severally liable for any additional amount
owed ) SN Y :
Signaturg 95‘( y ¢ Y L1 “Capacity Grantor
Sagnatur? b — A ffffffff #s— Capacity Grantee
“SELLER (GRAN o;z)i‘“‘ TATION BUYER (GRANTEE) INFORMATION
(REQ&HRﬁﬁn R (REQUIRED)

Print Name: Storey qunt”g ngez qes ngm?zg Liability

Company

Print Name: Debbie L. Young and Mark Jonathan
Meunezes, Co-Trustees of The Mark Jonathan Menezes

2011 hrevocabl an undivided 40% imerest

in the property and Herman Menezes, Trustee of The

Herman Menezes 2008 Revocable Trust, dated July 11,
2008 as (o an undivided 60% interest in the propeity
Address: 100 Canyon Way

Sparks. NV 89434

(REQH)RI;D iF N{’)T THE SELLER OR BUYER)

Prml Name.\ Trc(u Title of Nevada, Inc.
Acddress: \5&3«‘\{ Kietzke Lane, Suite 100
. City, Stale, an Reno, NV 89511

Escrow

#.:1300642-CD

(AS A PUBLIC RECORD THIS FORM MAY BE RECORDED)



DOC # 0119409

1070812013 169:37 AN

OfFffFicial Record
Recording requesied By
GA ENGINEERING & PLANNING

Storey County - WV
Jen Chapman -~ Recorder’

) Fee: $15.00 Page 1 of
APN# RPTT: Recorded By \MH

Book-~ Page~

I

Recording Requested by.
Name: _Steyen AL 3ell |
Address: o 5O @@éf e s

Pawo .
Mail Tax Statements to:
Name:
Address:
City/State/Zip:

Please complete Affirmation Statement below: s

O 1the undersigned hereby affirm that this document submmcd for recording dpcs not contain
the social security number of any person or persons. (Per NRS 239B 030) ~
-OR- :

1 1the undersigned hereby affirm that this document submmed fer rccmfdmg qentams the social

security number of a person or persons as required by )aw

{State spccaﬁc law)

Signature (Print name under signature)

? f

This document is being re-recorded to |

, and is correcting

ok RN

ERREREEEE

i Thxs page added to provide additional information required by NRS 111.3 12 Scctions 1-4.
. {Additional recording fee applies)



Aok 10/08/2813

U B 0119409 foee + rase. zor2

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Parcel 1 - Storey Co. Properties Large Parcel Map
A parcel of land situate in the Southeast Y of Section 13, Northeast ¥ of Section 24, Townshlp
19 North, Range 20 East, M.D.B.&M., North ¥ of Section 19, Notth % of Section 20, Township N
19 North, Range 21 East, M.D.B.&M Storev County, Nevada, more particularly descnbed 3;.

follows:

Beginning at the southwest corner of parcel “A” of that certain record of survey tor DH Larid Co.
recorded as document 42094 dated June 16, 1978 in the Official Records of Storeyﬁountyg said
corner marked by an Aluminum cap stamped PLS6836 and the TRUE POIN'I OF BﬁGINNlNG

Thence along the north boundary of said section 20, S 87° 22‘ 47” W 806 46 feet go a scnbed
stone marking the northwest corner of said section 20;

Thence along the north boundary of said section 19, S 85° 54' 03 "W 507. 77 feet to a scribed
stone marking the southeast corner of section 18 Township 19, NOITh Range 21 East,
M.D.B.&M;

Thence along the north boundary of sald section 19/ ‘N 89° 05' 1 1" W2648 34 feet to a scribed

stone marking the northwest corner of said 19; .

Thence along the east boundary of said section 13, N 09° 34’ 41 @ E 1123.40 feet;
Thence leaving said east boundary N 89°00' 52" W, 1330 35 feet;

Thence S 00°37 54" W 1312.10 feet to the; smnh boundaxy of said section 13;
Thence §00°36'27" E 997.44 feet;
Thence N 90° 00’ 00" E 5753.75 feet; -
Thence N 00°00' 00" E 1 190 94 feetz t@ me T R/UE POINT OF BEGINNING.

Contains 186.83 Acres, mqre or Icw

Steveﬂ N. Bsﬂ PLS 11420
Exd:res 12/31/14
,u,GA B{ggmeermg

280" G’t‘eg St Suite 8
Reno, NV 89502



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/03/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ]| Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Authorize the County Manager to approve a contract
with Robert G. Loveberg up to $12,000 to review, update, and amend Storey County’s floodplain
ordinance to improve standards to meet or exceed FEMA minimum requirements, accommodate
the reginal floodplain mapping and flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs), implement Carson River
Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures, and consider revisions necessitated by the 2017 flood
event, as set forth in the attached scope of work and schedule.

2. Recommended motion: Based on the recommendation by staff, [ [county commissioner]
authorize the County Manager to approve a contract with Robert G. Lovcberg up to $12,000 to
review, update, and amend Storey County’s floodplain ordinance to improve standards to meet or
exceed FEMA minimum requirements, accommodate the reginal floodplain mapping and flood
insurance rate maps (FIRMs), implement Carson River Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures,
and consider revisions necessitated by the 2017 flood event, as set forth in the attached scope of
work and schedule.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.0968
5. Staff summary: Sce Enclosure A Staff Summary

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) Staff summary; (B) scope of work; (C) contract draft.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
: Department Head Department Name:

< Q\cﬂk’/C-:)unty Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—t p—
(PSS ]

Agenda Item No. | I

Page 1 of 1



Enclosure A: Staff Summary

There is a need to update and improve Storey County Code 15.20 Flood Damage Prevention
(floodplain ordinance) in order to comply with the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA) National Floodplain Insurance Program (NFIP) program, to prevent unnecessary
structural damage and devastation from flood events, and to improve the county’s NFIP
Community Rating System (CRS) rating with FEMA. Improving the CRS rating translates into
reduced flood insurance rates for residents located within the FEMA flood hazards area, which will
benefit many residents of Lockwood. The contractor recommended to perform this task and the
proposed project will be accomplished in conjunction with the Carson Water Subconservancy
District’s (CWSD) Floodplain Ordinance Language Update project now underway in the region,
including Douglas County, Carson City, Lyon County, and Churchill County, and will benefit
from previous floodplain, floodplain planning, and other work accomplished by the CWSD.

Page 1 of 1



Exhibit A to Agreement Addressing Funding from Storey County to Robert G. Loveberg to
Update Floodplain Ordinance for Storey County, Nevada

PROPOSED
SCOPE OF SERVICES

FLooODPLAIN ORDINANCE LANGUAGE UPDATE

SUBMITTED TO:
STOREY COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT

NoVeEMBER 30, 2017

Robert G. Loveberg

Planning ® Consulfing @Services




Robert G. Loveberg

Planning @ Consulting @ Services

November 30, 2017

Mr Austin Osborne, Planning Director
Storey County Planning Department
26 S. B Street

Virginia City, Nevada 89440

RE: Floodplain Ordinance Language Update
Dear Austin:

| am pleased to submit this Scope of Services for the Storey County Floodplain Ordinance
Language Update project. The Project will be accomplished in conjunction with the Carson Water
Subconservancy District’s (CWSD) Floodplain Ordinance Language Update project now underway
and will benefit from previous work accomplished for the CWSD.

The approach outlined reflects Storey County’s desire to update and improve its floodplain
ordinance. The Project supports Storey County’s and the CWSD's efforts to improve standards,
accommodate new regional floodplain mapping and flood insurance rate maps (FIRMs), and
implement mitigation measures. The proposed Scope of Services will assist Storey County’s
efforts from the identification of needs and opportunities through the ordinance adoption
process.

The project can be completed within a timeframe of approximately 19 months. The timeframe
will be particularly dependent on the time required for the ordinance adoption process. |
propose a cost not to exceed $11,000. Costs will be billed monthly based on work performed.
Additional meetings and/or services can be undertaken at additional cost using the Scope of
Services rates.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
/s/ Rob Loveberg

Robert G. Loveberg

P. O. Box 2924 @ Minden. Nevada 89423 B 775.465.2559 B lovebergconsulting@gmail.com
Land Use & Community Planning & Entitlements B Emergency Management & Emergency Services Consulting




Scope of Services Storey County Floodplain Ordinance Language Update

SCOPE OF SERVICES

This Scope of Services has been structured to assist Storey County to improve and update its
floodplain management regulations. Through a collaborative process, the services will help the
County review, update and amend their floodplain ordinance to improve standards to exceed
FEMA minimum requirements, accommodate the new regional floodplain mapping and flood
insurance rate maps (FIRMs), implement Carson River Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation
measures, and consider revisions necessitated by the 2017 flood event. The new ordinance
language will be consistent with the State of Nevada model floodplain ordinance, FEMA
requirements, and the Carson River Regional Floodplain Plan (CRRFP).

TASKS

TAsK 1 REVIEW BACKGROUND MATERIALS AND DETERMINE NEEDS AND OPPORTUNITIES

1.1 Review the Carson River Regional Floodplain Plan, State of Nevada model
floodplain ordinance, FEMA guidance and regulatory materials, and other related
reference materials.

1.2 Obtain and Review the current Storey County floodplain management ordinance
and regulatory measures.

1.3 Review the Carson River Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures for Alpine
County, Carson City, Douglas County, and Lyon County to determine if any
measures are relevant to Storey County.

1.4 Meet and collaborate with Storey County and CWSD staff.

1.4.1 Meet with Storey County staff to initiate the Project and discuss Project
goals, concepts, tasks, and timeline. The meeting should include all
relevant staff such as the floodplain administrator, Planning Director,
Building Department/Community Development Director, engineering
staff, District Attorney’s Office staff, etc.

1.4.2 Meet with Storey County staff to discuss and document specific needs,
unique circumstances, programs and opportunities regarding floodplain
management, implementing standards that exceed minimum FEMA
requirements, and development of ordinance revisions. Review and
discuss needs and opportunities considering the 2017 flooding event and
any newly available information. Review and discuss the Carson River
Flood Mitigation Plan mitigation measures for Alpine County, Carson City,
Douglas County, and Lyon County to determine if any measures are
relevant to Storey County.

1.4.3 Meet with the CWSD staff to discuss and document specific Storey County
needs and opportunities as viewed by CWSD. Review and discuss needs
and opportunities considering the 2017 flooding event and any newly
available information. Review and discuss the Carson River Flood
Mitigation Plan mitigation measures for Alpine County, Carson City,

susREEE

smENsER

::::Il‘ Robert G. Loveberg
W MM Plonoing ¥ Consulbng & Savices
WEE WES

30 November 2017 1



Scope of Services Storey County Floodplain Ordinance Language Update

TASK 2

seEm

EmEE.

Emizane Rowbert G. Loveberg

B R s Coios Wi
L]

Douglas County, and Lyon County to determine if any measures are
relevant to Storey County.

1.5 Prepare an interview summary.

Collaboration/Coordination:

e Collaboration/coordination with Storey County staff

e Collaboration/coordination with CWSD staff

e Requests for copies of existing ordinances, CRS materials and other relevant
information from Storey County.

Deliverable Products:
e Storey County Interview Summary in electronic format

PREPARE DRAFT AND FINAL FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE LANGUAGE
Through a collaborative process with Storey County and CWSD, prepare draft floodplain
management ordinance language for the County incorporating the requirements,
needs, and opportunities, and any identified mitigation measures. Prepare final
floodplain management ordinance language for the County incorporating the
comments and revisions received on the draft floodplain management ordinance
language.

2.1 Prepare draft floodplain management ordinance language

2.1.1 Through a collaborative effort with County staff, edit, revise and amend
the County’s floodplain management ordinance language to meet or
exceed the minimum requirements of the State of Nevada model
floodplain ordinance and FEMA requirements based on the needs and
opportunities assessments, and priorities developed in conjunction with
County staff.

2.1.2 Meet and collaborate with Storey County and CWSD

2.1.2.1 Meet with Storey County staff during the preparation of draft
language to review, discuss and revise draft language being
prepared for the County.

2.1.2.2 Meet with Storey County staff to review the draft ordinance
language prepared for the County.

2.2 Prepare final floodplain management ordinance language

2.2.1 Prepare final floodplain management ordinance language incorporating
the comments and revisions received on the draft floodplain management
ordinance language.

2.2.2 Meet and collaborate with Storey County and CWSD

2.2.2.1 Collaborate with CWSD staff to review the final ordinance language
prepared for Storey County by providing an electronic version of the
draft language to the CWSD staff for their comments.

30 November 2017 2



Scope of Services Storey County Floodplain Ordinance Language Update

2.2.2.2 Meet with Storey County staff to review the final ordinance
language prepared for the County.

Collaboration/Coordination: ‘

e Correspondence/telephone conversations with Storey County staff and CWSD
staff during the preparation of draft and draft language

¢ Correspondence/telephone conversations with Storey County and CWSD staff to
discuss, and solicit reviews of and comments on draft floodplain management
ordinance

e Correspondence/telephone conversations with Storey County staff and CWSD
staff during the preparation of final language, as needed

Deliverable Products:
e Draft Ordinance Language in electronic format
e Final Ordinance Language in electronic format

TASK 3 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE ADOPTION
3.1 Assist the Storey County with the adoption of the revised/improved floodplain

management ordinance language.

3.1.1 Meeting with Storey County and CWSD staff to coordinate and review
presentations to Storey County.

3.1.2 Participate in the presentation of the revised ordinance language at one
Planning Commission or public outreach meeting.

3.1.3 Participate in the presentation of the revised ordinance language at one
Board of Commissioners meeting.

Collaboration/Coordination:
e Collaboration/coordination with Storey County staff on presentations to Storey
County

Deliverable Products:

® None

ESNNNEE
EREISEE
awsasuE Rover G. Loveberg
W R st
Wam Mg Flonns B Consing B Sarvices
Frma
BRENE ¥

30 November 2017 3



Scope of Services Storey County Floodplain Ordinance Language Update

PROJECT BUDGET

1.1-1.3 | Review Existing Ordinance, Mitigation Measures, and Reference/Regulatory Materials z::a;:l;;:tg 11; 2232 s:;g
Subtotal 51,015

Planning 3.5 hours $388

1.4-1.5 | Prepare Needs and Opportunities Support 4.5 hours $270
Meetings 3 meetings $1,420

Subtotal 52,078

Planning 33 hours $2,925

2.1 Prepare Draft Floodplain Management Ordinance Language Support S hours $300
Meetings 2 meetings $1,004

Subtotal $4,229

Planning 7 hours $675

2.2 Prepare Final Floodplain Management Ordinance Language Support 1.5 hours $90
Meetings | 1 meetings $462

W 5 L e i : Subtotal $1,227
Planning 4.5 hours $463

3 Floodplain Management Ordinance Adaption Support 2.5 hours $150
Meetings | 3 meetings $1,377

. . o Subtotal | $1,990
Billing Rates: Principal — $125/hour ($50/hour travel time} Planner - $75/hour (537.50/hour travel time) Support — $60/hour : ,JOTAL 610,539

PROJECT SCHEDULE

11-13 Comp!ete review of ordinances and other reference December 31, 2017
materials
1.4.1 Complete Project initiation meeting with County staff January 31, 2018
Revi . - -
1 eview Background Matenals'a'nd 142 Complete} r.neetlng with County staff on needs and February 28, 2018
Prepare Needs and Opportunities opportunities
143 Meeting \{V!th CWSD staff on County needs and February 28, 2018
opportunities
15 Complete County Interview Summary March 31, 2018
Prepare Draft Floodplain 2.1 Complete draft of County floodplain management language | December 31, 2018
2 Management Ordinance Language
and Final Floodplain Management 2.2 Complete final County floodplain management language February 28, 2019
Ordinance Language
Floodplain Management Complete presentation assistance to County for final
3 Ordinance Adoption 31 floodplain management language I1 2/31/19

1 Dates are estimates and subject to change due to the potential change in estimated project initiation date, variances in meeting scheduling, timeliness of the
receipt of information and comments, hearing schedules, etc.

MEETINGS AND TRAVEL

1.4.1 | Storey County Staff Introductory Meeting Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant

1.4.2 | Storey County Needs and Opportunities Identification | Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant

1.4.3 | Storey County Needs and Opportunities Identification | CWSD Office, Carson City | CWSD staff & consultant

2.1.5.1 | Review, Discuss & Revise Preliminary Draft Language Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant
2.1.5.2 | Review & Discussion of Draft Ordinance Language Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant
2.2.5.2 | Review & Discussion of Final Ordinance Language Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant

= Revi - :
311 Coo.rdlnatlon and Review of Presentations for Final Virginia City Storey County staff & consultant
Ordinance Language

Storey County staff & consultant at

3.1.2 Presentation of Final Ordinance Language Virginia City Planning Commission or public outreach
meeting

Storey County Board of Commissioners &
staff, and consuitant

3.1.3 Presentation of Final Ordinance Language Virginia City

Ropert G. Loveberg

Ren am oo S OVIDO9, 30 November 2017 4

2N g5 PIO0ANG W Corauling B Savices
s



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Agreement for Professional Services of Independent Contractor to
Review and Propose Revisions to County Floodplain Ordinance
THIS AGREEMENT dated this ____ day of , 2018, is entered into by
and between ROBERT G. LOVEBERG (hereinafter "CONSULTANT") and the STOREY
COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Nevadagi(‘he“reinafter "COUNTY").
WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, COUNTY requires the se‘r\}fb‘es of an indepehdent contractor to

assist COUNTY in reviewing, revising, and updatlng its County Code floodplaln

provisions, which is described in- ~h|b|t "A" attach f‘ereto and mcorporated herein by

reference; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT is a prlvate pla ing consultant; and

WHEREAS ~0NSULT: IT has substantlal expenence as a professional

planner, floodplaln admlnistrato ,_,gency manager and multi-discipline consultant

and is, currently provndlng professmnal serwces to the Carson Water Subconservancy

District to improve roodeal‘n ordln‘an:ces in the Carson River Watershed; and
WHEREAS, COUNTY desires to contract with CONSULTANT to provide

services to review, revise, an”d_fupdate its County Code floodplain provisions; and
WHEREAS, COUN;‘EI;Y'hoIds that the services of CONSULTANT are both

necessary and desirable, and that contracting with CONSULTANT is in the best interest

of COUNTY; and

WHEREAS, CONSULTANT represents that he is ready, willing, and able to perform and

render services hereinafter described.

Page 1 of 8



NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual

covenants herein contained, it is mutually agreed by and between the parties as follow:

1.

6.

Effective Date. This Agreement will not become effective until and unless
approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners.

Compensation. COUNTY shall reimburse CONSULTANT for the costs to review
and propose revisions to its County Code to reyis’eﬁfié'nd update its floodplain
provisions, as described in Exhibit "A." |

Available Funds. The maximum amount of funds available under this

Agreement will not exceed $12,000.00.

Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall :gi‘g‘ih'é:te December 31, 2019, at

which time CONSULTANT shall have one (1) month thereafter to submit its final

invoice for paym under this Agreement. If all funds

are expend ' ated sooner by written notice

from COUNTY.

krﬁﬂpps:e’s, the address of each party is as

NotlcesFormvmcmg nd notice

follows:
CONSULTANT - COUNTY
Robert G. Loveberg Attn.: Austin Osborne
Planning Consultant Storey County Planning Director
P.O. Box 2924 P.O. Box 176
Minden, Nevada 89423 Virginia City, Nevada 89440
lovebergconsulting@gamil.com aosborne@storeycounty.org
775-721-2282 775-847-0968

Assignment. This Agreement shall be by and between the parties hereto and

shall not be assignable or transferable.

Page 2 of 8



7. Independent Contractor Status. Under this Agreement, CONSULTANT is
considered an independent contractor and not an employee of COUNTY. As an
independent contractor, there will be no:

a. Withholding of income taxes by COUNTY;
b. Industrial insurance coverage by COUNTY; )

- ¢. Participation in group insurance plans whi may be available to

employees of COUNTY;
d. Participation or contributions b‘y~e‘ither party tb the public employees’
retirement system;
e. Accumulation of vacation or sick leave; and
f. Unemployment combenéa‘tig&poveragé«provided by COUNTY if the

requirements of NRS 612085 for iqdependér{f;,chtractors are met.

isa sole proprietor. In lieu of providing a

' ed to be included thhmthe terms’, conditions, and provisions of chapters
616Ato616D inclusqu,_ of NRS and is otherwise in compliance with those
terms, cor;diti'ons, an‘c‘lf g;ovisions.

9. Indemnification. CONSULTANT agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless
COUNTY, its employees, officers and agents from any liabilities, damages,
losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including without limitation, reasonable
attorney fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness

or intentional misconduct of CONSULTANT or its employees or agents in the

Page 3 of 8



performance of this agreement. COUNTY agrees to defend, indemnify and hold
harmless CONSULTANT, its employees, officers and agents from any liabilities,
damages losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including without limitation,

reasonable attorney fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions,

recklessness or intentional misconduct of COUNTY or its employees or agents.

10.Insurance. CONSULTANT shall provide COUNT rance as follows:

a. General Liability Insurance:

Prior to conﬁmencement and for the

duration of activities that cons dté the Project tHa!tf;, the subject of this

Contract, CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability

(CGL) insurance aéﬁf'f’bllows‘:k hE ;

i Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) - General Aggregate.

i Two Million Dollars ($2,000’,000,.00) - Products & Completed
| 'Qpe‘rationsiAggregaté.‘ e |

iii. . One 'I\)I;i’lfl’iQ’h‘{D‘dICIar:s (31 ,010‘0”,1000.00) - Each Occurrence.

Automobile Liability Insurance:

CONSULTANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary,

k‘ l umbrella liability insurance with a limit of not less than

O each accident for bodily injury and property damage.

f. Such insurance shall cover liability arising out of owned, hired, and
non-owned autos (as applicable).
11.  County Inspection. The books, records, documents, and accounting procedures
and practices of CONSULTANT related to this agreement will be subject to

inspection, examination, and audit by COUNTY, including, but not limited to, the

Page 4 of 8



12.

13.

contracting agency, the County Manager, the District Attorney, and, if applicable,
the Comptroller General of the United States or the United States Department of
Agriculture, Office of Rural Development, or any authorized representatives of
those entities.

Disposition of Contract Materials. Any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives, or other documents, data, drawings, or other materials prepared by or
supplied to CONSULTANT in the performance of its leigations under this
agreement will be the exclusive proper’t'j:/fft;:f COUNTQ,“‘{én‘d all materials must be

remitted and delivered, at CONSUL’FANT’S expense, by CONSULTANT to

COUNTY upon completi lation of this agreement.

ermination, or canc

Alternatively, if COUNTY pro

des its written approval to CONSULTANT, any

books, reports,

drawings, or othe

performance of its obliga‘gtion;under fhis_agreement must be retained by
CONSULTANT;,for ammamumofsm :y:ea‘rs after final payment is made, and all
othfer,pending matters are closed. If, at any time during the retention period,
COUNTY, in writing; Eéffquests’any or all of the materials, then CONSULTANT

must prorhp‘t‘l;y mit‘af"’”&fﬁdeliver the materials, at CONSULTANT's expense, to

COUNTY. CON ANT will not use, willingly allow, or cause to have the
materials used for any purpose other than the performance of CONSULTANT's
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of COUNTY.
Public Records Law. CONSULTANT expressly agrees that all documents ever

submitted, filed, or deposited with COUNTY by CONSULTANT, unless

Page 5 of 8



14.

15.

16.

17.

designated as confidential by a specific statute of the State of Nevada, will be
treated as public records pursuant to NRS 239 and must be available for
inspection and copying by any person, as defined in NRS 0.039, or any
governmental entity. CONSULTANT expressly and indefinitely waives all of its
rights to bring, including but not limited to, by way of complaint, interpleader,
intervention, or any third party practice, any clai_mé,;démands, suites, actions,
judgements, or executions, for damages or@éﬁy‘koth’er relief, in any administrative
or judicial forum, against COUNTY or any of its officers or employees, in either
their official or individual capacity, fof violations of or infringem"ent of the copyright

laws of the United States or of any other n"a”tion; :

Modification of Agreemeh

This A reement may only be amended by consent

causeprov:ded ;:ckha'tgfhe”tiferminétin’ﬁtg‘fi‘thé agreement shall not be effective until
30 kdays after a p‘ar‘ty‘has'se‘rv;ed written‘ notice on the other party. All monies due
and bwing, up to the p'c;int of termination shall be paid by COUNTY to
CONSULTANIwithin 60 days unless otherwise agreed upon by the parties.
Construction dfi"Aig'réement. This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of Nevada.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. CONSULTANT shall fully and completely
comply with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, regulations, orders, or

requirements of any sort in carrying out the obligations of this Agreement.

Page 6 of 8



18.

19.

20.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have exect

Understanding Between the Parties. This Agreement, including Exhibit "A,"
constitutes the entire understanding between the parties and there are no
representations, conditions, warranties or collateral agreements (expressed or
implied), statutory or otherwise, with respect to the subject of this Agreement.
Signatory Authority. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person
executing this Agreement on behalf of each party~'::h:a's full power and authority to
enter into this Agreement and that the partie§: fakré ’autk‘hprized by law to engage in
cooperative action set forth herein. | | R

This Agreement shall be entered ih‘t‘o ‘with duplicate originé‘l‘s‘,, realizing that each
entity, by necessity, must approve and ex'ecute :thé subject document at different

dates, times and places.

| this Agreement on the day and

 PATWHITTEN
~ STOREY COUNTY MANAGER

Robert G. Loveberg ' Pat Whitten, County Manager

ATTEST:

Vanessa Stephens, County Clerk

Page 7 of 8



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: July 3, 2018 Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Resolution 8-448 Tax Rate Levy 2018-2019

2. Recommended motion: I approve Resolution |8 -448  to set the tax rate levy for
fiscal year 2018-2019

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Annual Resolution to approve the Tax Rate Levy for fiscal year 2018-2019
Tax rate will remain unchanged at 3.4607

5. Supporting materials: Resolution 18*4(4 8

6. Fiscal impact: yes
Funds Available: Fund: ALL Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: '
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

f\7 ,bkw@ty Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[1] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

=
[S——

Agenda Item No. | 2L



RESOLUTION # 1 ~€G B

WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners in and for the County of Storey,
State of Nevada did hold a public hearing on the 2018-2019 tentative budget for
Storey County and,

WHEREAS, the resources, expenditures and required tax rates were
reviewed and approved at that public hearing and,

WHEREAS, the approved resources, expenditures and tax rates were
submitted in the 2018-2019 final budget for the County of Storey, State of Nevada,

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of
Commissioners in and for the County of Storey, State of Nevada in accordance with
NRS 361.460 intends to levy the following tax rates following certification by the
Nevada Tax Commission.

GENERAL 1.7719
INDIGENT MEDICAL .0100
INDIGENT ACCIDENT .0150
YOUTH SERVICE .0045
CAPITAL ACQUISITION .0500
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 474 .5446
TOTAL COUNTY 2.3960
REFERENCE ONLY

SCHOOL OPERATING .7500
SCHOOL DEBT .1447
STATE .1700

TOTAL TAX RATE 3.4607



PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED THE _3"_of July, 2018.

AYES:

NAYS:

Absent:

By:

Marshall McBride, Chairman
Storey County Board of Commissioners

ATTEST:

Storey County Clerk



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 007/03/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x | Public hearing required []

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Resolution No. 18-488, a resolution setling grade and salary
range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey
County officials.

2. Recommended motion, | [commissioner] move to approve Resolution No. 18-488, a resolution
setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS
245.045 for appointed Storey County officials.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: NRS 245.045 states that the board has authority to fix the salaries of all
appointive officers and employees by the enactment of ordinances or the adoption of
resolutions. The proposed resolution conforms to the NRS requirement, and it amends

} appointed officials’ grade and salary range chart to a structured schedule which is
consistent with that already applicable to other existing employees in the county. The
proposed resolution creates more consistency in the classification plan for appointed and
non-appointed county employees.

5. Supporting materials: Draft Resolution No. 18-488.
6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: yes Fund: per department budget @ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
: :zgl)epaﬂment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
(;;(%ounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

P —
[S——

Agenda Item No. | %



RESOLUTION NO. 18-488

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES OF EMPLOYEES FIXED
BY ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION PER NRS 245.045 FOR
APPOINTED OFFICIALS.

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, STOREY COUNTY,
NEVADA:

WHEREAS, for the purposes of NRS 245.210, the Storey County Board
of County Commissioners has authority to establish the salaries of all appointed
County employees by the enactment of a resolution.

WHEREAS, the salaries of all regular county employees, except certain
Sheriffs Office employees set by collective bargaining agreement, are
consistently to be derived from a similar step and grade range salary chart shown
in the General Salary Schedule for regular employees of the county.

WHEREAS, the salary range of appointed employees shall be set by the
General Salary Schedule for regular employees of the county and the assigned
grades for the appointed positions are as follows:

Public Works Director Grade 151
Assistant Public Works Director Grade 137
Automotive/Equipment Specialist Grade 133
County Manager Grade 157
Assistant County Manager Grade 152
Fire Marshal Grade 144
Community Development Director Grade 151
Chief Deputy District Attorney Grade 152
Deputy District Attorney Grade 151
Chief Deputy Sheriff Grade 136
Communications Director Grade 140
Information Technology Director Grade 151
Network Administrator Grade 130
Comptroller Grade 151
Management Analyst I to Comptroller Grade 129
Management Analyst I to Comptroller Grade 133
Management Analyst I to County Manager Grade 129
Management Analyst 11 to County Manager Grade 131
Management Analyst I1I to County Manager Grade 133
Management Analyst I to Fire District Grade 129
Administrative Officer/HR Director Grade 151
Community Services Coordinator Grade 133
Senior Planner Grade 134
VCTC Director Grade 151
Tourism Marketing Manager Grade 135
Bailiff/Director of Security Grade 140

Resolution 18-488




WHEREAS, each employee who is capped in the ten-step General Salary
Schedule shall receive a Cost of Living increase equal to fifty (50%) percent of
any PERS increase for that year, if there is no PERS increase (every other year)
each employee who is capped in the ten-step General Salary Schedule shall
receive a two (2%) percent Cost of Living increase July 1*. Each employee who
is not capped in the ten-step General Salary Schedule shall receive a Cost of
Living increase equal to fifty (50%) percent of any PERS increase for that year, if
there is no PERS increase (every other year) no Cost of Living increase will be
granted.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, by unanimous vote, to adopt
Resolution 18-488 providing for the setting of salaries for the appointed officials
not represented by a bargaining unit.

This resolution shall be effective on the 1st, day of July, 2018.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 3 day of July, 2018.

THOSE VOTING AYE:
THOSE VOTING NAY:
STOREY COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Marshall McBride, Chairman
ATTEST:
CLERK TO THE BOARD

Resolution 18-488



|
H

Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/03/18 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action. Resolution No. 18-489, a resolution setting grade and salary
range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 474.470 for appointed Storey
County Fire District officials.

2. Recommended motion. I [commissioner] move to approve Resolution No. 18-489, a resolution
setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS
474.470 for appointed Storey Fire District officials.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: NRS 474.470 states that the board has authority to fix the salaries of all
appointive officers and employees by the enactment of ordinances or the adoption of
resolutions. The proposed resolution conforms to the NRS requirement, and it amends
appointed officials’ grade and salary range chart to a structured schedule which is
consistent with that already applicable to other existing employees in the district. The
proposed resolution creates more consistency in the classification plan for appointed and
non-appointed Fire District employees.

5. Supporting materials: Draft Resolution No. 18-489.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: yes Fund: per department budget Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
% 5epartment Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
C g Mounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[l Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. "\6



RESOLUTION NO. 18-489

A RESOLUTION SETTING SALARIES OF EMPLOYEES FIXED
PER NRS 474.470 FOR APPOINTED OFFICIALS.

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY
BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS, STOREY COUNTY,
NEVADA:

WHEREAS, for the purposes of NRS 474.470, the Storey County Board
of Fire Commissioners has authority to establish the salaries of all appointed Fire
District employees by the enactment of a resolution or other action.

WHEREAS, the salary range of all Fire District appointed employees,
except certain Fire District employees set by collective bargaining agreement, are
consistently to be derived from a similar step and grade salary range chart shown
in the General Salary Schedule for regular employees of Storey County.

WHEREAS, the salary range of appointed employees shall be set by the
General Salary Schedule for regular employees of Storey County and the assigned
grades for the appointed positions are as follows:

Fire Chief Grade 152
Division Chief Grade 144
Battalion Chief Grade 140

WHEREAS, each employee who is capped in the ten-step General Salary
Schedule shall receive a Cost of Living increase equal to fifty (50%) percent of
any PERS increase for that year, if there is no PERS increase (every other year)
each employee who is capped in the ten-step General Salary Schedule shall
receive a two (2%) percent Cost of Living increase July 1¥. Each employee who
is not capped in the ten-step General Salary Schedule shall receive a Cost of
Living increase equal to fifty (50%) percent of any PERS increase for that year, if
there is no PERS increase (every other year) no Cost of Living increase will be
granted.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE STOREY COUNTY
BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS, by unanimous vote, to adopt Resolution
18-489 providing for the setting of salaries for the appointed officials not
represented by a bargaining unit.

This resolution shall be effective on the 1st, day of July, 2018.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this 3* day of July, 2018.

THOSE VOTING AYE:

Resolution 18-489




THOSE VOTING NAY:

STOREY COUNTY
BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS

Marshall McBride, Chairman

ATTEST:

CLERK TO THE FIRE BOARD

Resolution 18-489



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/03/18 Estimate of time required: 5 min,

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Continue to August 7, 2018 board meeting. Consideration of letters
of interest and appointment of a planning commissioner to fill the vacancy and serve the
remainder of the term representing Precinct 1 Virginia City on the Storey County Planning
Commission.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner] motion to
continue the consideration of appointment of a planning commissioner to fill the Precinct 1 vacancy until
August 7, 2018, in order to allow further review of the qualified applicants.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Human Resources and Planning Telephone: 847-1144

5. Staff summary: Pursuant to Storey County Code 2.12 and NRS, the term of a planning
commissioner is four years. The Precinct 1 planning commissioner position currently filled by
Virgil Bucchianeri expires December 31, 2020. The incumbent on June 21, 2018, announced his
need to retire from the planning commission. The incumbent is in good standing with the county
and his 23 years of service on the planning commission was admirable and is highly
appreciated. The vacancy was posted according to policy and NRS and several letters of interest
were received. The applicants show an impressive background and their interest in serving our
community is appreciated. Staff requests additional time to review the applicants before making
a recommendation for appointment to the board. It is hereby noted that a notice of appointment
needs to be posted again near the expiration of the term.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) vacancy public posting.
7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:
District Attorney

9. Reviewed by: -
z Department Head Department Name:
@@ounty Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
[] Approved
[1] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
IR S—

Agenda Item No. ]’7

Page 1 of |



Enclosure A: Public Vacancy Posting

STOREY COUNTY PUBLIC NOTICE
PLANNING COMMISSIONER POSTING
Precinct 1 (Virginia City)

Position: Storey County Planning Commissioner to represent Precinct! (Virginia City).
All interested parties must live within this voting district. Incumbent Planning Commissioner is eligible to
request reappointment. The Planning Commission is an advisory body to the Board of County
Commissioners. It is responsible for directing the short- and long-range growth and development of the
county through maintenance and implementation of the county master plan, zoning ordinances, and other
applicable land-use policies. It is composed of seven commissioners who serve two or more times per
month on the body and who are compensated pursuant to NRS 278.040. Each commissioner is appointed
by the Board of County Commissioners to serve at its pleasure for a four year term with possible re-
appointment following expiration of the term.
Preferred Qualifications: A Planning Commissioner’s primary duty is to make land-use decisions that
are consistent with the policies and plans formally adopted by the Board of County Commissioners.
Therefore, the first priority of a Planning Commissioner is to have strong decision-making skills and
develop knowledge of county policies and applicable Nevada Revised Statutes. It is not necessary to have
training in the fields of planning, architecture, law, civil engineering, geology, economics, or

' demography; these are skills that are available to the commissioner from staff, consultants, and
applicants. The Planning Commissioner’s job is to weigh input given in staff reports and other
professional reports, meeting testimonies, and other correspondence. A Planning Commissioner is like a
judge who renders decisions based on the testimony of experts and others who appear as witnesses in a
trial. Minimum qualifications of a Planning Commissioner include: a willingness and ability to research
and report on issues, programs, and policies related to local land-use matters; ability to attend afternoon
and night meetings on a regular basis; ability to sustain harmonious working relationships with
commission members, the Board of County Commissioners, staff, residents, applicants, and the public;
ability to act within the ethical standards set forth by NRS and NAC; and willingness to expand
knowledge related to land-use planning. The new-appointee must successfully pass a criminal background
investigation.
Letter of Interest: All interested parties must submit a letter of interest showing qualifications and reason
for applying for the appointment. An official job application is not necessary.
Closing Date: Letters of interest (originals) must be received by the Storey County Human Resources
Office, Storey County Courthouse, 26 South “B” Street (P.O. Box 176), Virginia City, NV 89440 by
5:00 p.m., Monday, June 25, 2018. Please contact 775.847.0968 for further questions.
Appointment Date: The Board of County Commissioners will consider letters of interest at its July 3,
2018 regularly scheduled meeting. Applicants may be asked to speak and should attend.
Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Employer. Posting dates. 06/11/18 — 06/25/18

Page 1 of 1




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 07/03/18 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

I. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Modification to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC-Storey
County Development Agreement, in accordance with Section 5.2, by accepting and approving
amendments to Chapter 8, Storey County Code 17.28 C Commercial Zone modifying building height
limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, adding to Section 17.28.020 Permitted Uses
urgent-cares, truck sales, heavy equipment sales, microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to
Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject to Permit buildings exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals,
convalescent homes, and sanitariums; and amending SCC 17.36 11 Light Industrial Zone modifying
building height limitation from 4 stories or S0 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, and other properly related
matters.

2. Recommended motion: See Enclosure A Recommended Motion 2018-023.

3. DPrepared by: Austin Osborne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

4. Staff summary: In the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, property owners may seek approval from
Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC to apply the SCC 17.28 Commercial zone
and may apply SCC 17.36 11 Light Industrial uses to land already zoned 12 Heavy Industrial. The
total commercial allotment must not exceed 10 percent of land in the industrial center. The proposed
amendment allows hotels and other commercial uses to be built to a height which is consistent with
the underlying 12 zoning requirements, it enhances economic development opportunity and eliminates
unnecessary and burdensome regulations in a pre-approved industrial center environment regulated
by the development agreement, and it requires board and planning commission review and approval
for certain uses causing potential impact to county resources and infrastructure. These amendments
will only apply to zoning and land within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

6. Supporting materials: Enclosures: (A) Recommended Motion; (B) Proposed text amendment; and
(C) Notice of Acceptance
7.  Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8.  Legal review required: District Attorney
9. Revigwed by:
ment Head Department Name: Planning
Qj‘& County Manager Other agency review:
10. Board action:
] Approved [ Approved with Modifications

Continued

o

11 Denied I
Agenda Item No. 18



2018-023 Enclosure A: Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recommendation by staff, I [commissioner] motion to approve modification
to the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC-Storey County Development Agreement, in accordance
with Section 5.2, by accepting and approving amendments to Chapter 8, Storey County Code
17.28 C Commercial Zone modifying building height limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6
stories or 75 feet, adding to Section 17.28.020 Permitted Uses urgent-cares, truck sales, heavy
equipment sales, microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject
to Permit buildings exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals, convalescent homes, and
sanitariums; and amending SCC 17.36 I1 Light Industrial Zone modifying building height
limitation from 4 stories or 50 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, and other properly related matters.



2018-023 Enclosure B: Proposed Amendment to Development
Agreement

Chapter 17.28

C COMMERCIAL ZONE

Sections:
17.28.010 Applicability.
17.28.015 Purpose and intent.
17.28.020 Permitted uses.
17.28.030 Uses subject to permit.
17.28.040 Building height and width.
17.28.050 Yards.

17.28.010 Applicability.

The C commercial zone shall be governed by the
provisions set forth in this chapter. (Ord. 159 § 2(part),
1999)

17.28.015 Purpose and intent.

To provide suitable areas within Storey County where
commercial uses and activities may be established and
maintained, to promote efficiency by grouping compatible
land uses, and to protect residential areas from the
adverse impacts that may be associated with commercial
uses. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.28.020 Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted in the C commercial
zone:

A. Retail sales, new and used, of items as such as
antiques, books, appliances, bakeries, hardware, clothing,
pharmacies, dry goods, fabrics, flowers, furniture,
electrical and electronic equipment, animal feed, gifts,
groceries, jewelry, liquor, lumber, sporting goods, pets,
toys and other similar retail uses and activities, service
stations and mini-marts;

B. Commercial offices and financial institutions,
such as real estate, medical and dental, banks,
accountants, insurance, employment agencies, consulting
firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,
secretarial services, credit unions, associations and other
similar office uses and activities;

C. Personal services, such as barbers, beauticians,
dry cleaning, laundromats, funeral homes, health clubs,

Page 1 of 6



tailors, travel agencies, wedding chapels, child care and
other similar service uses and activities;

D. Tourist and visitor related services, such as
hotels, motels, bed and breakfast inns, restaurants, cafes,
souvenir sales, gift shops, fast food establishments,
commercial museums, and other similar visitor related uses
and activities;

E. Places of religious worship such as churches,
temples and synagogues, including accessory facilities and
uses normally associated with such religious use;

F. Recreational uses and activities, including
bowling lanes, billiard parlors, gaming (when incidental to
a primary use and limited to no more than fifteen slot
and/or video machines), golf driving ranges, miniature
golf, health clubs, pool halls, skating rinks, theaters,
and other similar recreational uses and activities;

G. Public facilities and uses, such as ambulance
services, libraries, governmental offices, parking lots and
structures, medical clinics, urgent-cares, museums, post
offices, telephone exchanges, utility company offices, and
other similar public facilities and uses and activities;

H. General service uses and activities, such as
animal hospitals, bars and taverns, car washes (coin
operated), catering, private schools and academies,
equipment and appliance repair, equipment rental, feed
stores, manufactured home sales and service, night clubs,
pawn brokers, pet sales and grooming, print shops,
upholstery shops, video rentals, and other similar general
services uses and activities;

I. Automotive related use and activities, such as
automobile and light truck sales, truck and heavy equipment
sales, auto and truck parts sales, automobile service and
repair (except body repair and painting), automobile
rentals, tire shops, gasoline service stations,
recreational vehicle sales and service, and other similar

uses and activities; however, auto wrecking yards+
BT AT SN D IR NENE IR SN~ et NP BTN - B -\ I S oy EERVSEWN) aal oo
L% A V2 N SV g 1 ) N N s W t/(JLJ.LJ,b s_}Ll\Jb/J TATIRA 4 A J—‘\/bluJ.J_ &%) t/».), AT W) G4 LT
apd—service,—andheavy—eguipment—sates—and—serviee—are
rohibited.

J. Other commercial uses as follows:

1 Billboards;

2. Building materials, but not including ready-mix
concrete or hot mix asphalt plants;

3. Contractor storage yards;

4. Fraternal lodges, recreational and social clubs,
labor halls, service clubs and other private clubs;

[ Llocaradt.a 1 o caontzalaoancant  home o A ot A rgiimas

ATV T OO O THUL llvlll\,\.)[ T DI L C L UITNOD

e llVObJJ_\—uJ.Q’

Page 2 of ©



6. Lumber yards;

7. Microbreweries micro-distilleries with on-site
sales only.

7. Signs.

K. Other uses similar to the above which are

determined by the board of county commissioners to be
consistent with the uses permitted within the zone, after
considering a recommendation on such use by the planning
commission. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.28.030 Uses subject to permit.

The following additiocnal uses may be permitted subject
to securing a special use permit as provided for in Chapter
17.62 of this title:

A. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops;

B. Fortunetellers;

C. Buildings and structures constructed for
permitted uses as listed in Section 17.28.020 of this
ordinance that will exceed ferty—five seventy-five feet in
height or six stories, er—that—will-be less—than—twenty
five—feetrin—widths not including silos, stacks or
antennas.

D. Car washes using production line methods such as
a chain conveyor, blower, steam cleaning device or other
mechanical devices;

E. Casinos and gaming establishments of more than
five thousand square feet of total floor area where slots
or video machines are located and where other forms of
gambling may take place such as poker, craps, blackjack,
sports book and other similar activities;

F. Equestrian facilities, including riding stables
and pony rides; ‘

o PN . anle
T

Mai. e byraoria-ad 3 P AL~ = SF3
Iy T o= o CworItoy wIrCcr—OTrr—oTcT

o ]
T OTTTY 7

H. Manufactured home sales lots;

I. Propane sales and storage;

J. Public utility service yards, electric
transmission stations and gas transmission stations;

K. Recreational vehicle parks;

L Wholesale businesses and distributing operations.

M. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent.

N Hospitals, convalescent homes, and sanitariums.

(Ord. 159 § 2 (part), 1999)

Page 3 of 6



17.28.040 Building height and width.
No building shall be higher than three—steries—5o
exceed—forty~five—feet; six stories or seventy-five fee

without a special use permit. and—the width—eof—any-buitding

4
T

o

o qt

PPN S SN Fraem b
N Jit g e pne J \.—llul.\. LVV\/I.LU]

§2parer—3999), not including silos, stacks or antennas.

17.28.050 Yards.

There shall be no front yard or side yard required,
except wherever a building is located on a lot adjacent to
an R-1, R-2 or E zone boundary, there shall be provided a
side yard of not less than ten feet on the side of the
building adjacent to the zone boundary line. There shall be
a rear yard of ten feet provided behind every building.
(Ord. 159 § 2 (part), 1999)

Chapter 17.36

I-1 LIGHT INDUSTRIAL ZONE

Sections:
17.36.010 Applicability.
17.36.015 Purpose and intent.
17.36.020 Permitted uses.
17.36.030 Uses subject to permit.
17.36.040 Minimum parcel area.
17.36.050 Setbacks.
17.36.060 Loading zone.
17.36.070 Building height.

17.36.010 Applicability.

The I-1 light industrial zone shall be governed by the
provisions as set forth in this chapter. (Ord. 159
§ 2(part), 1999)

17.36.015 Purpose and intent.

The I-1 light industrial zone is intended to provide
areas for the development and operation of industrial uses
which do not create or cause fumes, odor, smoke, gas, noise
or vibrations which are or may be detrimental to other
properties in the neighborhood. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

Page 4 of 6



17.36.020 Permitted uses.

The following uses are permitted in the I-1 light
industrial zone:

A. Ten percent of the total area in the light
industrial zone as designated in the Storey County master
plan may be utilized for commercial use. A site plan must
be approved by the Storey County building and planning
department. No special use permits shall be required of
commercial uses, but Chapter 17.28 shall apply to
commercial uses in an I-1 light industrial zone;

B. Storage warehouses for industrial, agricultural,
commercial or other products;

C. Automobile paint shops and body repair shops;

D. Mini-warehouses and storage facilities for rent
including recreational vehicle storage; |

E. Wholesale businesses and distributing operations;

F. Welding shops;

G. Warehouses and warehouse complexes;

H. Limited manufacturing and assembly uses, such as

electronic parts and equipment, when conducted solely
within an enclosed building;

I. Car washes using production line methods such as
a chain conveyor, blower, steam cleaning device or other
mechanical devices;

J. Casinos and gaming establishments where more than
fifteen slots or video machines are located and where other
forms of gambling may take place such as poker, craps,
blackjack, sports book and other similar activities;

K. Heavy equipment sales and service;

L. Truck sales and services;

M. Truck refueling facilities;

N. Commercial offices and financial, institutions,

such as real estate, medical and dental, banks,
accountants, insurance, employment agencies, consulting
firms, manufacturer representatives, newspapers,
secretarial services, credit unions, associations and other
similar office uses and activities;

0. Public facilities and uses, such as ambulance
services, libraries, governmental offices, parking lots and
structures, medical clinics, museums, post offices,
telephone exchanges, utility company offices, and other
similar public facilities and uses and activities;

P. Ten percent of the total industrial building
improvements may be used for commercial sales to the
general public. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

Page 5 of 6



17.36.030 Uses subject to permit.

The following additional uses may be permitted subject
to securing a special use permit as provided for in Chapter
17.62 of this title:

A. Casinos and gaming establishments over five
thousand square feet where more than fifteen slots or video
machines are located and where other forms of gambling may
take place such as poker, craps, blackjack, sports book and
other similar activities;

B. Watchman’s dwelling, permanent or temporary;

C. Buildings and structures constructed for uses
listed in Sections 17.36.020 and 17.36.030 of this chapter
that will exceed £ifty seventy-five feet in height or six
stories;

D. Kennels for the maintenance, raising, breeding,
or caretaking of four or more dogs over twelve weeks old;

E. Agricultural product processing;

F. Recycling centers.

(Ord. 159 § 2 (part), 1999)

17.36.040 Minimum parcel area.

One acre, except commercial uses in a light industrial
zone area for which there is a fifteen thousand square foot
minimum per parcel. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.36.050 Setbacks.
No building shall be located closer than twenty feet

to any property line. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.36.060 Loading zone.

Loading area shall have adequate room. All truck
parking and docking areas shall be so designed that county
streets shall not be impacted by the operation of the
business. (Ord. 159 § 2(part), 1999)

17.36.070 Building height.

No building shall have a height greater than feur six
stories or £ifty seventy-five feet, not including silos,
stacks or antennas. A special use permit will be required
if the facility exceeds these limits. +6re—359-—5—2tparti+
1555+

Page 6 of 6



Notice to Storey County of Acceptance of Land Use Regulations

2018-023 Enclosure C: Notice of Acceptance

NOTICE TO STOREY COUNTY OF ACCEPTANCE OF LAND USE
REGULATION

The Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC hereby gives notice pursuant to Section 3.2 of
the Development Agreement Between The County of Storey and Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, LLC and DP Operating Partnership, LP that it approves of and accepts the
application of Chapter 8, Storey County Code 17.28 C Commercial Zone moditying
building height limitation from 3 stories or 45 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, adding to
Section 17.28.020 Permitted Uses urgent-cares, truck sales, heavy equipment sales,
microbreweries, and micro-distilleries; adding to Section 17.28.030 Uses Subject to
Permit buildings exceeding 6 stories or 75 feet, and hospitals, convalescent homes, and
sanitariums; and amending SCC 17.36 11 Light Industrial Zone modifying building
height limitation from 4 stories or 50 feet to 6 stories or 75 feet, and other properly
related matters. Said amendments will be apply to the 1999 Storey County Zoning
Ordinance as applicable to land within the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center.

Dated this day of , 2018.
DEVELOPER: COUNTY:
TAHOE-RENO INDUSTRIAL CENTER, THE COUNTY OF STOREY, a
LLC, a Limited lability company. political Subdivision of the State of
Nevada

By: Norman Properties, Inc. a California
corporation, Managing Member Marshall McBride, Chairman

By:

Lance L. Gilman, Representative

Page 1of 1



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

7-3-18
Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda {X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

; Approval
3. Prepared by;: Melissa Field
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4, Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

S. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptrolier

7. Legal review required:

_____District Attomey

Department Name:
, Other agency review: o o
(] Approved {] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied 1] Continued

Agenda [tem No. \q



Storey County Qtommunity Bevelopment
Business EB Licensing

P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 » mfield@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office June 25, 2018
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the July 3, 2018 COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

ADVANCED SYSTEMS LCL — General / 1020 W. 14 Mile Rd ~ Clawson, MI
AMERICAN POWER SOLUTIONS, LLC — General / 2995 Mill St ~ Reno, NV
KEN MORGAN - Contractor / 325 Neilson Rd ~ Reno, NV

MARIO LEPROVOST - Contractor / 1946 Wilder St ~ Reno, NV

PARLEVEL SYSTEMS INC - General / 114 E. Cevallos St ~ San Antonio, TX
YINEBURG MACHINING - General / 26 Stokes Dr ~ Carson City, NV
BENCH TEK SOLUTIONS, LLC - General / 525 Aldo Ave ~ Santa Clara, CA

OEETORP

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioners’ Office Comptroller’s Office



